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Cabbeen is one of the leading Chinese designer brands.

The Group designs and sells apparels for men, women and children under four
brands, namely, Cabbeen, Cabbeen Urban, Cabbeen Love and 2AM. lts retail
network covers 31 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities and several
online platforms in the People’s Republic of China.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RNRER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Siu Keung Ng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Rongqin Ke

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui
Mr. Honghui Chen
Mr. Ming Shu Leung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (Chairman)
Mr. Honghui Chen
Mr. Ming Shu Leung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (Chairman)
Mr. Ming Shu Leung
Mr. Siu Keung Ng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Honghui Chen
Mr. Ming Shu Leung

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (Chairman)
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui
Mr. Ming Shu Leung

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Siu Keung Ng
Ms. Lai Wah Wong, FCPA

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lai Wah Wong, FCPA

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HEADQUARTERS IN CHINA

Cabbeen Apparel Building
No. 379 Shougouling Road
Tianhe District

Guangzhou 510507

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza I
10 Cheung Yue Street
Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman
KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

KPMG, Certified Public Accountants
Public Interest Entity Auditor
registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG
LAW

Luk & Partners in Association with Morgan, Lewis &
Bockius

WEBSITE

www.ir.cabbeen.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MERE

2019 2018 Changes
—B-hE —ZT-N\F g
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
AR¥BTRT ARETT %
Financial highlights MRREE
Revenue Was 1,274,966 | 1,273,473 +0.1%
Gross profit EA 560,091 578,743 -3.2%
Profit from operation 1w A 243,440 311,032 -21.7%
Profit for the year F A A 158,142 210,243 -24.8%
Earnings per share BREAF
(RMB cents) (ARES)
- Basic o 7 23.58 31.71 -25.6%
— Diluted -8 23.58 31.68 -25.6%
Dividend per share (HK cents) &MA%8 (B1L)
— Interim dividend - RHARR B 7.5 13.2 -43.2%
~ Final dividend - REARRE 3.0 4.8 -37.5%
— Total dividend - BgE 10.5 18.0 -41.7%
Profitability ratios BRIt =
Gross profit margin EF=E 43.9% 45.4% -1.5 ppt
(HER2E
Operating margin G IpE P 19.1% 24.4% -5.3 ppt
(HER2E
Net profit margin fF = 12.4% 16.5% -4.1 ppt
(HER2E
Return on total assets BEEBERREO 71% 10.0% -2.9 ppt
(HER2E
Return on equity® M e ] R 3K @ 12.8% 17.9% -5.1 ppt
(HER2E
Liquidity ratios REBESLEE
Current ratio M EN L 2 1.82 2.71
Average inventory THEE
turnover days® BEEPSE 196 189
Average trade and bills 58 5 WA K&
receivables turnover days® RN EIRFE RS 123 87
Average trade and bills FHE 5N RIE R
payables turnover days® JETT IR E R B0 231 243
Capital ratio Bt =x
Interest coverage ratio® BANEF S EE© 11.3 15.6
Net debt to equity ratio? SRERELLE O 7.1% 5.7%
Gearing ratio® BEABLEO 28.7% 24.5%
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Notes:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Return on total assets equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total assets.

Return on equity equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total shareholders’ equity.

Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the
beginning and closing inventory balance divided by cost of sales
and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills receivables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills receivables
balance divided by turnover (including value-added tax) and
multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills payables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills payables
balance divided by costs of sales and multiplied by the number
of days in the year.

Interest coverage ratio equals profit before interest and tax for
one period divided by interest expenses of the same period.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by total equity
as of the end of the year. Net debt includes all borrowings net of

cash and cash equivalents.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity.
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

EREWE

m Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (the “Company”,
stock code: 2030), | herewith present the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “Cabbeen”) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

In 2019, the business of the Group was affected by
headwind of macro-economic uncertainty, slowing growth
and fierce competition in mainland China market. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of the Group
was generally flat and net profit decreased by 24.8%
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2018.
The Group’s performance was affected by pressures of
promotion efforts and sales discounts while the growth
of e-commerce business was slowing. We expect that
the apparel industry, particularly for brands targeting mid-
end market like us, will be even more challenging going
forward.

In addition, we acknowledge that our operations were
adversely affected by the outbreak of the coronavirus
in mainland China since January 2020. Our distributors
temporarily closed more than 90% of retail stores from 28
January 2020 to 9 February 2020 and the operation of
approximately 17% of retail stores remained suspended
as of the date of this report. Given the dynamic nature of
these circumstances, the duration of business disruption
and reduced customer traffic, we expect that our
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFRHRE (H)

operating results for 2020 will be materially and adversely
affected, though we are not yet able to reasonably
quantify the potential magnitude of such impact on our
financial performance at the time of this annual report.
We have started to cut back purchase orders for 2020
summer collection and put on hold of new shops and
other material investments. We will also strengthen
cost control and provide extended credit terms for our
distributors. Considering uncertainty of the epidemic and
the impact on our operations, we would like to maintain
a higher level of liquidity for our business development
and thus have adjusted the dividend payout ratio for
2019 to approximately 40%. We will strive to stay vigilant
and be proactive in responding to these extraordinary
circumstances and will be transparent in commmunicating
with our shareholders about the implication for our
business results.

Another important development of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2019 was the Group’s
investment in upstream apparel production business. We
believe in an era of fast-changing customer preferences,
being able to respond to shifting demand and tailor
production accordingly and reduce lead time are
competitive advantages. However, since the order size
of each stock keeping unit and scale of operations of
our new brands are generally small, the Group has been
facing challenges in working with quality suppliers at
reasonable price and predictable lead time. Accordingly,
we have started to develop our own production facilities to
overcome these obstacles in supply chain management.
We are aware of the costs are generally higher for smaller
batch size production, and we need capable personnel
to manage the factory. So, we will proceed step by
step to control the cost impact on the Group’s financial
performance and focus on production of the Group’s
core products only. In addition, the upfront investments
in upstream business may reduce the Group’s liquidity
and affect dividend payout. Nevertheless, we believe it is
beneficial for the Group’s long-term strategic development.

m Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication
and contribution, and to our shareholders and business
partners for their support. We will continue with our
endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create
value for our shareholders.

Chairman
Ziming Yang

11 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT
—DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The apparel industry is very competitive in mainland
China with plenty of local and foreign brands and most
of the industry players sell their products through both
physical stores and online channels. Although physical
store has not lost its key role, online sales have been
growing strongly in past few years and fueled the business
growth of many apparel companies. However, it seems
that online retailing has also started to slow down due to
market maturity and competition. In addition, we expect
that consumers will be cautious and continue to hold off
on spending on discretionary items amid the uncertain
macroeconomic outlook. Accordingly, we believe that the
apparel industry, particularly for brands targeting mid-end
market like us, will be more challenging going forward.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Cabbeen is a Chinese designer brand. It offers apparel
and accessories for men, women, and children under
the Cabbeen, Cabbeen Urban, Cabbeen Love and 2AM
brands. The Group derives its revenue from sales of its
products through franchise stores and online shops. Most
of the products sold under its brand names are designed
by the Group and majority of the products sold are
manufactured by independent manufacturers in mainland
China.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 6 wholesale
distributors, 19 consignment distributors and 135 sub-
distributors operating a total of 887 retail shops in mainland
China and one retail shop in Cambodia. In addition, the
Group operates WeChat store and other online shops on
e-commerce platforms including T-mall, JD.com, vipshop
and sells products to other online distributors.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Retail channel performance

Performance of retail stores operated by the Group,
its distributors and sub-distributors for the year ended
31 December 2019 are summarized below.

° Total retail revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019 decreased by 4.1% as compared to 2018.
The decrease was primarily a result from weak
consumption sentiment and exceptional warm
weather in the first quarter of 2019.

° Retail sales revenue and same store sales from
physical stores for the year ended 31 December
2019 decreased by 6.2% and 7.8%, respectively, as
compared to that of 2018.

o Retail revenue from online shops increased by
approximately 5.0% from RMB503.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB528.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

° Cabbeen had 2.4 milion WeChat fans and members
as of 31 December 2019 (2018: 1.8 million).

o Average retail discount at physical stores for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
25.7% (2018: 21.6%).

o Up to 31 January 2020, sell-through rate of the
Group’s 2019 collections was over 71.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
ERENRRDA ()
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Retail network by geographical regions

EEENRR DA ()

BiEEHE T NEERE

As of 31 December 2019 As of 31 December 2018
HE-2-NF+=A=1-A HE-F-\ET-A=1-H

Operation model Wholesale Consignment Total Wholesale Gonsignment

TeEs iy Ré h g f#

Geographical region ~ H#E

Central China = 197 33 230 198 37 235
Southwestern China il 56 125 181 62 131 93
Southern China = 22 250 212 23 239 262
Fastern China 5 - 70 70 - 61 61
Norther China ) 1 67 68 1 74 75
Northwestern China [ishi4 - 56 56 - 67 67
Northeastern China Fit - 10 10 - 17 17
Others - 1 - 1 - - -
Total @ 2n 611 888 284 626 910

Retail outlets by brands Z R &8 2 W EEES

@ Cabbeen ~E a/\ CH\
Cabbeen Urban -RE#H
@ Cabbeen LOVE Cabbeen LOVE ~ ~ 201 9 = - 124 N
® 2AM ERFE 1.8%0. 2%. 1.3%
@ Multi-brands % mhg 10.7% 11.2%
16. 5% 17.4%

70.8%
As of 31 December 2019
R=F-NF+=A=+—H

Retail outlets by channel ZREB P HWEE/EH

70.1%

As of 31 December 2018
R=F—-/\F+=A=+—H

® Shopping mall &5 / ( /i/
Department store A & A A 2 019
® Streetshops #7148 . S - S
W 36.7%
7% ’ 375%0.0%

As of 31 December 2019
R=F—NF+=A=+—H

As of 31 December 2018
R=F—/\F+=-A=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENRR DA ()

Retail outlets by city-tiers ZittEE| 7 HWEEES
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X

48.7%

Brand building

Virtually all aspects of brand development, from product
design and distribution to marketing, merchandising and
shopping environments, are controlled by the Group. The
Group also keeps direct communications with its end
customers through WeChat platform. It can therefore
monitor their shopping patterns, and provide them with
information about promotional events and new product
launch information.

Design and product development

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had four design
workshops in Guangzhou City, Hong Kong, Milan and
Paris, respectively, with a team of 84, including 48
designers (2018: 54) joining from mainland China, other
Asia countries, Hong Kong and Europe. The Group also
works with design institutes and contract designers
from around the world. It offered over 4,600 new stock-
keeping-units (SKUs) for 2019 product collections (over
5,300 SKUs for 2018 product collections).

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Omni-Channel

The Group has invested in building omni-channel
capabilities in markets with retail outlets operated by
consignment distributors. Its ERP system facilitated a
single view of inventory across channels, connecting
physical stores directly to WeChat store. The Group offers
a reserve onling, pick up in store service to its customers
which allows customers to select in-store inventory from
WeChat platform. The Group has also started to fulfil
orders from WeChat stores by shipping products either
from logistic centre or consignment stores. It will continue
to optimize the omni-channel services for better customer
shopping experience.

PROSPECTS

The Group believes e-commerce will continue to be a key
driver of its business. Accordingly, the priority investments
of the Group will be in the area of omni-channel and
e-commerce, development of CRM capabilities, improving
in-store experiences and investing in brand building, while
it will be prudent in physical store expansion.

In addition, the Group has invested in upstream apparel
production business. It believes in an era of fast-changing
customer preferences, being able to respond to shifting
demand and tailor production accordingly and reduce lead
time are competitive advantages. However, given the order
size of each stock keeping unit and scale of operations
of our new brands are generally small, the Group has
been facing challenges in working with quality suppliers
at reasonable price and predictable lead time. Given the
obstacles in supply chain management, it considers to
overcome this by developing its own production facilities.
The production business has started in November 2019.
It is aware of the production costs are generally higher
due to the smaller batch sizes. Therefore, the Group will
proceed step by step to control the cost impact on its
financial performance and focus on production of core
products only.
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Cabbeen Fashion Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

The Group’s operations were adversely affected by the
outbreak of the coronavirus in mainland China since
January 2020. The Group’s distributors temporarily closed
more than 90% of our retail stores from 28 January 2020
to 9 February 2020 and the operation of approximately
17% of retail stores remained suspended as of the
date of this report. Given the dynamic nature of these
circumstances, the duration of business disruption and
reduced customer traffic, the Company expects that its
operating results for 2020 will be materially and adversely
affected, though the Company is not yet able to reasonably
quantify the potential magnitude of such impact on its
financial performance at the time of this annual report. The
Group has started to cut back purchase orders for 2020
summer collection and put on hold the opening of new
shops and other material investments. The Group will also
strengthen cost control and provide extended credit terms
for its distributors. The Company will strive to stay vigilant
and be proactive in responding to these extraordinary
circumstances and will be transparent in communicating
with the Company’s shareholders about the implication for
the Group’s business results.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue
Revenue by sales channel

AEENFEKE S -_ZF—ABRZIFEHA
1R B EERA S AR BT EE - B
“ECEF A+ )\BEZZE-ZTF_AAN
H ANEESODHEEEERE THBE0%H
TEEH BEEZAREAH  17%0HE
EEHNAEEEE ERRBFTENEBIFE
WHEREPRERDY  AARIZZE_FFH
MEEEBSIHBEBRATFTE  BERAR
EZRRARMAEEEEAEBTHERIR
XHEZENEE  c ARBECERGBEIR T
TFEEFRIEMMREE WABERY
FIEH R EMEBERIEE o REB TN HN5RIEH
A RRREEREERTFHHERE - AAFER
SEGREGEHZERREN - WAFE
HASBEBNFEERFRTER °

Bt 7% B

W =

REEREE DW=
Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-BHLEE

2019 2018
—g-nE —F)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETTT
Onlineshops  #&LbJE& | 481545 378% | 430,481 33.8%.
Offline shops BTIE
Wholesale #Ex 286,939 22.5% 309,812 24.3%
Consignment KiH 506,482 39.7% 535,853 421%
_Seffowned  BZE | = -l 148 01%
93421 622% | 847,09 66.5%
Less: Products B AREER
repurchased for BOED
___consignmentbusiness f -] il DR @4.104) (0.3%)
Net revenue FW 1,274,966 100.0% 1,273,473 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenue by brands

EEENWR DN (E)

ZmEE o s
Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE “E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cabbeen REKHE 1,043,175 81.8% 1,071,074 84.1%
Cabbeen Urban REHM 185,764 14.6% 182,947 14.4%
Cabbeen Love Cabbeen LOVE 7,851 0.6% - -
2AM eI 15,610 1.2% 12,700 1.0%
Others 2 I 22,566 18%| 6752  08%
1,274,966 100.0% 1,273,473 100.0%
Gross profit and gross profit margin ERMRERR

The gross profit was RMB560.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 compared to RMB578.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Gross profit margin decreased from 45.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to 43.9% for the year ended
31 December 2019. The decrease in gross profit margin
was attributable to an increase in provision for sales
rebates and an increase in sales discounts.

Other income

Other income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits, government grants and net foreign
exchange differences. The increase in other income from
RMB58.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB66.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 was mainly due to an increase in government grant
income.

BHE T NF+_A=+—HIEFEZE
FMAEBARES01ESIL MEBZEZ T —/\F
+—A=+—BIFEAARKSISTAETT °

ENERBE_FT-N\F+_A=+—HIt
FEZABABBIEBE_T—NFE+ A
=T—HIEFEZ43.9% ° EFZFHDTHER
RN BEEIE I RS HETT -

Hbr A
HEMWAEEBRBRITFROFEWA ~ BUT
BN NOFE K ERE - KK ARBEZZT—N
F+_A=+—HLEFEMHMARKESBIEE
TENEEE T -NF+A=+—HILF
EMARKE8EETL  TEHRBNAEL
W ASEINFTEL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly
operating cost for e-commerce sales channels, advertising
and promotion, and logistics and delivery expenses. Selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to RMB218.9 million, representing an
increase of RMB39.5 million or 22.0%, from that of the
year ended 31 December 2018. The increase of selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 was attributable to more promotion expenses for
online platforms and launch of new brands.

Selling and distribution expense for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019 mainly comprised of the
following:

HERDHEHBAX

HERD AT T EZRREFHEHEEREN
A - BERBEEAMDRRSERAR -
HE_Z-NWF+-A=1+—HILFE  #E
oA AARB2180B8L ' REEZ -
T \F+_AZ+—HIEFEEMNARE
39.5HBETTH22.0% HE-_ZT—NLF+ A
—t+—HIEFE  HERDHASENNEE
MR ATEETa LN REELER LHER
fi °

HE T \FE-_ZE—hAhF+-A=1+—H
IFFEZHEMRDHEAYEEHUTARK :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Staff costs 8 IRA 33,566 32,501
Advertising expenses BERY 90,889 68,968
Delivery and logistics ~ERYIM 32,662 27,125
e-commerce platform BERTAMRX
expenses 38,006 29,058
Others 3 23792| 21771
218,915 179,423
Administrative and other operating expenses TR Hitt&ER X

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly
comprise staff costs, design, research and development
expenses, management consulting expenses, provision for
inventories and doubtful debts, office rental, depreciation
and amortization charges and other miscellaneous
expenses. Administrative and other operating expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
RMB164.5 million representing an increase of RMB18.1
million or 12.4% from the year ended 31 December 2018.
The increase in administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2019 was mainly attributable to an increase
in depreciation charges and staff costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENRR DA ()

Administrative and other operating expenses for the year BE_Z—N\FR-_ZT—NF+-HA=+—H
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 mainly comprised of FFEZITHEREMEERT T EHUTHA

the following: X :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Staff costs B IR 54,999 52,456
Research and development #2552 (8 TAKANERSN)
expenses, excludes
staff costs 14,839 10,893
Amortization and depreciation 4 & T E 21,828 7,020
Auditors’ remuneration A& 3,657 3,443
Operating lease charges KEHEER 6,598 9,938
Legal and professional fee FENEEER 3,771 2,590
Impairment loss of trade 2 ZFEWEIA K
and bills receivables JEW B )R B B8 319 661
Inventory write-down FEMUR 37,384 42,010
Others HAt 21,118 17,377
164,513 146,388
Profit from operations gl

The Group recorded a profit from operations of RMB243.4 HE_ZT—NLFT_A=T—HLFE " K&
million (2018: RMB311.0 million) for the year ended S BEHEEL&E M AR 24348 ET(=
31 December 2019, representing a decrease of ZT—\F: ARE31.0BET) KIEAL
approximately 21.7%. Operating margin dropped from 21.7% ° &&FBEExHHEE=—T— )/ \F+=A
24.4% for the year ended 31 December 2018 t0 19.1% for = +—HILFEM24.4% TREHE=-ZE—N
the year ended 31 December 2019 which was aresultofa F+=—A=+—HBIFFEH19.1%  ILTIER
decreased gross profit margin and an increase in operating ~ EFE & K& ERSZ EFF o

expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
finance costs amounted to RMB21.6 million (2018:
RMB19.9 million) or 1.7% (2018: 1.6%) of the Group’s
revenue. Finance costs represent primarily interest
expenses for a Hong Kong dollar bank loan of a subsidiary
operated in Hong Kong. The increase in interest expenses
was because of an increase in bank loan interest rate.

Share of loss of an associate

The associated company is engaged in property
development, in which the Group has 20.0% effective
equity interest. The property held by this associated
company is an office complex under construction in
Guangzhou City, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2019, income tax
expenses of the Group amounted to RMB63.6 million
(2018: RMB80.7 million) and the effective tax rate was
28.7% (2018: 27.7%). The increase in effective tax rate
in 2019 was attributable to an increase in non-deductible
expenses.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 decreased
by 24.8% to RMB158.1 million from RMB210.2 million
for the year 2018. Net profit margin for the year ended
31 December 2019 was 12.4% (2018: 16.5%). Basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 were RMB23.58 cents (2018: RMB31.71 cents) and
RMB23.58 cents (2018: RMB31.68 cents), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Other key financial ratios

Average inventory turnover days of the Group were 196
days for the year ended 31 December 2019, as compared
to 189 days for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Average turnover days of trade and bills receivables
increased to 123 days for the year ended 31 December
2019 as compared to 87 days for the year ended
31 December 2018, which was attributable to longer
credit term granted to distributors during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Average trade and bills payable turnover days decreased
from 243 days for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
231 days for the year ended 31 December 2019, which
was due to change of settlement method with more trade
payables were settled by bank direct fund transfer rather
than 6-month bank bills.

The Group’s gearing ratio was 28.7% as at 31 December
2019 (2018: 24.5%), being a ratio of sum of bank loans of
RMB354.7 million (2018: RMB287.5 million) to equity. The
increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to an increase in
discounted commercial acceptance bills.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, other financial assets
and time deposits with initial terms of over three months
totaling RMB690.1 million (31 December 2018: RMB964.9
million).

At 31 December 2019, the Group was in net debt position
of RMB87.7 million (31 December 2018: RMB67.0 million).
Net debt equals all borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents. The increase in net debt as of 31 December
2019 was mainly attributable to an increase in discounted
commercial acceptance bills, though the effect of which
was party net off by partial repayment of bank loans during
the year and the transfers from time deposits with initial
terms of over three months, wealth management products
and pledged deposits into cash and cash equivalents.

EEENWR DN (E)
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Cabbeen Fashion Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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The Group recorded net operating cash outflow of
RMB45.7 million (2018: net operating cash inflow of
RMB185.3 million) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The decrease in operating cash inflow for the year ended
31 December 2019 was mainly attributable to longer
credit terms to customers and faster settlement of trade
payables.

Net cash generated from investing activities for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB123.2 million (2018:
RMB22.5 million), which represented mainly the decrease
in pledged deposits and bank deposits with initial terms
of over three months, net of the consideration paid for
the acquisition of Shishi City Junyuan Development
Company Limited (A ERZERARAR]) (“Junyuan
Development”).

Net cash used in financing activities was RMB34.0 million
(2018: RMB130.3 million) for the year ended 31 December
2019. This mainly consisted of payments of dividends of
RMB73.2 million, a net increase of bank loans of RMB61.1
million and payment of bank loan interests of RMB19.8
million.

Long term and short term bank loans as of 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2019 were at floating interest rate
and were denominated in the following currencies.

BE_ZT-NAFT_A=T—"HLFE £&
BEgERKERSMHFRARBIBTEET
—T)\F REHSRANFBRARKE185.3
BEL) BE_T-NAF+-A=t—HL
FELLHRSARARD I EHRNETEPER
ERHLE S RNBUANRE TR

HE-Z-hF+-_A=1+—HIFE  #&E
EEMEReFREAARKI1232EET(Z
T—N\F: ARE25H5E L) TBIEHD
EFRFER MRS =EAMRITEZR - 0
BRI FEARMTRIRERER AR ([BIRE
RDHRE -

HE_ZT—hE+-_A=1+—HILFE &%
EEFTARESFEAARKIMOEEL(ZE
—NF: ARB1303BET)  TEBHEK
MRBARKET7I2EE T « IRITEFFIE N
AREIAEELEIMIRITERFEAR
#1908 HETT °

HE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HEZZE—NF
+ - A=+ —BRAKEHIETERIREH)
M BWIRIA T EHHE -

At 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—B-hEF —ZT-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTTT
Short term bank loans REIRITER
Hong Kong Dollar BT 240,737 52,566
Renminbi AR 114000) o
354,737 52,566
Long term bank loan RERITER
Hong Kong Dollar BT - 234,886
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

On 10 February 2017, the Group has fully drawn down
a three-year term loan facility of HK$350,000,000
(equivalent to RMB303,415,000). Pursuant to the facility,
the controlling shareholder shall maintain his equity
interest and voting rights in the Company at a certain
level, and at the same time it is subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial
ratios. A breach of these undertakings would result in the
drawn down facilities and interest becoming payable on
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. During the year ended 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2019, the Group repaid a total
of HK$80,000,000 according to the repayment schedule.
As at 31 December 2019, none of the covenants relating
to the drawn down facilities had been breached. The
term loan are unsecured and carried at amortised cost
of RMB240.7 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB287.5 million).

On 20 December 2019, the Group accepted bank
facilities relating to a three-year term loan facilities in
an aggregate amount of HK$350,000,000 offered by a
licensed bank in Hong Kong. Pursuant to the facility, the
controlling shareholder shall maintain his equity interest
and voting rights in the Company at a certain level, and at
the same time it is subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. A breach
of these undertakings would result in the drawn down
facilities and interest becoming payable on demand. As of
31 December 2019, the facilities were not utilized.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unutilized
banking facilities amounted to RMB471.4 million.

The Group adopts a set of centralized financing and
treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s funds are
utilized efficiently. The Group’s liquidity position remains
healthy and the Group possesses sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements.

EEENWR DN (E)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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The Group’s primary objectives for managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder’s returns that might be possible with higher
level of borrowings and the advantages and security based
on a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 3 July 2019, a resolution was passed at the
Company’s adjourned extraordinary general meeting (the
“Adjourned EGM”) to approve the acquisition of the entire
registered capital of Junyuan Development by the Group
for a tentative consideration of RMB105.5 million (the
“Junyuan Acquisition”), details of which were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 17 May 2019 and
circular dated 6 June 2019.

The Junyuan Acquisition was completed on 10 July
2019 (the “Junyuan Acquisition Completion Date”)
after all the conditions precedent as set out in the equity
transfer agreement were met. At the Junyuan Acquisition
Completion Date, total assets and total liabilities of
Junyuan Development was RMB175.3 million and
RMBG67.7 million, respectively. The final consideration was
RMB107.6 million.

Juanyun Development has no business operations and its
assets mainly consist of the land and buildings situated in
Shishi city, Fujian Province of mainland China. Total assets
of Junyuan Development was approximately 7.4% of the
Group’s total asset value as of 31 December 2019. For
the period from Junyuan Acquisition Completion Date to
year end date, Junyuan Development recorded a net loss
of RMB6.3 million, which represented 4.0% of the Group’s
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group believes in an era of fast-changing customer
preferences, being able to respond to shifting demand
and tailor production accordingly and reduce lead time
are competitive advantages. Given the obstacles in supply
chain management the Group has been encountered,
it considers to overcome this by developing its own
production facilities. The Group has utilized part of the
properties held by Junyuan Development for its own
production lines. The Group will explore other options to
best utilize the remaining area of the properties, including
partnership with existing or other suppliers to develop
enhanced production facilities. Enhancing the relevant
production facilities in the properties would involve
upgrades of information system and machinery, and will
enable better managed manufacturing operations and
allow the Group and its strategic suppliers to collect
and share data about customer demands, production
schedules, and inventory levels. These enhancements
will enable the supply chains to respond quickly to
changing market conditions and customer demands. The
management of the Company is of the view that such
centralized production facilities have the added benefit
of being close to the Group’s existing logistics center,
which is located at sections of Liantang, Gushan, Dongan
Villages, Hanjiang Town, Shihu Road East, Shishi City,
Fujian Province, the PRC (9 Bl &2 & £ i T 4 4 3% B
T IEEYE « &1L - BEHER), for the development of the
Group’s e-commerce business and multi-brand strategy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group mainly operates in mainland China with most
of the transactions originally denominated and settled in
RMB. However, the Group pays dividends in Hong Kong
dollars and majority of its bank loans are also denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, the Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from Hong dollar against
RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and to mitigate the impact on
exchange rate fluctuations by entering into currency
hedge arrangement if necessary. During the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019, no forward foreign
exchange or hedging contracts had been entered into by
the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, deposits with certain banks of
approximately RMB119.8 million in total (2018: RMB240.5
million) and trade receivables of RMB114.0 million (2018:
Nil) were pledged as securities for bank loans and bills
payable facilities. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant loans and bills
payable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total capital
commitments of RMB81.5 million (2018: RMB30.1 million),
primarily related to ERP system upgrades, decoration
cost of an office in Guangzhou City and investments in
production facilities.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 454 employees
(2018: 404 employees). Total staff costs, including
directors emoluments, for the period amounted to
approximately RMB88.6 million (2018: RMB85.0 million).
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration
policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their
contributions to the Group. Share options are granted
to eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming
years.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 16 April 2020 to Tuesday, 21 April 2020
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2020 AGM"). In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the 2020 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificate must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 15 April
2020.

In addition, subject to the approval of the proposed final
dividend by the shareholders at the 2020 AGM on Tuesday,
21 April 2020, the register of members will be closed on
Monday, 27 April 2020 for the purpose of determining
shareholders who qualify for the proposed final dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificate must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer
office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 April 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKB.0 cents (2018: HK4.8 cents) per ordinary share for
the financial year. Including the interim dividend paid for
the year ended 31 December 2019, total dividend payout
for the year is approximately HK$70.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB63.2 million) (2018: HK$120.3
million, equivalent to approximately RMB104.2 million) or
a dividend payout ratio of 40% (2018: 50%). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be paid
in cash on or around 8 May 2020 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Monday, 27 April.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will
be subject to the Company’s discretion. Dividends may
be paid only out of its distributable reserves as permitted
under the relevant laws. Holders of the shares will be
entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
Subject to the factors described above, the Company
has adopted a general dividend policy since the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 of declaring and paying
dividends on semi-annual basis of not more than 50%
of its total net profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Board would review the Company’s
dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital
investment and business plan and macroeconomic and
social environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders,
and to comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements as well as fulfill its commitment to excellence
in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Board is
satisfied that the Company complied with the CG Code
provisions for the entire year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board has established four Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr.
Ronggin Ke and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen
and Mr. Ming Shu Leung.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEREREE (R)

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 54
to 60 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions are available on the websites of
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Ziming Yang, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and an executive Director of the Company, is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Rongqgin Ke, who is an executive
Director of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there
are no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Group. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive
Directors and members of senior management. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to
assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the
Group’s expense upon their request.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment, the directorships or other positions
they are concurrently holding at other companies or
organizations. These interests are updated on an annual
basis as and when necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and
written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, including access
to management or professional advice if considered
necessary.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on
8 October 2013. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen, and
Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems, and relationship with external auditors
of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and such responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee
meets with the Company’s external and internal
auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programs, the results of their examinations
as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEREREE (R)

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2019. Major work
completed by the Audit Committee during the year

includes:

° reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim
financial information and annual financial
statements;

o reviewed significant accounting and audit
issues;

° reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications,

independence and performance;

° reviewed the external auditor’s management
letter and the management’s response;

° reviewed annual internal audit plans;
° assisted the Board to evaluate on the
effectiveness of financial reporting procedures

and internal control system;

o advised on material event or drawing the
attention of the management on related risks;

° reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s systems of internal control and

risk management; and

° reviewed connected transactions entered into
by the Group or subsisting during the year
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(ii)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
8 October 2013. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yung Kwok
Tsui, Mr. Ming Shu Leung and Mr. Siu Keung Ng. Mr.
Yung Kwok Tsui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration structure and policy for all Directors
and senior management as well as the specific
remuneration packages for the executive Directors
and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy. No Director takes part
in any discussion on his own remuneration. The
Company'’s objective for its remuneration policy is
to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and has
reviewed the remuneration policy and structure
relating to the Directors and senior management
of the Company and the Company’s share option
scheme.

(ii)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERRE (B)
The remuneration of the members of the senior HE_ZT-NF+_A=1T—HLFE
management of the Group by band for the year REESSAEBESREEERKE /N
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below: SHEHINAT -
Remuneration bands Number of persons
&2 E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,000 7T 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T E 1,500,000 47T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T 1
Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration BiE EMARAMSE TN BT RENE
and the five highest paid employees as required to EEMe ki MEERE—F
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing BN S mAMTE6 KT -
Rules are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(iii) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established
on 8 October 2013. It comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Honghui
Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Ziming Yang
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession
planning of Directors and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration
to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below),
S0 as to develop and review measurable objectives
for the implementing the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2019 and reviewed
the size, diversity and composition of the Board.

(iii)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

=S

(iv)

v)

BARE (H)

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee was
established on 8 October 2013. It comprises
one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Keung
Ng, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui and Mr. Ming Shu
Leung. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is the chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Corporate Governance
Committee are to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, the
training and continuous professional development of
the Company’s Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
and to review the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2019
and has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
policies and practices and sufficiency of training to
the Company’s Directors and senior management.

Independent Board Committee

An independent committee of the Board, comprising
all of the independent non-executive Directors, was
formed for the purpose of advising the independent
shareholders in respect of an acquisition of entire
equity interest in Junyuan Development (i.e. the
“Junyuan Acquisition”). Junyuan Development is a
company established under the laws of the People
of China and was wholly owned by Mr. Ziming
Yang, the Chairman, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

The Independent Board Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019
to review as to whether the terms of the Junyuan
Acquisition were fair and reasonable, on normal
commercial terms or better and were in the interests
of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. For regular Board
meetings, notices of at least 14 days are given to facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and agenda with
supporting papers are sent to Directors not less than 3
days before the relevant meeting is held. Directors may
propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
At the meeting, the Directors are provided with the relevant
documents to be considered and approved. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the board meeting is held. Minutes of Board
meetings are taken by the Company Secretary or a duly
appointed secretary of the Board meeting and are open for
inspection by any Director.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”), Adjourned
EGM, the meetings of the Board and other Board
committees held during the year:

Board
RREEAS gzg
Executive Directors Hi7Es
Mr. Ziming Yang FERLE 11 o 5/6
M. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 1 1 6/6
M. Rongain Ke FRyEE 01 0 6/6
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
Directors
M. Yung Kiwok Teui BAEEE 1 1 6/6
Mr. Honghui Chen RLBLE 0 11 6/6
Mr. Ming Shu Leung RitRrE o 11 6/6

Committee

ENzRe

EEERRSE (R)

EEEEE

SEEERTNET BFELIOR HEF
BE8ET—R-REHEZTSEAME BN
BITHBAERNZ D 4REERM - UEE
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AeRB TR IREERESF - EFAM
ITEARANERZZN EHEFTSTRZEN
BINEIE - REE L EEERHAEXIA
HEBLAE NEFESRARRAIERR
N 2REFHERSHCENVIRIER
UHRFRHEERMCETE EFERAL
BHARMEREAZENEEZTSSRNER
'Ry - I RFRETAESFER -

TREJISEFHEFRARTHRRAFAE
(TRFRBFAE])  BREIASES EF
TERMHEMEREEREEENER

Meetings attended/held
hE/Bres

Corporate Independent
governance board
committee  committee
t¥ER  BIEE
ReZ8E Z88 Z88

Nomination
committee

Audit Remuneration
committee

FHzRe

NATNER  NATER 1 NANER  NATER
NATEA 1 NATER 1 NATER
NATER NATER NATER NATER  NATER
22 1 NATER n 22
22 NAT@ER 1N NATER 22

22 1/1 1/1 1/1 212
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEREREE (R)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2019, subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors
or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively represent
the best interests of the Group and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good
judgment, and to provide practical insights and diverse
perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board, the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates
for director, consider diversity (including, but not limited
to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and
such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then
current and anticipated future needs of the Board and
the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new
board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

o the highest professional and personal ethics;

° broad experience in business;

° ability to provide insights and practical wisdom
based on their experience and expertise;

° commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

° sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

their service on other boards of public companies
should be limited to a reasonable number;

° compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and
° ability to develop a good working relationship with

other Board members and contribute to the Board’s
working relationship with senior management of the
Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on
8 October 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis,
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on the Company’s Board
Nomination Policy and a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in the Group’s core markets and
distribution channels.

The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board and also the needs of the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect.
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EEREREE (R)

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and financial position to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. In addition, briefings and updates on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements are provided to the
Board during Board meetings to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. In November 2019, the Company, together with
its legal adviser, organized a training session to provide the
Directors with an update on the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this announcement, the roles of the Chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual as this ensures better checks and
balances and hence better corporate governance. Mr.
Ziming Yang holds the position of the Chairman, who
is primarily responsible for strategic positioning. Mr. Siu
Keung Ng serves as the chief executive officer, who is
primarily responsible for the operations and business
development of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Siu Keung Ng will step down as chief executive officer
of the Group and Mr. Ziming Yang will hold the positions
of Chairman and chief executive officer with effect from
12 March 2020. Mr. Ng will continue to be an executive
Director of the Company. Such practice deviates from
Code Provision A.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of
Chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Mr. Yang’s extensive experience in the industry
and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yang provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership, allows for more effective
planning and execution of long-term business strategies
and enhances efficiency in decision-making.

As all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board committees,
and there are independent non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is
therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board. The Board will continue to review and monitor the
practices of the Company for the purpose of complying
with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices of the Company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the
Group to protect the overall interests of the shareholders
and the Group. They serve actively on the Board and its
committees to provide their independent and objective
views.
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EEREREE (R)

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the
“Securities Dealing Code”). Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

Senior management who, because of their office in
the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Dealing Code when dealing in
the Company’s shares.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lai Wah Wong, the Company Secretary of the
Company, is a full-time employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She
also serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and other board
committees as organised by the Board from time to
time. Ms. Wong is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman and/or the chief executive officer on
governance matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the financial year, the Company Secretary complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 54 to 60 in the annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure
the Company maintains a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition
and to manage operational risks. Review of the Group’s
internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions. The controls built into the risk management
system are intended to manage, not eliminate, significant
risks in the Group’s business environment.

The Group’s risk management framework includes the
following elements:

° identify significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks
on the Group’s business;

° develop necessary measures to manage those
risks;

° monitor and review the effectiveness of such
measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of
the Group was assisted by the Group’s internal audit
department so that the Group could ensure new and
emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation are
promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and
evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. These are
on-going processes and our Audit Committee reviews
periodically the Group’s risk management systems.
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EEREREE (R)

Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could
take and effectiveness of risk management measures.
Based on the reports from the Group’s internal control
department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal controls
as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the
year and in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and the Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as going concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the
external auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year, the fees payable to KPMG or its affiliated
firms comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit EEEZ
Review of interim results ERPEEE
Internal control review BEER S
Other non-audit services HAnIERFT RS

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Ziming Yang, Acute Result Holdings Limited (“Acute
Result”), Ascend Fame Limited (“Ascend Fame”), Prime
Ascend Limited (“Prime Ascend”) are the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of
the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”). Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that none of them is engaged in, or interested
in any business (other than the Group) which directly or
indirectly competes or may compete with the business
of the Group. To protect the Group from any potential
competition, the Controlling Shareholders have given an
irrevocable non-compete undertaking in the Group’s favour
on 8 October 2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
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EEREREE (R)

In order to properly manage any potential or actual
conflict of interests between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders in relation to the compliance
and enforcement of the non-compete undertaking, the
Company has adopted the following corporate governance
measures:

(@ the independent non-executive Directors will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the
undertaking given by the Controlling Shareholders
under the Deed of Non-competition;

(b) the Controlling Shareholders undertake to provide
all information requested by the Company which is
necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and the enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition;

(© the Company will disclose decisions on matters
reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors relating to compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition in
the annual reports of the Company; and

(d) the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual
declaration on compliance with their undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition in the annual
report of the Company.

The Directors consider that the above corporate
governance measures are sufficient to manage any
potential conflict of interests between the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates and the
Group and to protect the interests of the shareholders, in
particular, the minority shareholders.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that he/it has complied with the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance
and enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and
confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been
complied with.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance
structure, enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow all
shareholders to engage actively with the Company. Under
the Company’s articles of association, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the
Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)

(ii)

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings where the shareholders meet and
exchange views with the Board, and to exercise
their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall
arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing
details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 20 business days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at
Unit A&B, 26 Floor, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon or via email to
ir@cabbeen.com.
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(iii)

BARE (H)

Convening extraordinary general
meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Directors or the Company Secretary and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Hong
Kong currently situated at Unit A&B, 26 Floor,
Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.
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(iv)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The notice of annual general meeting together
with the accompanying circular setting out the
relevant information as required under the Listing
Rules are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting has
been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to
one vote. Details of the poll voting procedures are
set out in the circular sent to shareholders prior to
the meeting and explained at the commencement
of the meeting. Voting results are posted on the
Company'’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

Procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to the Article 85 of the articles of
associations of the Company, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a Notice (as defined therein) signed
by a Member (as defined therein) (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a Notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the Notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2019.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ziming Yang (#£8), aged 48, is the founder of
the Group. He is also the chairman of the Board of the
Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
on 3 November 2011. Mr. Yang is primarily responsible
for overall corporate strategies, planning and business
development, and leads the Group’s design and research
and development team. From 12 March 2020 onwards,
Mr. Yang will also be the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Mr. Yang first started his fashion and wholesale of apparel
business in April 1992. In October 1997, Mr. Yang began
to design and wholesale Cabbeen branded apparel. Mr.
Yang has over 20 years of experience in design. He has
been one of the most famous designers in China, who
won the award for “Best Menswear Designer”™ (51£5
225 5HEM) at the China International Fashion Week* (#
Bl BIFREFEE9A) in 2009 and “The 14th China Fashion
Design Top Award™ (£ 14E+ B R T2 TE5E), which
is the top honor in apparel design in China in 2010. Mr.
Yang was accredited as “2010 Quanzhou Economic
Figure” (20105 /E R INEBEAY) and was the member
of the 10th China Young Entrepreneurs Association (55

TEFRSFLEXRBELE) in 2010. In 2011, he was
the honorable president of Shishi Textile & Garments
Commerce Chamber’s Council (AEim#RERS
BEeXEEER) and a committee member of the 11th
Committee of All-China Youth Federation (22 B &F
MAeFE+—EEE8EZ8). In 2012, Mr. Yang was the
first president of the Fashion Designers’ Association of
Fujian Province* (f@f2 & IRERETENHEE —EEK) and
the honorable president of Quanzhou APEC Commerce
Chamber’s Council* (RMAPECHBEHERZEER). In
March 2013, Mr. Yang became the consulting professor
of Beijing Institute of Fashion Technology (1t 5 ARZE 2
B). In April 2014, Fujian Normal University (18 Z2AM &5 A
E) appointed Mr. Yang as a guest professor. In addition,
Mr. Yang is currently the vice president and a member
of the standing committee and the arts committee of
the China Fashion Designers Association (FBAREE R
sTEM ). Mr. Yang has been the vice president of the
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

standing committee of the China Garment Association*
(PEARE ) since October 2013. In April 2013,
Mr. Yang was awarded as 2012 Innovative person of China
textile industry* (20127 BI#h 41T X FE RIFTAY)) by The
Association of China Textile Industry* (F° Bl % 4% T 228
£9). In 2015, Mr. Yang was awarded the “New China
Annual Award for Artistic Innovation™ (¥ B &7 8l %74
JE K 2¥) by the China Fashion Designers Association and
New China Clothing Industry Innovation & Development
Fund* (T BIRREEXEFEEESE). Since August
2019, Mr. Yang has been a consultant for the Guangdong
branch of the China Fashion Designers Association. He
also participated in the design and production of the
apparel used for the civilian parade held during the 70th
anniversary of the People’s Republic of China. Since 2020,
Mr. Yang has been an anti-drug ambassador for Shishi city.

Mr. Yang received his EMBA in Sun Yat-Sen University (4
LR in June 2011. Mr. Yang is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Rongqin Ke (fal#5%X) who is also our executive Director.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (R43&), aged 49, is one of the
founding members of the Group and has been appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 18 February
2013. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is primarily responsible for overall
corporate planning and strategy execution and is the chief
executive officer of the Group since July 2010. Mr. Ng
will step down as chief executive officer with effect from
12 March 2020. He will remain as an executive Director
and one of the authorized representatives of the Company,
and will be responsible for investor relations and legal
matters of the Company.

Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in various
aspects, including business operation, management,
sales, procurement, financial and human resource.
Mr. Ng obtained his bachelor’s degree in material
engineering majoring in forge craft and equipment from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/832 AE2) in July 1992,
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EEREREEEBERE (F)

Mr. Ronggqin Ke (f1#58%), aged 45, is one of the founding
members of the Group and has been appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 18 February
2013. Mr. Rongain Ke is primarily responsible for supply
chain, human resources and financial management. Mr.
Ke has over 20 years of experience in various aspects,
including manufacturing, product design and research and
development and procurement.

Mr. Ke obtained his diploma certificate in business
administration from Hunan University of Technology (4
L% KE) in January 2008. Mr. Ke was accredited as
“2011-2012 Top Ten Professional Managers of Apparel
Industry in Guangdong Province” (2011-20125E &R &
AREETT R HEREE IR A) in August 2012. He completed
the EMBA program at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University (LUK B2 28/ Z265) in June 2013.

Mr. Rongain Ke is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ziming Yang.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (#%%&El), aged 51, is an
independent non-executive Director and was appointed
to the Board on 18 February 2013. Mr. Tsui has over
20 years of extensive experience in auditing and
accounting, including experience from corporations and
an international accounting firm. Mr. Tsui joined Ju Teng
International Holdings Limited (EBIFRIEA AR A )
(stock code: 3336) in August 2004 and has been the
company'’s executive director and chief financial officer
since its listing in the Stock Exchange and served as the
company secretary from August 2004 to March 2017.

He has also respectively been an independent non-
executive director of Shenguan Holdings (Group) Limited
(rE A% (@) AR A7) (stock code: 829) since
September 2009, SITC International Holdings Company
Limited (BE2BEIZRERAF]) (stock code: 1308)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

since September 2010 and Intron Technology Holdings
Limited (BR1ERHLIZRR GBR A 7)) (stock code: 1760) since
July 2018, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tsui was also an independent non-executive director
of 361 Degrees International Limited (361/Z Bl A& R A7)
(stock code: 1361) from September 2012 to May 2019.

Mr. Tsui obtained his bachelor’s degree of business in
accounting from Curtin University of Technology in August
1992 and his master’s degree of corporate governance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2007. Mr. Tsui has been a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 1997, a
member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand since June 2000, and a member of CPA Australia
since September 1996. He has also been a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
December 2007.

Mr. Honghui Chen (B %= &), aged 48, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to the Board
on 18 February 2013. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of
extensive experience teaching universities in the fields
of management, economics and corporate social
responsibility. From July 1993 to June 2003, Mr. Chen
worked in Wuhan University of Science and Technology,
primarily teaching management and economics. From
July 2008 till now, Mr. Chen has worked in Sun Yat-Sen
University, primarily teaching courses including strategic
management and corporate social responsibility. Mr.
Chen had been granted the title of deputy professor
from April 2004 to July 2008 and has been subsequently
granted the title of professor since July 2008. Mr. Chen
had also been the deputy dean of Lingnan College in
Sun Yat-Sen University from November 2007 to March
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EEREREEEBERE (F)

2012 and has been the director of the Research Center
for Corporate Social Responsibility at Lingnan College
of Sun Yat-Sen University* (FIUAZEmEREMELS
FEMFEA L E) from July 2009 and the chair of the
Department of Business Management at Lingnan College
of Sun Yat-Sen University* (1L AZ25E 5 B OEE R
ZE1E), respectively. From 2004 till now, Mr. Chen has
done various researches on the topics of corporate social
responsibility and strategic management and economics
efficiency, which were subsidies by the PRC or local
government. The essay written by Mr. Chen in 2007 was
accredited as the Second Prize of The Philosophy and
Society Science Outstanding Achievement in Guangdong
Province* (BR& B 21 SR 2EBFKR _FH).

Mr. Chen has been the independent director of Guangzhou
Grandbuy Co., Ltd. (B/MNTEBARHARLR]) (SZSE
stock code: 002187) since September 2016 and of China
National Accord Medicines Corporation Ltd (ER KK E
SBAMIAR (D B PR A 7)) (SZSE stock code: 0020028) on
14 March 2017, both companies are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen obtained the Qualification of Teacher of the PRC
in 1996. He also obtained his doctoral degree in enterprise
management from Zhejiang University in June 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ming Shu Leung (R #1&), aged 44, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 February
2013. Mr. Leung founded internet private equity fund
Harmony Capital as founding partner in January 2018.
Mr. Leung has been the company secretary of China ITS
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (FEEREBRAFERBRAF),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1900), since January 2008 and the chief financial officer
of this company from January 2008 to January 2018. He
has also been an independent non-executive director of
Comtec Solar Systems Group Limited (F#F+52 AF58E
Rz EEAR AR (stock code: 712) since June 2008
Sun King Power Electronics Group Limited (stock code:
580) since March 2017, and Renrui Human Resources
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 6919) since
November 2019, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Leung has over 15 years of experience in the areas
of corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Leung started
his professional career at PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong as an auditor in 1998. He then worked at
the global corporate finance division of Arthur Andersen
& Co. in Hong Kong, which subsequently merged with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, until December 2000. From
July 2001 to February 2003, Mr. Leung also worked as
a business consultant in Market Catalyst International
(Hong Kong) Limited, where he advised companies on
issues of strategy, organization and operations. Mr. Leung
then spent approximately three years from February
2003 to January 2006 at CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ-
listed company, as a senior manager in the mergers and
acquisitions department, and as the chief financial officer
of China.com Inc., a subsidiary of CDC Corporation and
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. From February
2006 to October 2006, Mr. Leung served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Xinwei Telecom Technology
Co., Ltd., a related party of KEEERHERHER AT
(Datang Telecom Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed
on The Shanghai Stock Exchange) which is engaged in
the development of telecommunication standard and
manufacture of telecommunication equipment. From
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EEREREEEBERE (F)

November 2006 to January 2008, he served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Lingtu Spacecom Technology
Co., Ltd (StREEEZARKAERAT]), a subsidiary of
Beijing Lingtu Software Co., Ltd (It REBE A4 EAMTA
R A7), a PRC digital mapping and navigation software
company.

Mr. Leung obtained his bachelor’s degree in arts with
first class honor in accountancy from The City University
of Hong Kong in June 1998 and a master’s degree in
accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA) and a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lai Wah Wong (EE#), aged 45, is the chief
financial officer of the Group. Ms. Wong is also
the company secretary and one of the authorized
representatives of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the
group in April 2012 and is primarily responsible for overall
financial management and company secretarial affairs
and coordination of investor relations. Ms. Wong has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, tax and financial
management. Prior to joining us, she had worked in
international accounting firms and other companies listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong
obtained her bachelor’s degree of arts in accounting at The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1997 and master’s
degree of science in corporate finance at The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2014. She is also
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are wholesaling and
retailing of branded menswear and related accessories
in the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, aggregate
sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 9.9% (2018: 11.5%) and 35.1% (2018:
38.5%), respectively, of the Group’s total revenue for the
year.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers of OEM products accounted for 12.4%
(2018: 11.5%) and 34.2% (2018: 28.3%), respectively, of
the Group’s total purchases from suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out on
page 263 of the annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 98 to 262 of the annual
report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 26 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB65.3 million.

DIVIDEND

On 5 August 2019, the Company declared an interim
dividend of HK7.5 cents (2018: HK13.2 cents) per ordinary
share for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HKB.0 cents (2018: HK4.8 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB201,000 (2018: RMB85,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-
current assets (including investment properties, other
property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land
held for own use under operating leases, intangible assets
and interest in an associate) are set out in notes 9 to 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business overview and financial
performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
provided in the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to
fashion business and some are from external sources.
Major risks are summarized below.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EXEHE(R)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Fashion risk

Our success depends on our ability to define
products trends and anticipate, gauge and react to
changing consumer demands in a timely manner.
Failure to anticipate and respond timely to changing
consumer preferences could lead to lower sales
and excess inventory levels. With respect to each
design concept, it is important to have the right
volume of stocks and strike the right balance in the
mix between fashion basics and the latest trends.
To track the acceptance of our fashion concept
in the market closely, we introduce products in
different batches throughout the season and will
further shorten the product development cycle in
order to reduce the lead time between production
and delivery to customers. In addition, shopping
patterns and the length of product seasons can vary
in different parts of mainland China. Fashion designs
which are popular in one province of mainland China
at a given time may not be as popular in another
local market.

Intense competition

We compete not only with local Chinese menswear
brands, but also with other international fashion
brands. Areas of competition include product
designs, production costs, marketing programs,
customer services. If we do not respond timely to
our competitors, our costs may increase or the
consumer demand for our products may decline
and our revenue and profits would decrease.

Macroeconomic and social environment
The risk exists that negative macroeconomic
changes may result in negative changes in the
business environment. Fashion products may be
considered as discretionary items for customers.
Slower consumer spending may result in reduced
demand for our products, reduced orders from our
distributors, order cancellations, higher discounts,
increased inventories, lower revenue and margins. It
is therefore important that the Group is aware of any
such changes of economic environment and adjusts
its store opening plan, buying volume and business
plan under different market conditions.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FRF i R B
BB BURA B IR R M8 2 -
TEOR - FRAENE K B FE S T B H B
EFKREVBEN o ReeTRBII & EE T
B L) BB S0 Al B R R B IR 8
EREREBERASNFEKT - REEE
uc'uﬁanrﬁﬁ.:. C EREE E’ﬂ?f@fé SN

i@&ﬁm%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ B2 S

BEVTHEHEEER - REYVEHRFIN

LI SEm S EMEXRE - BN
—FApHHEHER - WiGE—FHEE
EEmF B - DU D E A A AT
TEPZEREME ot - BYER &
EmHEEEHRERP RN AREH
Hh i T £ o PO RE B R R B 3 A
éhmﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%?&fr? E;\Eﬁ f
B TISIMT ©

Y EL|

HFIMBEFHF MERAFEARLEER
mhE - TRREEMBEREERE o B
MBI B IR E fn kAT« EERKA - &
BN EP IR o W PIRE M e
BEH T OB BB MRKAR
B EFPHRMNERT K TE - A
K3 fFIrg Wead Bos RRL >

EERBRMER
ﬁﬁxﬁlJﬂ’U?%ﬁ%“fﬁﬁfti@Lﬁ%ﬂ‘“
RIRBETNESHNER - HEE R B
Hﬁﬁi“iiuuﬁ?%%%ﬁ«ﬁﬁ%?uu c HEX
AR e S B B E M e & RO
L RED ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ’]ﬂ%ﬁd‘ BUHET
B EMEENM - FEIEN - ks k
7T'J/F’?TIW Rt - NSRBI N REL
BIREHEAEE - WRETR TR
%E’ﬂ%aﬁr%ﬂ EmBEEREHGHRE -



(iv)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In addition, if any event which materially and
adversely affect the social environment of the
markets where we operate arises, such as the
outbreak of novel coronavirus in the PRC since
January 2020, such event may cause a significant
impact on our ability to operate business in a
normal manner. Such event may cause disruptions
to our normal business activities, manufacturing
of products by us and/or our suppliers, logistics
involved in distributing our products, among other
aspects of our business. The Group’s operating
results and financial condition may be materially and
adversely affected as a result.

Supply chain

We operate manufacturing facilities in Fujian,
the PRC since November 2019 for producing
some of our core products. We still depend upon
independent manufacturers to produce majority of
our products and materials. Any disruption in the
supply of fabric, raw materials and products from
suppliers may cause problems in our supply chain.
We have no long-term contracts with any of our
suppliers and we may need to compete with other
companies for fabrics, raw materials and apparel
products. Nevertheless, we have developed long-
standing relationships with a number of our vendors
so as to minimize the impact from any supply
disruptions and ensure we can locate alternative
suppliers of comparable quality at a reasonable
price all the time. For the year ended 31 December
2019, 34.5% (2018: 28.3%) of our products were
produced by our top five suppliers and we have
more than five years’ business relationship with
these suppliers.

(iv)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EXEHE(R)

(v)

(vi)

Financial conditions of our distributors

We extend credit to our distributors based on as
assessments of their financial conditions, repayment
history and sales performance of the retail outlets
operated by them, generally without requiring
collateral. To assist in the scheduling of production
of our products, our customers could place orders
four to five months ahead of delivery under our
sales fair ordering system. These advance orders
may be cancelled and the risk of cancellation may
increase when dealing with distributors struggling
with financial difficulties. A slowing economy could
also adversely affect the financial conditions of our
customers, which in turn could have an adverse
effect on our results of operation. In addition,
product sales are dependent in part on an appealing
store environment to attract consumers, which
requires continuing investments by distributors.
Distributors that experience financial difficulties may
fail to make such investments and result in lower
sales and orders for our products.

Information system

We are dependent on information technology
systems and networks, including the internet and
third-party hosted services across many of our
operating activities, including sales and distribution,
ordering and purchases, sales and distribution,
inventory management in all retail outlets,
e-commerce business, customer relationship
management, digital marketing and financial
reporting. Any material disruption or slowdown of
our IT systems, including a disruption or slowdown
caused by our failure to successfully upgrade our
systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks
could cause a loss of data or operation interruption.
Therefore, we invest continuously in our IT and
ERP system so as to keep up with the technology
security and availability and integrity of critical
operation data.
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(vii)

(viii)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Reputational risk

Cabbeen is one of the leading Chinese fashion
causal designer brands and our success depends
on our ability to maintain and enhance our brand
image and reputation. Maintaining and promoting
our brands will depend on our product design,
marketing efforts and product quality. In addition,
effect of our marketing activities depends on
our ability to adapt to the rapid changing media
environment, including social media and online
advertising campaigns. Should existing and potential
customers lose confidence in Cabbeen/or one of
its brands, or in the industry in general, because
of negative publicity, the Group’s sales would
decrease. To safeguard and manage the brand,
it is important that the Group continues to uphold
its brand value, corporate image, product safety
and maintain high business ethics. In addition,
it is also important that communication with our
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders is
accurate, transparent and reliable.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which
our retail stores, suppliers and customers are
located could adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition.

Key Relationships

(i)

Employees

To remain competitive in the retail apparel industry,
we must attract, develop, and retain skilled
employees in our design, merchandising, supply
chain, marketing, and other functions.

(vii)

(viii)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EXEHE(R)

(ii)

We strive to motivate employees with a clear
career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. We provide
pre-employment and on-the-job training and
development opportunities to our staff members.
The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, sales and production, customer
services, quality control, sales fairs planning,
workplace ethics and training of other areas relevant
to the industry.

We conduct employee engagement survey across
its Hong Kong and mainland China operations once
a year. We seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from our employees for enhancing
workplace productivity and harmony.

In addition, we offer competitive remuneration
packages to employees and have also adopted
share option schemes to recognize and reward the
contribution of the employees to the growth and
development of the Group.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors and take great care
to ensure that they share our commitment to
quality and ethics. We carefully select our suppliers
and require them to satisfy certain assessment
criteria including track record, experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high-quality
products and quality control effectiveness. We also
require our suppliers to comply with our anti-bribery

policy.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Distributors

We sell our products to end customers through
third-party distributors. We work with our
distributors like we are business partners and
ensure we share the view for upholding our brand
value and customer services, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to
drive sales growth. We and our distributors reach an
agreement on retail sales target and store expansion
plan before they place their orders. We require
our distributors and sub-distributors to comply
with our retail policies, including but not limited to
nationwide product retail selling price, standard
store images, promotional activities and use of our
ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition
and repayment history of our distributors, and retail
sales performance of the stores operated by them.

(iv) Customers

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse
range of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality
fashion with our various brands to our customers.
We also stay connected with our customers. We
maintain our VIP database and have ongoing
communications with our customers through mainly
social media. We also work with our distributors
and provide training to their key sales personnel to
provide quality and value-added customer services
at retail channel.

Environmental Policies

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. We strive to minimize our environmental impact
by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. We also require our own
factory and factories of our suppliers to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and
rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators.

(iii)

(iv)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EXEHE(R)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China
and Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2019 and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Siu Keung Ng

Mr. Rongain Ke

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui

Mr. Honghui Chen

Mr. Ming Shu Leung
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2019 subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
are revealed on note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out
on pages 54 to 60 of the annual report. In accordance
with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ming Shu Leung will retire
from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”
and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”
and in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest
in any competing business with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the year under review. Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has complied with the
non-compete undertaking given by them to the Company
under the Deed of Non-competition on 8 October 2013.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all
the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their
offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the year under review. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions for the year as disclosed
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements also
constituted connected transactions as defined under the
Listing Rules. Details of such connected transactions (as
defined under the Listing Rules) are set out below:

Acquisition of entire equity interest of
Junyuan Development

On 3 July 2019, a resolution was passed at the Company’s
Adjourned EGM to approve the acquisition of the entire
registered capital of Junyuan Development by the Group
for a tentative consideration of RMB105.5 million (i.e. the
Junyuan Acquisition), details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 17 May 2019 and
circular dated 6 June 2019.

The Junyuan Acquisition was completed on 10 July 2019
after all the conditions precedent as set out in the equity
transfer agreement were met. At the Junyuan Acquisition
Completion Date, total assets and total liabilities of
Junyuan Development was RMB175.3 million and
RMB67.7 million, respectively. The final consideration was
RMB107.6 million.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EXEHE(R)

Lease of properties from Junyuan
Development

Junyuan Development was wholly owned by Mr. Ziming
Yang, the Chairman and an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing
Rules) of the Company, until 10 July 2019 on which the
Group completed the Junyuan Acquisition. Junyuan
Development was therefore a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules before
10 July 2019.

The Group entered into lease agreements with Junyuan
Development on 31 May 2018 to lease certain premises
at Shishi City, Fujian Province, from Junyuan Development
for a term of one year commencing from 1 June 2018 to
31 May 2019 (the “2018 Leases”). Total rental payable
by the Group under the lease agreements amounted to
RMB1,601,546.

Upon expiry of the 2018 Leases, the Group entered into
new lease agreements with Junyuan Development on
31 May 2019 to continue to lease the relevant premises
for another year from 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020 (“2019
Leases”). Total rental payable by the Group under the
2019 Leases amounted to RMB1,389,545.

2018 Leases and 2019 Leases were fully exempt from
the annual review, independent shareholders’ approval
and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as they were entered into on normal
commercial terms, the applicable percentage ratios (as
defined under the Listing Rules) were less than 5% and
the aggregate annual amount payable by the Group to
Junyuan Development was less than HK$3,000,000.

The transactions contemplated under the 2018
Leases and 2019 Leases constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. During the period from 1 January 2019 to
9 July 2019, total rental paid or payable by the Group
under the above leases amounted to RMB787,000.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Opinion from the independent non-executive
Directors on the connected transactions

The Directors (including all independent non-executive
Directors) have reviewed the above connected transactions
and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

) on normal commercial terms or better; and

3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the aforesaid connected
transactions.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the Company

Number of

Name of director shares held

ESf4

FisERERE

EERETBETHRAERESNER

R-ZE—NF+-A=+—H EERARQAF
FETBRAEBRARRILRERBZE(EER
BHERAE GO ([EBEREAEMRE ) EXVEL)
WRR - RN REEEFREELERN A
NARBEES LB KROIE 2B FEZE
iR KORE - SRR _E TR BIRT &%+
Frel F B TTAZESETESRR H IR LEFE]
(MBESFRA ) BRITAE AR R R ZFTH
m KRBT -

RAERXTNEFE

Number of

underlying
shares Approximate
comprised percentage of
in options® shares in issue®
BREmS R FERTRH
HRRGEE O R AL
Mr. Ziming Yang"@S 15 528 5 A (el 405,243,209 200,000 405,443,209 60.64%
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 2,926,000 1,300,000 4,226,000 0.6321%
Mr. Ronggin Ke FsHEE 3,850,000 2,300,000 6,150,000 0.9198%

(1) Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which

Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.

Multiplus International Limited (“Multiplus”) is owned as to
99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of
a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by and between
Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang in addition to the voting right
attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang holds in Multiplus, he also
has the right to control the exercise of the voting rights attached
to all the shares in Multiplus held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly,
Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Multiplus is interested.

Ms. Ke Liting was granted 200,000 share options pursuant to
Share Option Scheme (as defined below) of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(4) Mr. Ziming Yang is the spouse of Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly,
Mr. Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Ms. Liting Ke is interested.

5) These represent interest in underlying shares of the Share Option
Schemes granted (as defined below) by the Company.

(6) Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2019.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

EEERE (H)

@ SEALERTEBEL MRS - Bt - HEE
WEASNAEELIREEEN 2RO THEE

i -

®) I RARTFE BRI ERE S (EE R T WiE

RAR () 4k o

6) ERZZE-NF+ZA=Z+t—HHEH
668,593,000 AN E B BTN ETE -

B EXRBEIN  R_T—NF+_A=+—
B BMEBEEERARRERITRABULESE
EBEHNBEARKNR B SREERBRER (E
EREBEFNHEHRPIZEXVER) By - HHEEAR
0 R AEHERE B LR AR RIRIERE 75 K 3
515515 362 IR 7ATF & 2 B ot A E s
SRR - IIRBRETRIZARTTAEARRE K
B X TV s MOk B o

“E-NEER FEBRAH R A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the persons or corporations
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRNVEDZRKR

R=ZT—nE+-A=+—8  UFALEA
BGEEERAATEETHAR) RAAT
1) B A BRAR 9 o0 i 1R 1 55
XV 52 R3S BIEXBAAR THBERRS
MR S T B % 306 R A T ITE B
MRS TR -

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interest®
FRESY
51 RERtE RGO EE Botke®
Ms Liting Ke!"@® Interest in a controlled corporation/ 405,443,209 60.64%
RBEz L e Interest of spouse
RERZENER T EOER
Acute Result?® Beneficial owner 242,493,209 36.27%
P e BaEEA
Ascend Fame®® Beneficial owner 52,500,000 7.85%
AEO BREAA
Keen Network®® Beneficial owner 31,500,000 4.71%
el BREAA
Prime Ascend®® Interest in a controlled corporation 31,500,000 4.71%
TR @ REEE N ER
Multiplus® Beneficial owner 78,750,000 11.78%
2o BREAA
1) Ms. Liting Ke is the spouse of Mr. Ziming Yang. Accordingly, (1) FEEZ T RIGERALENLS - Bt - FER

Ms. Liting Ke is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Mr. Ziming Yang is interested.

2) Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Multiplus is owned as to 99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by
Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated
31 July 2012 by and between Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang,
in addition to the voting right attached to the share Mr. Ziming
Yang holds in Multiplus, he also has the right to control the
exercise of the voting rights attached to all the shares in Multiplus
held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to
be interested in all the shares in which Multiplus is interested.

Keen Network Holdings Limited (“Keen Network”) is owned
as to 33.33% by Prime Ascend, 33.33% by Dominant Success
Holdings Limited (“Dominant Success”) and 33.33% by Rosy
Connect Investments Limited (‘Rosy Connect”). Prime Ascend
is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Ziming Yang. Dominant
Success is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Siu Keung Ng.
Rosy Connect is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Rongqgin Ke.
Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr. Ronggin Ke are
executive Directors of the Company.

By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by
and among the shareholders of Keen Network, in addition to the
voting rights attached to the shares in Keen Network that it holds,
Prime Ascend also has the right to control the exercise of the
voting rights attached to all the shares in Keen Network held by
other shareholders. Accordingly, Prime Ascend is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Keen Network is interested.

Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019,
the Directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EXEHE(R)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of the Group. Options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 8,520,000 shares of the
Company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) were granted on
8 October 2013. The exercise price per Share is
HK$2.024, being 80% of the initial public offering price. No
further option could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme after 8 October 2013. All Pre-IPO Share
Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
may be exercised during the option period commencing
from the first anniversary of the Listing Date to the date
falling 10 years from the grant date of the Pre-IPO Share
Options and can only be exercised in the following manner:

(i) 30% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the first anniversary of the Listing
Date;

(i) 60% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the second anniversary of the Listing
Date; and

(iii) 100% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the third anniversary of the Listing
Date.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December
2019 are as follows:

EEERE (H)

R-E-NF+-A=+—BERARFER
Eﬁﬂx%ﬁl mr

Exercised
Outstanding during  Lapsed during Cancelled during Outstanding
asat theyearended theyearended  the year ended asat
1January  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
Z2-F Z2-NF E-NE E-NE E2-NF
-f-B  tZA=t-B t+ZA=t-B tZAZt-B tZRZ+-H
HATE  LEEEAR 0 LEERAM 0 LEEDEH BAATR
Directors £z
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROuEE 900,000 - - - 900,000
Mr. Ronggin Ke fBsEE 700,000 - - - 700,000
Others 2t 1,650,000 - (200,000 - 1,350,000
Total gt 3,150,000 - (200,000) - 2,950,000

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 2,950,000, representing
approximately 0.44% of the total number of Company’s
issued shares as at the date of this report, i.e. 668,593,000
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on
8 October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding certain
eligible persons for their past contributions and attracting
and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject
to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on 28 October 2013.

BIBEERAFRBEERIERETEIR TEITH
A& 10 48815 2,950,000 % + {5 AN F 3 B BIAR L
B2 1T AR 428 (BN 668,593,000 A A% 17 ) #9
0.44% °

RS E

RRARRZZE—=F+ A\ BERMAERET
3 EERBETAERALBENER - R
SINEREAEENKR EERAXNNEEER
R/ REBEBAR S EHALENRE - &
RHAINE R A BERALTHIARA T M5

HRENFERRZ - BRI T —=F
TAZTNBEFTFHERGRER - B

iR I P ARIE AN & 19 AR RIER AT 4%

“E-NEER FEBRAH R A
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EXEHE(R)

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed,
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any Directors or
proposed Director (including non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. The maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e.
70,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company'’s issued share capital from time to time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised;
however, the Board may, subject to the provisions of the
Listing Rules, in its absolute discretion when offering the
grant of an Option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as it may think fit. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company a nominal consideration in total HK$1.00 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 30 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@ the nominal value of a share;

(b) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the offer
date; and

() the average closing price of a share as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five Business Days (as defined in the
Listing Rules) immediately preceding the offer date.

EEERE (H)

BREATNEFSEENHRREBRERTS
HRFBER 1T - IEB R N SBERE B
HRERT 104 - BB ART A —EHRT
FIATEE AT - BRI ETARBIRE - mEFES
RBEE  ATEREBBMNEER HBRERE
R RCRERT S Prat 2 i hn A R R AR A0 (1] 16k
-~ HRIPRF] - BEERTSI2REANELD
B BAAE R 30 A 3k 2 Al 5 4 P 2 1% 3 A A B )
ARBXMNEH100BTZBENRE - B
BITEEHESFS2ENBETE - ETFE
R T&REE

(@ IEE:

b) REXAHEXMEHRERMIIKD
Wi : &

© EREZENEHMAAEZEXBE(ERRL
MR BAMRPTE R RERMIIK
U E

—E-NEFEH  FERHERAS



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

Details of movements in the share options as at R-ZE—NF+=A=+—BREEREZ
31 December 2019 which have been granted under the HHRIBRERNEEFBUOT
Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Granted Exercised Cancelled
Qutstanding during the during the duringthe  Outstanding
asat year ended year ended year ended asat  Exercise
1January  31December  31December 31 December 31 December Price  Date of Exercisable
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 (HK$) ~ grant period
iy B2 B2 B2 R
ZE-nE ZB-AE ZB-pF 0 ZE-nE ZB-AE
-A-B t=R=t-A tZA=t-R tZA=t-B t=A=t-A id
HATE LFEERY  LEEEAFE  LFEEEH WAL (#7) i)
Directors
Bz
Mr. Ng Siu Keung 400,000 - - - 400,000 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028
ROBRE “E-\ERATER CE-CEARTCHEE
ZEZ/ERATCR
Mr. Ke Ronggin 800,000 - - - 800,000 219 3August 2017 3 Aug 2022 - 2 Aug 2027
ABfLE “E-+ENAER ZE-CEN\B=HE
ZEZUENAZR
Mr. Ke Ronggin 800,000 - - - 800,000 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028
ARsLE “E-ERATER CECCERATERE
ZEZ\FRATIR
Employees 4,800,000 - - (800,000) 4,000,000 219 3August 2017 3 Aug 2022 - 2 Aug 2027
k& “E-+ENAZR  ZEZZZEN\B=HE
“THENAZR
Employees 6,200,000 - - (800,000) 5,400,000 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028
] “F-\EXBTZH ZZ-ZERATZHE
ZEZ)\ERATCR
Total 13,000,000 - - (1,600,000) 11,400,000
&t

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares R AME AH - RIFERE S AT ZTH
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was %175 42 £t & 68,000,000% * #HHE R AR A E
68,000,000, representing approximately 10.17% of the  BETTARANZI10.17% -+ BE A% #E 5T &I A | 84 F B
Company’s issued share capital, and the remaining life #&R=FZT/\@H - HEZE-_T—NF+H
of the Share Option Scheme was about 3 years and =+—HIFFETEREEREFZIRENE
8 months. No share options granted the Share Option — J&#ERR °

Scheme were lapsed during the year ended 31 December

2019.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes organized by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Except as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements regarding the outbreak of coronavirus
in mainland China in January 2020, there were no
significant events after the reporting period of the Group.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been audited by KPMG,
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ziming YANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAGHMERE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Cabbeen Fashion Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 98 to 262,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAGHMERE (R)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

D RN T2 RE 171 HRYEFHHE °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 171.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

Revenue principally comprises sales of menswear
goods to distributors and via consignees.
WaEF2aEROHEEBRERHESES

an °

Each year, the Group enters into a framework
distribution agreement or a consignment
agreement with each distributor or consignee
and manufactures and sells its products in
accordance with the terms of separate purchase
orders.
ERESFRZHHEPINREEILIERD HH
AR - WIREBSRBITENRREREN
HEHREmR °

For sales to distributors, once the products are
collected from the designated warehouse by the
distributor, the control of the goods is considered
to have been transferred to the distributor and
revenue is recognised at that point.

AP EEELHNHEENS - Em—BBDHER
RIETRERR  EHEmETHIRERREE
BT oiEn - WRZEESERRKE

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BAFHE KRB ZEF 2B N H

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over revenue recognition;
AHEEIRER MU R S A EPIEHIAER
At B SOEIERR

° inspecting agreements with distributors and
consignees, on a sample basis, to understand
the terms of the sales transactions including
the terms of delivery and acceptance,
applicable rebates arrangements and any sales
return arrangements to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BREEAEERE HE) H MARHEEHBE - A
THRHERZHNGR > BRI REX K
PO EA OB REREERE T #E
m2EZRITEHERNBRENE SEEHUK

I |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BURBERE (K)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 171.

D RSN 2 RE 171 AR EFHHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESLE

For sales via consignees, once the products are
sold to end users by the consignee, the control of
the goods is considered to have been transferred
to the consignee and revenue is recognised at
that point. The Group receives confirmations
from consignees on a monthly basis of both the
transaction amounts and balances due to the
Group.

HBEEBRHEBELNHEN S - Em—BEBR
HEETRmAPE  BAEEmOZEGIEFEAD
ERTREE  TRZEERER R - BE
EEARWRHE AR IR NEN BEEE
TIRAERRFERE

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and because
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management
to meet specific targets or expectations.
BN SERI AEREZER  AAkaER
EEBNEREVIEREZ— MEFILRERE
FAERRRE B AR TR B M R 2 U e SR N R
BRI -

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether
revenue transactions recorded during the
financial year had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
BREAELEFBLEMER S EMBBXIFX
- BRESEIREREFNEGAERER
7> $H A B 17 2 P 8 0 8 5 1R AK - AT AR
FEATHNBERZFEESENEE K
R

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether
specific revenue transactions around the
financial year end had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
REAEREFBHBMEXHEMBEXIFEX
- BREEEEIREREFNEAERENR
2> A 8 1 2 P B ) 8 5 K - ATAR O BA IR
FRERAENHERRZR ZEEERNEE B
R ERFEI AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAGHMERE (R)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

BRI AN 2 BE 171 BB B -

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 171.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales
rebates during the financial year had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period
by reconciling the movements in sales rebates
accruals, recalculating the sales rebates
recognised during the financial year on the
basis of the terms as set out in the distribution
or consignment agreements and comparing
sales rebates payments during the financial
year to confirmations from distributors or
consignees and other relevant underlying
documentation;

REAREEFZ BIRAEHEQNEH - RIE
2 $H S BH 177 5 P B BV IR R E ST s T R B R
EAERRHEERH - MBI BFEE AN
EEHRERE 2 HE KR ERE &
H BB sHER MR EFE AR HE
EIHE S B REE B BUAR R

identifying significant credit notes issued and
sales returns from the sales ledger after the
financial year end and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the
related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period in accordance with
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BRINM B FEREEHERTAELNER
ERENHERD - WinEEA X §®
At AEE Y S TS ERIBIRITE T ERIHR
EREEOTBHARAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BURBERE (K)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 171.

D RSN 2 RE 171 AR EFHHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESLE

° inspecting significant manual adjustments
to revenue during the reporting period,
enquiring of management as to the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BERREHANEREMENEZFHFE
MEREERELERARNIER MR
=15 HAE R SR U o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAGHMERE (R)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

BRI A B R FEN L 16 2 5 162 BRI 251 5E ©

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 162.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can
be volatile with consumer demand changing
according to current fashion trends.

MIVHEE T LS REEE TR EIRBE m 2
B RETENFEHERELRKY -

The Group typically sells or disposes of off-
season inventories at a markdown from the
original price to make room for new season
inventories in its stores. Accordingly, the actual
future selling prices of some inventories may fall
below their purchase costs.
EXE-RTBHEXRBEBTFE - LWRHEE
WAMEEFEREHZAE - Bt - & THFENER
ARREEHSERERBERR

Management considers several factors in
determining the appropriate level of inventory
provisions, including inventory ageing, historical
rates of sales at normal price levels and at
markdown prices, and the channels available for
selling off-season inventories.
ERENETHEENFERBEKTIHERZERE
= BPREEERER  REFERKERIZRER
BROELHEXRARHEBFTFENAIRRE -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BAMFHEFERENEZEFEREA T @

° assessing whether the inventory provisions at

the reporting date were calculated in a manner
consistent with the Group’s inventory provision
policy by recalculating the inventory provisions
based on percentages and other parameters
in the Group’s inventory provision policy and
considering the application of the Group’s
inventory provision policy with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BiE BEXEEFERBRENBSLEREMS
HENTEFERELR2EHTETERNR
TEE BEXEETFEREBBROER - UG
TRBREAHNFERBRESKE EEER
SRBHER—HH A AEE

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items
in the inventory ageing report were classified
within the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing the barcode tags for the inventory
items selected with relevant purchase
documents;
BEAEEFBLEMETEEB NGB RE
BB - AT ERERETHIER
EREABENREER

° performing a retrospective review by comparing
the carrying values of inventories as at 31
December 2018 with sales prices achieved
during the current year, to assess the reliability
of management’s write-down and provisioning
process;

ERE T - N\F+ A=+ —HZFEERE
BEEARFE 2 EEETHER @ (R EPRE A
A S TR B OB S B IR 2 AT SR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BURBERE (K)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 162.
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The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESLE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgement
exercised by management in determining the
appropriate levels of inventory provisions which
involves predicting the amounts of inventories
which will be unsold at the end of each season
and the markdowns necessary to sell such off-
season inventories on a discounted basis through
outlets and other channels in future years. Both
of these factors can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.

BPEFEREINRAREZSEE  AREEE
EETEENGTEREBEKERITEERAE - m
ERFNEARNSEFTERAENTEHRE LR
AR FBBIHERHEMREERELELFE
FEEMFBIELNF - ZFREHFEEB T
HEM - WreX BIEERIFTRR

° evaluating the Group’s inventory provision
policy by comparing management’s expectation
of the amounts of inventories which are unlikely
to be sold in the foreseeable future at current
prices and the corresponding expectation of
markdowns with historical sales amounts and
markdown data for the current and prior years
provided by management; and
BB ERBE A KRAI N ] R KL E R
EREENTFERENTEN LRI NTEL
HEIREMEHANB RSB EFENELHE
BELTNEE - Mt EEENTEERER
® M

° enquiring of the management and senior
members of the sales team about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals
of off-season inventories and comparing the
carrying value of inventories to actual prices for
sales transactions subsequent to the reporting
date on a sample basis.
AERERFEEGNRREEASRABEH
PR BFF e EINEAENES - I
BREARELRFERAERRS A RRIHE
RBNBRER °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAGHMERE (R)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

BAGHMERE (R)
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

11 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREsREMZERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—F+_-A=+—HI F)Z
(Expressed in Renminbj) (A B ESI7R)

2019 2018
—E-NF —F-)\F
(Note)
(BF5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREBTIT
Revenue I %5 2 1,274,966 1,273,473
Cost of sales SHERAR (714,875) (694,730)
Gross profit EF 560,091 578,743
Other income E g A 3 66,777 58,100
Selling and distribution SHE R R
expenses (218,915) (179,423)
Administrative and other TR R EAMEERY
operating expenses (164,513) (146,388)
Profit from operations K RF 243,440 311,032
Finance costs BLE R 4(a) (21,608) (19,891)
Share of loss of an associate ~ 70h — B & A Bl Z 518 (46) (190)
Profit before taxation RRBE A& R 4 221,786 290,951
Income tax expense PRSI FI 5(a) (63,644) (80,708)
Profit for the year FREA 158,142 210,243
Attributable to: T &7 :
Equity shareholders of KRR AR
the Company 157,644 211,888
Non-controlling interests AR E R 498 (1,645)
Profit for the year FEREF 158,142 210,243
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

GeRakAtEEKRER (R)

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —F—NF+_-A=+—HI F)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbj) (A E#5)

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
(Note)
(BF&E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Other comprehensive FREMZEBKE
income for the year
ltem that may be reclassified AJREREZEF DL
subsequently to profit or loss:  E|1Ez5HYIER -
— Exchange differences on - 38 & Bl b IR 5N
translation of the financial E S0l piE S
statements of operations HIPE 5 =58
outside the mainland
China 710 1,200
Total comprehensive FRE2EWGZEE
income for the year 158,852 211,443
Attributable to: LU % 75 e -
Equity shareholders of RN RIEERARER
the Company 158,354 213,088
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE 2 498 (1,645)
Total comprehensive FRE2EKGZEE
income for the year 158,852 211,443
Earnings per share BREFN(ARED) 8
(RMB cents)
Basic R 23.58 31.71
Diluted e 23.58 31.68

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).

The notes on pages 105 to 262 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 26(b).

sk - ARBER-_T—NAF—A—BEREEEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A & &5 77)

2019 2018
—EB-hHF —T-N\F
(Note)
(FftE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties wEYHE 9 128,753 39,607
Other property, plant and HEMmE - BE K&
equipment 10 176,016 59,326
Interests in leasehold land KEHE N FEEAZ
held for own use under HE TR
operating leases 11 - 22,811
Intangible assets BEEE 12 33,299 37,393
Prepayments for acquisiton — WEBME K& B2
of plant and equipment SEANEOE 8,460 1,039
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR 2 s 13 49,303 49,349
Deferred tax assets BEIEBIEEE 15(b) 32,455 33,257
R S, 428,286 | = 242,782
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 383,716 383,578
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E b fEUFKIE 17 738,863 506,393
Other financial assets HEemEE 18 - 60,000
Deposits with banks with REISBEAB=MEA
original maturity date BIERTTIF 3K
over three months 303,254 443,944
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITHER 19 119,824 240,485
Cash and cash equivalents ~ R& MRS FEY 20 266,992 220,484
R SR 1,812,649 | 1,854,884
Current liabilities ik p=Ki
Bank borrowings RITER 21 354,737 52,566
Trade and other payables 8 5 R HAERFIR 22 591,510 597,395
Current taxation BNERTR IR 15(a) 46,673 34,895
Lease Liabilities HMEEE 23 1,380 -
R 994,300 684,856
_Netcurrentassets nBEE®RE | 818,349 | 1,170,028
Total assets less current EEZAEBARBERS
liabilities 1,246,635 1,412,810
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank borrowings IRITIER 21 - 234,886
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 6,937 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEMBEEE 15(b) 3,876 4,168
10,813 239,054
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

GERBRRE (R)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN E#57R)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —F-N\F
(Note)
(FftE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T Tt AREETTT
NET ASSETS EEFRE 1,235,822 1,173,756
CAPITAL AND RESERVES E#AKkf#iE 26
Share capital &N 5,214 5214
Reserves e 1,199,527 1,112,743
Total equity attributable AARIERBR
to equity shareholders FE GRS
of the Company 1,204,741 1,117,957
Non-controlling interests  JEIERR &R 31,081 55,799
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,235,822 1,173,756

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 11 March 2020.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng
Ro@EE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TTHARZRBTTEE

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).

The notes on pages 105 to 262 form part of these financial
statements.

REFGN T TF=-A+—BHERKE
T -

Mr. Ronggin Ke
BRI EE
Executive Director

HITEE

izt - AEBER=_ZT-AF— A BEAEETEY
EERER BB SR ELRIE165E o RIFULT
& AR TEY - R 1))
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eiyan
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERREDX

for the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2 —F—F+_-A=+—HI F)Z

(Expressed in Renminbj) (A B ESI7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARERRES
Capital Non-
Share redemption  Capital  Statutory Exchange  Refained controlling
premium resgﬁrv; reserves  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests
RAEE FREGE E4BE EifE REE a3t
RMB'000  RMBIODL 000 RMB'000  RMB(000  RMBIOO0  RMB000
ARETTL T ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETR
As at 1 January 2018 A-E-N\§-F-R 5203 6,060 B 2B 45T (45 92890 1023856 31440 1,095,296
Changes in equity A-E-NE
for 2018: NEESEH:
Profi for e year EREH - - - - - - 188 2188 (168 210243
Other comprefensive EREMRENG
income for the year - - - - - 1200 - 1200 - 1200
Totd comprefensive EMREMALE
__ ncomeforteyear = s=oo- 10 288 213088 (16 211443
Diidend decked ESlRE 280 - - - - - - (2% KL
Shares fsted nder REERER
share option scheme Sl 26(0) 3% - 972 - - AL -
Tansferbetweenresenes AR - - - (s - - 1 = - -
Eouty-setfed share-based —— E&EEELRH
transactions RARIRS ) - - -1 - - -1 - e
Appropriafon to LR (-
statutory resenves - - - - 4131 - 18 - - -
Capialnected by HEREREE
non-confroling interests - - - - - - - - 6004 26004
AsatdtDecember208  R=E-NETZA=1-A
and 1 January 2019 R=E-7E-F-R 5214 9,19 B4 41,040 49706 (3,394 1015808 1117957 55799 1,173,756
Changes in equity RoE-NE
for 2019; NEEEE
Proftfor the year il - - - - - - 57644 157644 498 158142
Other comprehensive EREG2ENG
income for the year - - - - - 0 - 0 - 10
Tota comprehensive EREEYEEE
__ ncomefortevear  _\ - - - == MO 167644 19834 48 15B8%
Divdend declaed BETRE 20) - - - - - - (B0 (1320 - (B0
Shares fsted under BEEREE
share option schieme i 26(c - - - - - - - - - -
Tansleretweenresenves GERMER - - - (44) - = I - - -
Equity-setted sharebesed ~ EREE MR
fransactions BERNRS 40) - - - 160 - - - 180 - 160
Appropriaton o BRETRE
statutory resenves - - - - 3,863 - (3869 - - -
Captal rediced by HERERTENES
anon-controing inferest - - - - - - - - (%5216  (25216)
As at 31 December 2019 RE-NETZR=1-A 5214 9,195 B4 42208 53569 (2,684 1006825 1204741 31,081 1,235,822
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using izt : AEEER=_ZT—NF—A—BERALEEH

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).

The notes on pages 105 to 262 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
SEHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 #2 = F—/1F+—-A=1—HI FEF
(Expressed in Renminbj) (A E#5)

2019 2018
—ZE-NF —ZE-N\F
(Note)
(BF5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Operating activities TR
Cash generated from operations & & EEFT1SIR S 20(b) 6,019 264,869
Income tax paid BT
— PRC income tax paid — R AT (51,682) (79,594)
Net cash (used in)/ LesEE (FrH)
generated from operating FT5EHRE
activities (45,663) 185,275
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of BEEIREYE « Hip¥ -
investment property, 5 M w5 1 3k
other property,
plant and equipment (204,997) (29,574)
Payment for the purchase BEEEEEMNK
of intangible assets (2,261) (3,612)
Proceeds from disposal of HEDSE - BER
property, plant and RABFT1S A
equipment 962 6,021
Net decrease of deposits REHEB=EA
with banks with original BV ERITIE R
maturity date over B EER
three months 140,690 8,916
Net decrease/(increase) in EEIBRITER
pledged bank deposits B () FEE 120,661 (135,470)
Proceeds from disposal HESREEFISHIE
of financial assets 60,000 333,702
Payments for the purchase BB S BVEEM K
of financial assets - (141,000)
Proceeds from repayment Bl B T U fE R
of other loans receivables FriSRIR - 65,840
Investment in an associate B R E AR - (50,000)
Loans to an associate BRIl ANCIE Y =F N (10,000) (47,840)
Interest received BUFIE 18,113 15,539
Net cash generated from REZEFBFEERS
investing activities 123,168 22,522

“E-NEER

FEREFRA A



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GERERER(R)

for the year ended 31 December 2019 2 —F— N F+=—H=1+—HIFFZF

(Expressed in Renminbj) (A B ESI7R)

Financing activities

Proceeds from bank

MEEE

RITERATERIE

2019
—2-hE

RMB’000
ARBT T

2018
—\F
(Note)

(P &E)
RMB’000
ARETT

borrowings 20(c) 194,000 -
Repayment of bank BERITEN

borrowings 20(c) (132,916) (17,372)
Dividends paid B E 26(b) (73,200) (122,328)
Interest paid EAHLE (19,834) (18,827)
Proceeds from issue BITRID IS RIR

of shares 26(c)(ii) - 2,174
Capital contribution by MEA

non-controlling interests 3HWHXTEE mEE

of subsidiaries - 26,004
Capital element of lease BENHEENERET D (1,916) -

rentals paid
Interest element of lease ENEENF B D (162) -

rentals paid
Net cash use in AL ESEE P A

financing activities FEE (34,028) (130,349)
Netincreaseincashand BE&REELZEY

cash equivalents B nFRE 43,477 77,448
Cash and cash equivalents A—BA—BWRE&£R

at 1 January ReZEY 220,484 134,593
Effect of foreign exchange SNGEPE R E B 2

rate changes 3,031 8,443
Cash and cash equivalents R*+=A=+—H

at 31 December MRERRSEEY 20(a) 266,992 220,484

Note:

The notes on pages 105 to 262 form part of these financial

statements.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).

105

B e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK?”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1 EESHEE

(a)

EREH

AZEV BRI RBABERE
R B 765 3 o 2 B (T BB B 755 3%
SR AR R o BB 3R
SEABERBERETEES
g ([ERgHERIEES |) Rib
B PTG 53 A B 8 1 B R B 7S SR e
2R BRg 2R (TR gt
R ) Rk - RFEVBHRERT
HEBBARURDIHERBEER
ENRBEHAERZMBRAT]
(TEBBR ) FEH EMARRD
BERBRERTE -  NREERAE

SETBORKEWT -

RETEAEEECHEMET
el RE BT BRI 58| E %
A ZFLERNAKERITEF
HARR) B R A R AT HR PR AR © FfY
108 BB RERZFR
REFNEMSTHREBSNE
£ AR AERZFM I HREAN
[RBREVE B S B g 5t B B
SSEIERE o

“E-NEER FEREFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's
interest in an associate.

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the
functional currency for the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland
China. The functional currency of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.

These financial statements are prepared
on the historical cost basis except that
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies below
(note 1(g)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 30.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1 FESTTEHER®)

(b)

A BEHRRNEE (@)

EEEERATEBERMERE
BRI BHRRE - AEDLH
B - fAET RRER - REHE - A
AtRBREFERRNER AR
BE - BE  WAKRXHZR
T - ZEMET RERRRIDE
RBEER ;AR ERIBRMAE
RAEENZHEMASR - MAE
BRBRBIEHBEBRABELE B
HAREMNEE B EREE
HE%E - BRGERATEE RN &
Ffhat e

ERGEFEEERREFER
7] o ERHARTHERTIER EE
FIHIE - RIBRERTRN&EE
WIER - MZIAG T EETRIERT
FEZHRMAKREE - AEH
ERESA OISR SN Ak

<
=7)
e ©

FRAEEBERBERYBHRE
ERIFFIEL M BRREEKX
T ENHE - ARG EE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Except for
IFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period, except for
the amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a
business.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases,
and the related interpretations,
IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, SIC
15, Operating leases — incentives,
and SIC 27, Evaluating the substance
of transactions involving the legal
form of a lease. It introduces a single
accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability for
all leases, except for leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-
value assets. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from
IAS 17 substantially unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to
assess the effect that leases have
on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an
entity.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1 FESTTEHER®)

(c) EFBX2F @)

(i)

e

BRI KR EERE16
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BB B 5 3R 5 22 RI 5B 1657
IR BER 2t ERIE 175
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B mERELZESRE
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LEEHE]  TRREZ
BEFE15R[LEHE —
BEIRFEREEZE®
F27 [FH P REE X
BEARSIHRA ] E
BREI s ERIE 1657 5
EBEASIAE—FTRE
B BEAEABERAT
EHERRATRABREER
HEAE  HHEHA12E
A THEE (2 EHE
g REEEEEHRER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The Group has initially applied IFRS
16 as from 1 January 2019. The
Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has
therefore recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative
information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under IAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes to previous accounting
policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of
a lease mainly relates to the
concept of control. IFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls
the use of an identified asset for
a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount
of use. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both
the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBER®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFTEXRZH#)
(Continued)

() IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) (i) BREFIE R E ZERIFE16

New definition of a lease
(Continued)

The Group applies the new
definition of a lease in IFRS
16 only to contracts that were
entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1

5o [HEE)
a. MHENHEEE)

REBEEN-F
—NEFE—H—HI
ZIERI I RE T
B # e R Bl B 75
WERERIE165EH)
HEHTER - 4=

January 2019, the Group has T-NF—H—H
used the transitional practical ZBIRISIHIEH -
expedient to grandfather the AEERHEABE
previous assessment of which AI{THEE AR R
existing arrangements are or LRSI LR
contain leases. Accordingly, CENRSBEHE

contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under IAS
17 continue to be accounted

HEPH - BLIL - %
HRBER e
RIS 17 RETE

for as leases under IFRS 16 HMENEGNEER
and contracts previously B R B 75 5 4 A

assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be

F 165 ARSI AMHE
g - motATHE &

accounted for as executory M EARTE L HERY
contracts. BRBEBENERY A
REMEH -
—E-NEFFR FEREBFRAAE 111



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and
transitional impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the
requirement for a lessee
to classify leases as either
operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously
required by IAS 17. Instead, the
Group is required to capitalise
all leases when it is the lessee,
including leases previously
classified as operating leases
under IAS 17, other than those
short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets which are
exempt. As far as the Group
is concerned, these newly
capitalised leases are primarily
in relation to property, plant and
equipment as disclosed in note
28(b). For an explanation of
how the Group applies lessee
accounting, see note 1(mj(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting

and transitional impact
(Continued)

At the date of transition to IFRS
16 (i.e. 1 January 2019), the
Group determined the length of
the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for
the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the
present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted
using the relevant incremental
borrowing rates at 1 January
2019. The weighted average of
the incremental borrowing rates
used for determination of the
present value of the remaining
lease payments was 4.75%.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

FESHBE®)

ST BCRE B (@)

() EBEBRUERSERFE16
%o [Hg &)

b. HABEASTER

RBESEE)

iR E = B BR B
WwELERE 16K E
BBl ZZE—h&F
—A—8) ' ~%£H
ErFaAEs &
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B EXAIDEA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting
and transitional impact
(Continued)
To ease the transition to IFRS
16, the Group applied the
following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the
date of initial application of IFRS
16:

(i) the Group elected not to
apply the requirements
of IFRS 16 in respect of
the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use
assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term
ends within 12 months
from the date of initial
application of IFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term
ends on or before 31
December 2019;

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019

1

FESHBE®)

SRS (&)

BB Bt IS R RIS 16

%o [HEIE)

b. HABASTER
EBEZEE)

/3 B 85 58 % = B R
M5 HREERE16
o AEBRER
ERMBIR P B5RE
F165%E B A A
NER R AT
BEE

(i Bt F #4710 HA
B EHXEA
Bl B B 7% R
AR FE16
SRE B AT
+=—@AR
FI #5 (Bn#H 29
RZE—Nh
+ = A
=t+—B%
Z HIJE W) 7Y
ME &X&
EEEZETE
FA BB Bt 7
s ERE
1658 89 #7 &
mRHEES
& & A
BE

-y



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

and transitional impact
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

when measuring the
lease liabilities at the
date of initial application
of IFRS 16, the Group
applied a single discount
rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably
similar characteristics
(such as leases with a
similar remaining lease
term for a similar class
of underlying asset
in a similar economic
environment); and

when measuring the
right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application
of IFRS 16, the Group
relied on the previous
assessment for onerous
contract provisions as at
31 December 2018 as an
alternative to performing
an impairment review.

(i)

(i)

e

\
n

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBER®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFTEXRZH#)
(Continued)
() IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) () BEBRGHHREERE16
% [HE (&)
b. Lessee accounting b. 7&# }\ S E®E

E/ ﬂ(f"”)

El/s

B IXER
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¥ AKE
HAEFEEE
18 L% B
HEas(h
a0 1 A7 UL &
EIRIE T3
GERDS WIS
MEERA
18 L #4 A
HZHE)KR
FA B —AhiR
xRk

EERNE
X FE B B
B s A
B £165% &
A&k
BEKR XK
& B ik %
BEH _-F
—NF+=
A=+—8H
EEENE
2 5 1
TEREITH
BEEBH
(s

FEREFRA A

115



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting
and transitional impact
(Continued)
The following table reconciles
the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in
note 28(b) as at 31 December
2018 to the opening balance for
lease liabilities recognised as at
1 January 2019:

Operating lease commitments at

1

FESHBE®)

(c) EFBERSE#)

(i) BERBBEREEIF16
5 [HEI(F)

b.
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TRAE-_ZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—8H
4 T B R (AR
FE28(h) #ER) EHRN
—T-NF—H—
BEwREESR
& B HA 1) 45 R 0
BE :

1 January
2019
—E-hE

-5-H
RMB'000
ABRMFT

31 December 2018 Rt ERdE 6,074
Less: commitments relating to W R AR SR
leases exempt from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases - RIAHEER S - N5
with remaining lease term ending on or TZA=T—B%
before 31 December 2019 ZRIEmA R E
REMMEE (5,399)
- leases of low-value assets -BEEEEEME (167)
508
Less: total future interest expenses B - KRS X 25 (11)
Total lease liabilities recognised at RZZ-NF—A—BHERN
1 January 2019 MEgBRRE 497
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting

and transitional impact
(Continued)

The right-of-use assets in
relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases
have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount
recognised for the remaining
lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the
statement of financial position at
31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FEEFBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) StBE#H &)
(Continued)
() IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) (@ BR &1 % R & = Al 5616
%o [HEIE)
b. Lessee accounting b. HAHBASTER
and transitional impact RBEXE(E)
(Continued)

T 2= BE il R Ak B B
MBmEERANZE16
SEHAEELRE Y
B R R E

The following table summarises
the impacts of the adoption
of IFRS 16 on the Group’s
consolidated statement of
financial position:

Carrying Carrying
amount at Capitalisation amount at

31 December of operating 1 January
2018 lease contracts 2019
e -3
Zt-ANREE tRERX -B-BNEEE
RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

R-B-NE+ZA L

Ling items in the GRBBRARNX R
consolidated statement of  EIPREI IR A% 1647
financial position impacted ~ FEKVEE :

by the adoption of IFRS 16
Other properties, % - BERRE

plant and equipment 59,326 23,445 82,11
Interests inleasehold land ~ BEHETH{EEF

heldforownuseunder  ZEE L IER

operating leases 22,811 (22,811) -
Total non-current assets  FRHEELE 242,782 634 243,416
Trade and other receivables &5 R EfEMEUA 506,393 (137) 506,256
Total current assets hBEELE 1,854,884 (137) 1,854,747
Lease liabilties (curent) ~ HEEE(7E) - 497 497
Current liabilities HBEE 684,856 497 685,353
Net current assets hBEEFE 1,170,028 (634) 1,169,304
Total assets less BEAERTBER

current liabilities 1,412,810 - 1,412,810
Net assets BEFE 1,173,756 - 1,173,756
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESEHBER®
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFTERZH &)
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) @i) BRET A SR &5 E Rl %16

Impact on the financial result

5 [HEI(F)
c. HAEAKEMBEE

and cash flows of the Group RESRENTE

After the initial recognition RZTE—NF—H
of right-of-use assets and — RS HEREA
lease liabilities as at 1 January EEEMHEERRE

2019, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise interest
expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses

& NEBEERE
HMABRERAREE
BERERERT
F& 5T & )8 58 ST IA
REREEERN
B MIFREAMK
REHEHANE
MERKERE

incurred under operating leases HTNEEXANMHEEH
on a straight-line basis over X o Hfg L“E’\EW
the lease term. This results in a & F B R £ Al
positive impact on the reported FATHRE ﬁ EI’J &R
profit from operations in the M B E MR S
Group’s consolidated statement $’§ EiraBmEk

of profit or loss, as compared to
the results if IAS 17 had been
applied during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Impact on the financial result
and cash flows of the Group
(Continued)

In the cash flow statement, the
Group as a lessee is required
to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their
capital element and interest
element (see note 20(c)).
These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows,
similar to how leases previously
classified as finance leases
under IAS 17 were treated,
rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under IAS
17. Although total cash flows
are unaffected, the adoption
of IFRS 16 therefore results
in a significant change in
presentation of cash flows
within the cash flow statement
(see note 20(d)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBER®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFTEXRZH#)
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) (i) BR B 35 3R & % Rl £ 16

Impact on the financial result

5 [HEIF)
c. ¥T¢$ﬂﬂ§¥*§

and cash flows of the Group REERENE
(Continued) (#&)

The following tables give an TREANREE
indication of the estimated T-NF+= H
impact of the adoption of IFRS =+—HIEFEKR
16 on the Group’s financial A [ PR B 7 R
result and cash flows for the Al 165 I AN B
year ended 31 December FREBERE SR

2019, by adjusting the amounts
reported under IFRS 16 in

B2 TS P
ERRERRSE

these consolidated financial BB mMERRIEH
statements to compute B mEERSE

estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been
recognised under IAS 17 if
this superseded standard had
continued to apply in 2019

16 EHRMN SR -
NETE & *“E%BzHX
RO g5 &R
FBITHER=ZZE—N
FHREEA(MKE

instead of IFRS 16, and by JE FA B BR B 75
comparing these hypothetical R E165% ) M &
amounts for 2019 with the ﬁﬁuuﬂ’ﬂﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁﬁi\
actual 2018 corresponding HOUAHE TN
amounts which were prepared FHZER *“%%E

under IAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTBER®
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BtBE2H &)
(Continued)
(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) 0] BRET A 3R 5 ZE B SE16
% [HE (&)
c. Impact on the financial result c. HAEKEEHMKEE
and cash flows of the Group REERENTE
(Continued) (&)

2019
ZE-NE
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
Add back: relastedto  Hypothetical Compared o
Amounts IFRS 16 operating amounts amounts
reported  depreciation leases as if for 2019 reported
under andinterest  under IAS 17 as if under for 2018
IFRS 16 expense (note 1) IAS17 under lAS
B RRER
mE: EREHER BRER
RE  REEMME  EUEASL  EMEHEN
AREEEE  BER6% WEEHE  FUEAR
EAE 168 TENAE  EBGHEE  H-%-AF
2NeE RHERR (K1) fReE
(A) (B) (©) (D=A+B-C)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AR%TR AR%T R ARHT T

Financial resuftfor ~ HZ=F-1%
year ended TZR=t1-H
31 December 2019  LEEFEH
impacted by the BRERRE
adoption of FRS 16: £ 16%fZ/€

WEHEE
Profit from operations &R 243,440 2,896 (2.041) 243,395 311,02
Financial cost BENA (21,608) 162 - (21,446) (19,891)
Profit before taxation A&7 221,786 3,058 (2941) 221,003 290951
Profitforthe period ~ EEH 158,142 3,058 (2.941) 158,259 210243
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB1TIERZES) » UARKEST)

1 FESTTEHER®)

(c) EFtEHE2E®)

(i) BERBZEHREEIF16
5 [HEIF)

s Impact on the financial result C. HAEEMBRE
and cash flows of the Group REERENTE
(Continued) (%&)

2019
ZE-hE
Estimated
amounts
related to Hypothetical
Amounts operating amounts Compared to
reported leases as if for 2019 amounts
under under |AS 17 asif under reported
IFRS 16 (note 1&2) IAS 17 under IAS 17
BRERER
EHEREY
RERR Ensth  EREREREH
HEREER frenens ERAETRA
2168 fite®  BHN-E-nE
2HNeE (Wit 1R2) BReE
(A) (B) (C=A+B)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT INGE wT INGE SuT ARETT
Line items in the HEZE-1E
consolidated cash tZh=1-A
flow statement for LEERARS
year ended RERNRFE
31 December 2019 AREHER
impacted by the F165/E
adoption of IFRS 16: fER
Cash generated from meigmERe
operations 6,019 (2,078 3,941 264,869
Net cash (used in)/ [2E(FR)/
generated from i
operating activities B (45,663) (2,078) (47,741) 185,275
Capita element of ease EfREZER
rentals paid 9 (1,016) 1,916 - -
Interest element oflease BfEEZHE
fentals paid 7 (162 162 - =
Net cash used in RERBFAF
financing activities Bé (34,028) 2,078 (31,950) (130,349)
—E-NEFFR FERB R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

@ Impact on the financial result
and cash flows of the Group
(Continued)

Note 1: The “estimated amounts related
to operating leases” is an
estimate of the amounts of the
cash flows in 2019 that relate to
leases which would have been
classified as operating leases,
if IAS 17 had still applied in
2019. This estimate assumes
that there were no differences
between rentals and cash flows
and that all of the new leases
entered into in 2019 would have
been classified as operating
leases under IAS 17, if IAS
17 had still applied in 2019.
Any potential net tax effect is
ignored.

Note 2: In this impact table these
cash outflows are reclassified
from financing to operating in
order to compute hypothetical
amounts of net cash generated
from operating activities and net
cash used in financing activities
as if IAS 17 still applied.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019

1

FESTHBER®)

SRS (&)

BB Bt IS R RIS 16

%o [HEIE)

c. HAEXEH ﬂé‘%%
ERERENE
(#&)

MizE1 [ &S B
mEt2E] AR
2B ET 2R
FTHRR =T
—NWEMREA
MED B AKEE
HEMHEER=
T—NKEFR
SMESTE - #
TfhEtE - B
BREELEE S
mMELZ AT EE
B omAB(RRK
B =5t R E
1T7H/R=ZF—N,
FMRBA) AT
ERZZT—N4F
ET MM ERE
BRI =54
glj%17‘iﬁ/\’@7§j
m o T
/%E@am%%;
HARERET ©

Mz REZFgBERH -
ZEHemHH
MEBFHEE
MENHERE
EERRFRR S
MR E RSP A
FRENRRE
W OBOBRE
STHERIZE 17 57T
SNBH ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

d.

Leasehold investment

property

Under IFRS 16, the Group is required
to account for all leasehold properties
as investment properties when these
properties are held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation
(“leasehold investment properties”).
The adoption of IFRS 16 does not have
a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group
previously elected to apply IAS 40,
Investment properties, to account for
all of its leasehold properties that were
held for investment purposes as at
31 December 2018. Consequentially,
these leasehold investment properties
continue to be carried at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Lessor accounting

The Group leases out a
number of items of plants
and warehouses as the lessor
of operating leases. The
accounting policies applicable
to the Group as a lessor remain
substantially unchanged from
those under IAS 17.

(i) Amendments to IFRS 3,
Definition of a business
In October 2018 IASB issued
amendments to IFRS 3 Business
combinations — “Definition of a business”.
The amendments:

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

clarify that a business must
include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs;

remove the assessment of
whether market participants
are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and
continuing to produce outputs;

add guidance and illustrative
examples to help entities assess
whether a substantive process
has been acquired;

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Amendments to IFRS 3,
Definition of a business
(Continued)

— narrow the definitions of a
business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services
provided to customers and by
removing the reference to an
ability to reduce costs; and

- add an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business.

These amendments are mandatory for
transactions occurring in the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after
1 January 2020 and earlier application
is permitted. These amendments
are expected to primarily impact
the accounting by the Group for the
acquisition of subsidiaries, in particular
where the substance of the acquisition
is the purchase of a group of similar
assets. The Group has early adopted
these amendments, prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

P UABREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (note

1(n)ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 1(n)
(ii)). Any acquisition date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note

() ii))-

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and
equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities
are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 27(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is

held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 1(x)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

Investments other than equity

investments (Continued)

= fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Investment property

Investment properties are buildings and land
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(m)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future
use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost. The cost of purchased investment
properties comprises their purchases price
and any direct attributable expenditures.
Investment properties are accounted for
using the cost model and stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss (see note 1(n)(ii)). The cost of investment
properties, less their estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment loss, is
depreciated using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life as follow:

° Interests in remaining term
leasehold land of the lease
° buildings 20 years

Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(x)(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

@)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting or hedge the net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

Other property, plant and
equipment

The following items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (note 1(n)(ii)):

= buildings, including buildings held
for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under
operating leases (see notel(k)) and
right-of-use assets arising from leases
of underlying building (see note1(m));
and

= other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of
property, plant and equipment includes the
cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (note 1(z)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Other property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of

completion.

- Leasehold Remaining term
land and buildings of the lease

- Leasehold Shorter of 3 - 5 years
improvements or remaining term

of the lease

- Plant and machinery 5-10 years
- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
- Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 years

and equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

()

Interests in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases

Interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases represent cost of
acquiring land use rights paid to the PRC’s
governmental authorities. Land use rights are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(n)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term of the right which is 41-48 years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (note 1(n)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software 5-10 years
Distribution network
and trademark 20 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Asalessee

(A)

Policy applicable from

1 January 2019

At the lease commencement
date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily laptops and
office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As alessee (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised,
the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present
value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised
cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As alessee (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from
1 January 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset
recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured
at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see
notes 1(j) and 1(n)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As alessee (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from
1 January 2019 (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured
when there is a change in
future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination
option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to
ZEro.

The Group presents right-of-
use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment
property in ‘other property, plant
and equipment’ and presents
lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to
1 January 2019
In the comparative period,
leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Where the Group had the use
of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under
the leases were charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods
covered by the lease terms,
except where an alternative
basis was more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received
were recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were
charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they
were incurred.

(ii) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this
is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on
the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and loans to
associates);

- debt securities measured at
FVOCI (recycling); and

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including units in bond funds,
equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate
used in the measurement of the
lease receivable.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Loss allowances for trade receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

P UABREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
of a financial instrument (including
a loan commitment) has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 180 days
past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due date;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z7T1585Z 51 LA R T)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBXR®
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of (n) GEEBEREEREE)
assets (Continued)

() Credit losses from financial ) £«WMIE- - SHNEER
instruments, contract assets HERRREBEBZEEE
and lease receivables (Continued) BE)

Depending on the nature of the AR ER T AN ES -
financial instruments, the assessment =ER R AR AN
of a significant increase in credit risk Thig {8 5l E A 5 2k [R) B 245
is performed on either an individual T WA AEARE

basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 1(x)(ii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, lease receivable or
contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-
current assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

investment property;

- other property, plant and
equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold
land classified as being held
under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;
= goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associate in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-
current assets (Continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBER®
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of (n) GEEFEREEREE)
assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non- (i) HtFERBEERE
current assets (Continued) (%)
— Recognition of impairment - ERREEE
losses
An impairment loss is WEENXEMBIR
recognised in profit or loss if the CEABMUMNERRE

carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-
current assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(n)(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see
note 1(x)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(q)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses (see note 1(n)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 1(z)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance,
with policy set out in note 1(n)(j).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local
defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or
the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019

1

FESTTEHE @)

(v) FTB%icE)
BETHRGIINES - FERLT
BEAERAAELEHEREY

R B R A BER FEART & A AR
HAI B A B ER TR o A XRFHE
REL B AR E R IEEERE
FEFHIRE ER B RERTOG A E
EZEREL B BRDRE ERD
EREZRNEE  ERFER
78 B AR R 7 795 4 B e A ()RR A
EREH - LTREN B E R HIR
ERMEEENR-—HRRELS
EFETH IR E ER TR IR 18 A AR
SAREENHEER - £EE
RARRRERMEEEEE R
ERBEAPATHBABEEIERE
HERRER R E E R KA ER A
B2 B S E R M SR AR
[R5 755 1 B K A P PR AR AR B 28
B AFEMAERSAREEEN
HeMmARLORlgst AREY
RPMEZEER o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities,
which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Provisions and contingent

(x)

liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

1

P UABREZT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customers, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition polices are as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the
customer accepts and takes the
control of the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of goods
sold less returns, discounts, rebates
and value added tax (“VAT”).

In the comparative period, revenue
from sales of goods was recognised
when the customer had accepted the
related risks and rewards of ownership.

(i) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1(n)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Revenue and other income
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

E-commerce service income
E-commerce service income is
recognised when the consigned
goods from distributors sold through
the Group’s online shops are took
possession and accepted by end
customers.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same year
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful lives
of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Unconditional discretionary government
grants from the local municipal
government authorities are recognised
in the profit or loss as other revenue
when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBXR®
POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Revenue and other income (x) W@EKRHEHAMBEAE)
(Continued)
(vy Rental income from (v) REHEHSWA
operating leases
Rental income receivable under KEHEBET 2 RHES
operating leases is recognised in WA R EBRE 2 83
profit or loss in equal instalments MANERES G ARE
over the periods covered by mIER  MHEMAHMmELE
the lease term, except where BRRKREAEESEER
an alternative basis is more Bz 2 R AIBRSD ©

representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset.

(y) Translation of foreign currencies (y) IMNEBRE
Foreign currency transactions during FRN - INER FIRRX 5 BREX
the year are translated at the foreign BE - DHINETHENEBEE R
exchange rates ruling at the transaction BEARRERERRAERR
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities & o B REERIERFE
denominated in foreign currencies are R e

translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated, of
fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling of dates, the fair value
was measured.

The results of operations outside mainland
China are translated into Renminbi at the
average exchange rates for the year which
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside mainland
China, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(aa)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the year which it
is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(bb) Related parties

@)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

M

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

P UABREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(bb) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(viil)

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTTEHER®)

POLICIES (Continued)

(cc) Segment reporting (cc) D EBHFRE

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
statements provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment of
sale of menswear goods. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

R BHRER 2 EED B REDE
HBZERIRMBERER D E
R W EHRAEEZS TR
EIEERHEIAD B EIR & FHE R
SEEEBHER R E 2 &
I o

ERIEXZED BT & E R
EMmEEE AR ESEDEAER
P B IEE - DA K E oo B AR 75
MEE - FEBRENEE  BF
BAV BRI ~ 3 SHE SR HE AR
BRRAEREERRENMEE
HEEEERERSN o @5 NEEX
VEBDESINFT B BB D %F
12EE - RIS A SR

AREBEREE—HRBEREmEH
& o Bt - W FDEBOMT o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

2 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the sale of
menswear and related accessories in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Revenue represents
the sales value of goods sold less returns, discounts
and value added taxes.

Disaggregation of revenue by sales channels is as
follows:

Ik

AEE 2 ERERHA/NPEARLME
(B ) sHESK KRR MM - Wasts
EmmHEBERERE - B IEE
i o

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Online shops iR E IR 481,545 430,481
Offline shops R T IR
Wholesales 2% 286,939 309,812
Consignment RiH 506,482 535,853
Self-owned B - 1,431
793,421 847,096
Less: Products repurchased W RRIEERS
for consignment business BEER - (4,104)
Net Revenue R AR 1,274,966 1,273,473

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
single customer contributed to 10% or more of
the Group's revenue (2018: two). The amount of
sales to these customers during the year ended
31 December 2018 was RMB269,814,000. Details
of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 27(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

3 OTHER INCOME 3 HflrA
2019 2018
—E-NF —Z-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Interest income FEHBA 17,968 14,775
Government grants (i) AT B (i) 45,340 34,973
Rental income from investment & ¥ < WA (i)
property (i) 7,501 2,634
Depreciation of investment REMFENE
property (8,563) (1,607)
Net (loss)/gain on sale of HEHERETR
promotion and display materials ¥ #HH0%F (E518) /UK zs (957) 1,084
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE 518 F 5 (1,995) (6,322)
Net gain on disposal of HEME - BFERZED
property, plant and equipment Wiss F5E 81 1,362
Net fair value gain on financial BATER AB=EL
assets at fair value through CREENNTE
profit or loss S 621 846
Others HAb 6,781 10,355
66,777 58,100
Notes: HisE
[0} Government grants in the years ended 31 December (0] REBEZE_Z-N\FRZZE-NF+=A
2018 and 2019 represented unconditional cash awards =+ —HIEFE BT BI I8 BT BP 5%
granted by government authorities. T B AR IR 2 22 ©
(i) The Group leases out investment properties under (i) REERBLLEEELREY X - HE
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial —RIZRE1ESE - WAEEH
period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease iR BEEERE - HENR—
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. REFARURETISHS - MEHRES
Lease payments are usually adjusted every year to reflect EAIEBEENR
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable TAMHGE K AR EE N ARBEREN TS
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be RS E A LA T AR SR EA R ICER -

receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

within 1 year —FR 3,494 3,677
After 1 year but with 5 year —FRERAFR 5,755 11,950
After 5 year Rk - -
9,249 15,627

“E-NEER FERGERLE [EESH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4 BR¥ADER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: PR AR A 2 H0BR
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-)N\F
(Note)
(B &E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
(a) Finance costs 5= 2%
Interest on bank RITIERAE R
borrowings and HRITAE RIRARR
discounting of
bank acceptance bills 21,446 19,891
Interest on lease liabilties ~ FAE&EF S 162 -
21,608 19,891
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January izt : AEBMER=_ZE—NF—A—BEAL
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under 1ERT B W% B R e F B B B 755 3R 45 2 B
this approach, the comparative information is not F165% o MBWL T A LREMATTE
restated. See note 1(c)(i). Hl o BBEEA(C)) °
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
(b) Staff costs BI KA
Salaries, wages and other ~ F& + T& M EMEF
benefits 77,368 73,821
Contributions to defined REHFRIKRETE
contribution retirement R (Fi7E24)
plans (note 24) 5,834 5,763
Termination benefits BERAEF 3,733 4,206
Equity settled share-based 1z 4EE AN &
payment expenses ERRNRAX
(note 25) (PE25) 1,630 1,167
88,565 84,957
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRBL AR (&)
BEATHFD IS -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
(c) Otheritems HhiEH
Amortisation giaRis
— land lease premium - THHEER - 501
— intangible assets -BEEE 6,355 6,162
Depreciation e
— owned property, - BEYE  BEARE
plant and equipment 12,577 6,519
— investment property - REYE 8,563 1,607
— right of use asset (i) - FREEE() 2,896 -
Impairment loss RIEEE
— trade and - B 5 RHAEWFRIA
other receivables 319 661
Inventory write-down FEMR 37,384 42,010
Operating lease charges AR ER L E
in respect of properties HEEA
— minimum lease - EHEENK
payments - 9,714
— contingent rentals - EHE - 224
Auditors’ remuneration Gl 3,567 3,443
Research and T 25 AR (ii)
development cost (i) 26,737 24,300
Cost of inventories (i) 17 B R (i)
(note 16(b)) (FI3E16(0)) 752,259 736,740
—E-NEFFR FERB R A 183



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

P RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-
of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under |IAS 17. After
initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).

(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2019, research and
development costs include staff costs of employees in
the design, research and development department of
RMB11,898,000 (2018: RMB13,407,000) which are
included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 4(b).

(iii) Cost of inventories includes carrying amount of
inventories sold and write down of inventories.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

INCOME TAX IN THE 5 HEEmRkEMEZEKERT
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SRR

PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(@) Income tax in the consolidated (a) HZEeBEREMEZENKER
statement of profit or loss and R PTEBE ¢
other comprehensive income

represents:

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Current tax BN EA® 18
PRC Corporate A1 FT1S A (v)
Income Tax (iv) 54,978 84,936
(Over)/under-provision BEFENEE
in respect of prior years (B%8) TR (101) 43
Hong Kong Profits Tax (ii)i) &8 FI1SE (ii)ii) 4,722 28
PRC withholding tax F B TR
— dividend (v) - B (V) 2,500 8,500
— others — EAth 1,035 1,902
63,134 95,409
Deferred tax ELEBLE
Origination and reversal B4 M O BB 1%
of temporary =¥ (M5 15(0))
differences (note 15(b)) 510 (14,701)
63,644 80,708
Notes: KiaE -
[0} Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the i) BIEFREHERABERELEHS
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands ((RBELZEE]) MR A RE
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income B ASEDESARESHSER
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. RERZHSHNERASER -
(ii) For the years ended 31 December 2019 and (ii) BHE_ZT—NLGFk_FT—N\F
2018, the provision for Hong Kong Profits TZA=+—HLEFE - HEF
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated 1S B R F (A (il 5 PE AR Aot g A
assessable profits for the year. #)16.5%TH °
(iil The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 (i) T -NEEBNEHEHET R
is taken into account a reduction granted by the BEEFERNS=—ZE—N\ZE—1
Hong Kong SAR Government of 75% of the tax IR EERNARE - BIEEe
payable for the year of assessment 2018-19 X¥EMNRENTSS TSR E
subject to a maximum reduction of $20,000 for 20,0008 (ZF—\F : L=
each business (2018: a maximum reduction of T—tE - )\FNRFERL&ES
$30,000 was granted for the year of assessment 30,000 B TR EI B EFE =
2017-18 and was taken into account in T N\FRRERTTR) °

calculating the provision for 2018).

“E-NEER FEREFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

P RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(@) Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
represents: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) The statutory income tax rate applicable to the
Company'’s subsidiaries in the mainland China
is 25% for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: 25%).

(v) According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for profits earned since 1
January 2008. In addition, under the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident
will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5%
for dividend income derived from the PRC if the
Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”
and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of
the PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have
been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008.
The Group adopted 5% withholding tax rate for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019.

Dividend withholding tax represents tax
charged by the PRC tax authority and dividend
distributed by the Group and subsidiary in the
mainland China during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

INCOME TAX IN THE 5 HEEmRkEMEZEKERT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF W AT S (&)

PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax (b) BEEXEZRBERABRETE

M EHEF AR :

expense and accounting profit at
applicable tax rates:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T

Profit before taxation BRAE A A 221,786 290,951
Notional tax on profit BREARESHBER

before taxation, BEBXFERN

calculated at the BR 75 AT A1 AY

standard tax rates HEDIA

applicable to the

respective tax

jurisdictions 58,046 72,693
Effect of non-deductible ~ NAIFNFBA S Y /22

expenses 2,982 1,007
Effect of non-taxable BARMBANE

income (692) (642)
Effect of tax losses not RERTIEEBBENTE

recognised 864 3,672
(Over)/under-provision BEFER

in prior years (i) TR (101) 43
PRC dividend A BIRR B TR0

withholding tax (BI5E 15(0))

(Note 15(b)) 1,971 1,748
Other withholding tax H A B 1,035 1,902
Others HAh, (461) 285
Actual tax expense BFRTIAR S 63,644 80,708

—E-NEFFR FERB R A 187



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEFHM
The details of directors’ emoluments are disclosed EEHMFBEZOT
as follows:
Salaries, Equity-settied
allowances Retirement share-based
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary ~ scheme payments
fee inkind  bonuses contributions  Sub-total (note i)
B
4 ERRE
419 BINGHE GEAR —B-nF
Ezhe  EMRN  BERAL % et (W) #t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARETR AEETR ARETR ARMTR
Executive directors #irEs
Mr. Ziming Yang FEREE 720 28 - 2 1,474 - 1474
M. Su Keung Ng ROBREE 249 550 - 3 835 70 905
M. Rongain Ke LS 167 156 - 3 346 22 568
Independent BUkuTES
non-executive directors
M. Yung Kiwok Toui Ay 318 - - - 318 - 318
Mr. Honghui Chen RRRLE 318 - - - 318 - 318
Mr. Ming Shu Leung 2L 318 - - - 318 - 318
Total @it 2,090 1,434 - 85 3,609 292 3,901
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6

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Salaries,

allowances

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary
fee in kind

2R
g5 EDEA

RMB'000  RMB'

000

ARBTT ARBTT

Executive directors UrES

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB1TIERZES) » UARKEST)

BEEEHM @

Equity-settled
Retirement share-based
scheme payments

bonuses contrioutions  Sub-total (note i)

MTEAL
RMB'000
AEETT

IR

Bl

Riferal BRI
3 et (i)

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTT ARMTT ARMTRL

Mr. Ziming Yang FEREE - 16 - 2% 41 - 41
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBTE 143 299 - 54 4% 87 533
Mr. Ronggin Ke TBSEE 165 158 - 45 368 153 521
M. Qlang Wei () FREE() 64 56 - 15 13 - 13
Independent BUENTES
non-executive directors
M. Yung Kok Teui BRAREE 307 - - - 307 - 307
Mr. Honghui Chen RRBSE 307 - - - 307 - 307
Mr. Ming Shu Leung P ik 307 - - - 307 - 307
Total st 1,293 529 - 139 1,961 190 2,151
Notes: KiaE

U

(i)

Mr. Qiang Wei resigned as an executive director with
effect from 19 May 2018.

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option schemes. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share based payment transactions as set out in note

1 (u)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Schemes”
in Report of The Directors and note 25.

(i)

BEREACE T /\FHEA+NLBER
ERITES -

ZESEERBEARRZERETSRE
EREMERENGHEE - ZEBE
BV (B (B THAR IR IR = 1 (u)(il) PR A S B BEIA
B RERN AR ZHO G BERMAE

ZEBVRMNFE  BIEEBEREAE
LIRS B R E TR BT
—B Rk 25 T -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

7

INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2018: two) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 6 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals
are as follows:

REFHMAL

REBEHFMALTOEMEES (=
T—\E MA) BEOHFHREX
61 - BT ERIA LM E
T

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & Kz 4t 5 A 3,034 2,834

Contributions to retirement BRREFET SR

benefit scheme 65 86

Discretionary bonus B TEAL - -
Equity settled share-based VARR 0 B R O AR A

payments HEENR 567 343

3,666 3,263

The emoluments of the three (2018: three)
individuals with the highest emoluments are within
the following bands:

=2(ZF-N\F: ZR)EeFMAL
EVFEN T T HIEEE -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A¥ AE

HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000 % 7L E 1,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 1 1
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE 8

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per
share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB157,644,000 (2018:
RMB211,888,000) and the weighted average
number of 668,593,000 ordinary shares
(2018: 668,157,000) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares

(BB1TIERZES) » UARKEST)

BREFN

BREXEF
BERERNBITIARNRA R LB
BERBEAEBRGENARK
157,644,00070( = & — )\ F :
A R #211,888,0007T ) & £
RE B 8175 @A N T35 &
668,593,000 ( = & — \ &F :
668,157,000 1% ) & & 5 & 10
o

EERMMETIE

Issued ordinary shares at H—H—BMEETEER

1 January 668,593 667,264
Effect of share options I ERENTE

exercised (note 26(c)(ii) (Bt 5 26(c)(i)) - 893
Weighted average number A+—=A=+—HH

of ordinary shares TR 19 81

at 31 December 668,593 668,157

—E-NEFFR FERB R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 8 HBRERN@®

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB157,644,000 (2018: RMB211,888,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 668,593,000 shares (2018:
668,907,000), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

FREFER

EREBERFNTIARAR LB
REFBEAEGENARK
157,644,000 L (ZZE—N\F : A
R ¥211,888,0007T ) & & i f%
DA 15 #668,593,000 % ( =&
— )\ £ : 668,907,000 % ) /& E 4

SHEMT
EERMET I (85F)

Weighted average number A+ —-A=+—H
of ordinary shares B 38 R N 5 E

at 31 December 668,593 668,157
Effect of deemed issue of  R{EIRIEA A R ERTE

shares under the NERBEITRODHTZE

Company’s share option ~ (Ffiz¥25)

scheme for nil

consideration (note 25) - 750
Weighted average number A+ —=A=+—H

of ordinary shares Y AR I 1T 2K

(diluted) at 31 December (&%) 668,593 668,907
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

9 REWF

RMB’000
ARBTT

Cost: B

At 1 January 2018 RZE—\F—H—H -

Reclassification from other property BEMME  BEK

plant and equipment HEEHOE 42,990

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE-N\F+—HA=1+—H
N R=Z-NF-A-B 42,990

Additions INE 97,709
_At31December2019 R=Z-NFT-A=T"H 140,699

Accumulated depreciation: HEHrE -

At 1 January 2018
Reclassification from other property

R—F—N\F—H—H —
BEMYE  BER

plant and equipment REEFOH 1,776
Charge for the year F B 1,607
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE-\F+HA=1+—H

E_Z—-NF—H—H 3,383
Charge for the year FAHBR 8,563

At 31 December 2019

R-ZE—hh&F+=-A=+—H 11,946

Net book value:
At 31 December 2019

BREDFE -
RZZE—hF+=-_A=+—H 128,753

At 31 December 2018

R—_ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 39,607

Investment properties of the Group are situated in
the PRC.

Assets leased out under operating
leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The lease typically runs for an
initial period of 1 to 5 year, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. The leases do not include contingent
rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of investment
properties are classified as investment properties.

The carrying amount of the investment properties
was not materially different from its fair value as at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019.

AEBREMFRUNTE -
REeBEEENEHNEE

AEBREBECEHERLREDS - H
EMVRGEREBERB1ESF  H
& ] E %%‘%Eﬁﬁi’] [ER T B I E
iiEr c HEW T BEHAEE -

REEHER N AN AEYRE ST
ARBMETEEDERIREME -

RZE—N\F+_A=+—BK=_Z
—NF+-A=+—H BEYENK
HEHEEAFERLETEEREZR -

“E-NEER FEREFRA A

193



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R R MR ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B F7T58FE ) + YA REST)
10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND 10 HMW¥E - BMEKRE
EQUIPMENT
(1) Reconciliation of carrying amount (1) AREEHER
Ownership
interests
inland and other
properties held
for own use Furniture,
carriedat  Leasehold  Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
. cost improvements  machinery  vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BRAARN
BEERZLH
RitiE2 ) US| . ;
BEREG RENEEE HRRHE ik k¥ ABIR 3
RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBIOOD
NRETT  ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR  ARET:
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2018 R-F-N\E-A-R = 28,358 43,083 10,953 30,002 280 13,18
Addtons AE = 16 6,186 3203 1252 27567 38,254
Disposals e = (£,784) [£.458) (150) (1813 - (1209
Tensfer B - 2761 33188 - S T -
Reclassfcation to ENAEEREANE
investment property » - - (42,990) - - - (42,990)
Fxchange adustment [ = 14 = 1 119 - 209
_ At3 December2018 REB- A=A - B35 GAQ4. 14082 9860 14443 119454
Impact on el application & EFEIREI RS £ R
of IFRS16 Note) %16#2?&%(% ) 24528 - - - - - 24528
At 1 January 2019 A-2-NEF-A-A 2528 26,395 3974 14,082 29,560 143 143,98
Addtons WI\‘E 31,061 8% 57,69 3,660 2847 13488 109579
Disposals i3 = = 29) (1371) (651) = 2,618)
Tensle g8 - o 13019 - - (1389 -
Fxchange adustment ExaE - 5 = i % = 11
_ At3December2019 RBNETZAZT-R SR519. 21988 A0R32 16398 31595 14302 250984 _
Accumulated depreciation:  Zi &
A1 January 2018 R-F-N\E-A-A = 25,343 2571 9913 24,283 - 62,110
Charge for the year ERik - 193 169 2 2659 - 6,519
Written back on clisposals HERE = (t.457) 616) (%) [1,652) - (6,821)
Reclassification to ENAEERANE
investment property N = = (1,776) = = = (1,776)
_ Exchange adjustment Ed B2 - 14 - B1 21 - %
_ At3 Decermber 2018 RB-NETA=T-B - - N8B 1872 010 B - BB
Impact on it application B EREBE RS ER|
of IFRS 16 (note) mmh(m 1,083 - - - - - 1,083
At January 2019 Z-NE-A-H 1,083 22835 1872 10,110 25,311 - 61,211
Charge for the year Mﬂﬁ% 2.8% 2953 5,607 1524 2403 = 15473
Witen back on cisposals HERT = = B371) (621) ) - (1,767)
Exchange adjustment [EHAE = 5 = % 7l =
_ A3\ December2019 REB-NEAZT-A 3979 2518 __ A% 118 BB S 4968 )
Net book value: RHFE: -
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NE+-A=1-A 51,600 2195 98124 5,360 4635 14102 176016
At 31 December 2018 R=F-\EL-A=1-H = 3560 33102 3972 4249 14443 50328
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using Mzt : ARBEEFEAKBITEREER
the modified retrospective method and adjusted & PR BB B 75 s 25 ZE RI 28 16 570

;ﬂﬂf%:f hE—F— B

e IEREHEEEENE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?(ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ R I5 B 2 5t
ERFE17THRDERAKEEHE) -
BHEE1(C)) °

the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. See note 1(c)()).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

()

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-
use assets by class of underlying asset is as
follows:

Ownership interests in BIEBRZ
leasehold land held e+
for own use, carried at TR EER

10

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB1TIERZES) » UARKEST)

HuYE BERKEBESE)

()

EREEE

SRAERAIES 2 EREL
EREFEAIT -

31 December

—2-1F

+=A=t-H
RMB’000
ARET T

1 January
2019
—T-hEF
~A—H
RMB’000
ARETT

2019

the depreciated cost (RIWEKERARR) () 43,258 22,811
Other properties leased ~ HEEEHAZ
for own use, carried at HAib¥% (RITE
the depreciated cost AR AER) (ii) 8,342 634
51,600 23,445
Note: (i) Ownership interests in leasehold land held for Mz : ((FEERzHELZEEE
own use T
Ownership interests in leasehold land held for HEERzHEL 2 Ea#EE
own use represented the Group’s land use rights mIEAEBMAFBEMEE L1
on leasehold land located in the PRC. Lump -t 55 A o IRBERZ S L Hb(E
sum payments were made upfront to acquire FRERIEEL —IREREK ©
these land use rights.
(iiy Other properties leased for own use (N EEEB AMEMYZE
The Group has obtained the right to use other AEBEEBHEHZESER
properties as its warehouses and office through EMYZIERR ERIFEAEHRE
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for Mo ZHEE—RYFBEH2ES
an initial period of 2 to 5 years. Lease payments Fo-HENEREEFEMNAR
are usually increased every year to reflect market IS HES o
rentals.
—E-hEFHR & REFH R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND 10 HttYx BERRHE®)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(2) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (2 FHEEE®)
The analysis of expense items in relation HR B RN EERBENHAX
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as HE AT

follows:

Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset:

Ownership interests
in leasehold land
held for own use

Other properties leased for
own use

Interest on lease liabilities
(note 4(a))

Expense relating to
short-term leases and
other leases with
remaining lease term
ending on or before
31 December 2019

Expense relating to leases
of low-value assets,
excluding short-term
leases of low-value
assets

Total minimum lease
payments for leases
previously classified
as operating leases
under IAS 17

Variable lease payments
not included in
the measurement of
lease liabilities

BIREEERRN S D
EREEENESH

FEERMZEE T
A

HEFERNEMYIE

BFIHBEHN T —NEF
+=-—A=+—Hsz
RfEmZ ERRE R
HaBERBENRY

HEEEEEMRE
(TEREEEEE
MAEHITH ) AERERVR

SERTRIEE ST ERIF 17 5%
DHEREEHER
RIEHE N F AR

SHEER E R
BLE S G

2019
—E-hE

RMB’000
UN: &

868

2,028

162

6,394

204

2018
—E-N\F

RMB’000
ARETT

9,714

224
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(2) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. After initial recognition
of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise the
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Under this approach,
the comparative information is not restated. See
note 1(c)().

During the year, additions to right-of-
use assets were primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements and newly acquired
leasehold land.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the
future cash outflows arising from leases that
are not yet commenced are set out in notes
20(d), 23 and 28(a), respectively.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

HuYE BERKEBESE)

(2 FRAEEE®)

Mz : AEEER=T—hF—A—H
FRLEFTER AR X ERBRER
ISR E2ERFE 165% - WE AR
RZZT—NF—A—BZHY4EE
SR DA TR 5 B 5 i AR % B PR = 5 28
A7 e R ElE e
HEZEREEE - R=ZT—N
F-A—BEREREAREE
% ANEB(EREAMBAN) AR
RERAEEECITE - MARE
FERTBURE T EBNIRE RELE
EREEHEE TELENHASH
¥ o IRBZMUE - WEET|LLER
ER o BB

FR - ERABREENAETRE
REFHEBREN ZEEAH
ENREFWBHEHEL AR -

FAMEER LR HEA
BEHRIHA R ST R ARFGBHE
EEZ*XL%QEML&Z;#F ! AE
2 RI2 B 5E20(d)  23%28(a) °

“E-NEER FEREFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

11 INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND 11
HELD FOR OWN USE UNDER

OPERATING LEASES

HEHE N SFEAZEES
i e 2R

RMB’000
ARETT

Cost: KA :
At 1 January 2018 and RZE—-—N\F—A—HK

31 December 2018 —ET-)\F#+=-—HA=+—H 23,894
Impact on initial application B X e A B BR B s s A2 R

of IFRS 16 (Note) F16 M E (MizE) (23,894)
At 1 January 2019 and RZE—NF—A—BK

31 December 2019 —T-hEFE+-_A=+—H —
Accumulated amortisation: Rty -
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 582
Charge for the year FRHFR 501
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N\F+=_A=+—H 1,083
Impact on initial application B E BB B s R 5 2R

of IFRS 16 (Note) F 16 (MizE) (1,083)
At 1 January 2019 and RZE-—NF—HA—BK

31 December 2019 —E-hF+=-A=+—H =
Net book value: BRMENEE -
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-—hF+=-_HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H 22,811

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use
assets relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17. The depreciated
carrying amount of the Group's leasehold land located
in the PRC which were previously included in interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases
are also identified as a right-of-use asset. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated.
See Note 1(c)(i).

Interests in leasehold lands held for own use under
operating leases represented the Group’s land use
rights on leasehold land located in the PRC.

At 31 December 2018, the remaining useful life of
the land use rights was 46 years.
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izt @ ARER-_Z-AF— A HEELRLE
FTAB WA B R R P B R B 7 s S HE RIS
1655 » I B 388 B V) 45 fR A HE SR ER SE A
REBEE ST EREI7T RS BEREEH
SR ERBEEREEE - NEBR
REREE L (ARIEGEHELIE
FAARFHEEAZEE L 2 #as) TR
RIREREEE - REZME  LEST
LeE AR - FE2BIME () °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BEEE

Computer
software Others Total

B Hity L

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Cost: B

At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—AF—H 59,469 9,050 68,519
Additions NE 3,612 - 3,612
Disposals meE (320) — (320)

At 31 December 2018 R=-—ZT— \F
and 1 January 2019 +-—A=+—H8K

—ET-NF—H—H 62,761 9,050 71,811
Additions NE 2,261 - 2,261
At 31 December 2019 R-ZT—hF
+—-A=+—8H 65,022 9,050 74,072
Accumulated Rt -
amortisation:
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H 26,064 2,237 28,301
Charge for the year FRMR 6,162 - 6,162
Written back R ERE D
on disposals (45) - (45)

At 31 December 2018 RZ-ZT—N\F
and 1 January 2019 +ZA=+—HEK

—E—hF—H—H 32,181 2,237 34,418
Charge for the year FRHMER 6,355 - 6,355
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZT—HF

+—-—A=+—8H 38,536 2,237 40,773
Net book value: BREHE -
At 31 December 2019 R-ZT—hF

+=-—A=+—H” 26,486 6,813 33,299

At 31 December 2018 R-—ZT—\F
+=—A=+—H 30,580 6,813 37,393

—s-hEsR FREHERAT QRIS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 12 BREE®
The amortisation charge of intangible assets for FRNELEESBHEER G AGEER
the year is included in “administrative and other NAEMEEKERE T [ITEREEAM
operating expenses” and “selling and distribution LiBRAx] R [HERSHERAX]
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 13 R—EBEQTANER

Particulars of the associate which is an unlisted
domestic enterprise incorporated and with business
in the PRC whose quoted market price is not
available:

ZEE R R (R—RER P B EMALYE
ETRBOIFLENREALE - HMmi5HR
BITARF)FBOT

Proportion of ownership interest

effective

Particulars of

issued and paid

Name of associate up capital
ERTRE

BENRER HrErEE
Guangzhou Huazhi RMB100,000,000
Investments Co., Ltd. AR 100,000,0007C

(*Huazhi Investments')* (note)
BMEERERRAR)
(TEBRE ) ()

i 5

RRERELA
Group's
Held by the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
A%EH HE
ARAfEE  AARNE IEEE
33% - 33% Properties construction

*  The English translation of the Company name is for
reference only. The official name of the Company is in
Chinese.

Note: The associate is accounted for using the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised
financial information of the associate, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 13 R—REE= ATINER (&)

2019 2018
—E-hEF - N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
Gross amounts of the associate ~ Bf& /A A 42558
Current assets MENEE 413,661 253,022
Non-current assets EMBEE 6 3
Current liabilities MEEE (162,591) (136,611)
Non-current liabilities EmEAaE (134,800) -
Equity fE 116,276 116,414
Revenue Wes - -
Loss for the year FAEE (138) (686)
Total comprehensive income ZHEWABEE (138) (686)
Reconciled to the Group’s ERZR R E OB A R
interests in the associate R HAR
Gross amounts of net assets BENAEEFEERE
of the associate 116,276 116,414
Group’s effective interest AEERNERER 33% 33%
Group’s share of net assets AEEEEEHEAREEFE
of the associate 38,371 38,417
Goodwill PR 10,932 10,932
Carrying amount in the iRae %k AR RREE
consolidated financial
statements 49,303 49,349

“E-NEER FEBRAH R A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 KRB ATINKRE

The following list contains only the particulars of TREHIIEAKEFEE - BEEXEE
subsidiaries which principally affected the resullts, BERFENNBRRFE BBEHE
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares BASN - PR BT iEAR o

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERELD
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by the
Name of company and business  paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries Principal activities
SRR BERAR  AEEH A0 HEAA
AER 3k HREAGHE ERER fikh fise  TEEE
Cabbeen Clothing China PRC HK$50,000\,0@ 100% - 100% Wholesale of menswear
Co., Ltd.* () hE 50,000,000787 HEEH
(‘Cabbeen China)
FRRE(0E) BRAT()
([~EehE))
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC HK$20,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of menswear
Go,, Ltd* () HE 20,000,007 HESH
BT RERAARAA ()
Quanzhou Miie Electronic PRC Nil 100% - 100% Wholesale of menswear
Commerce Co, Lid.* i 3 HESE
SNTEREFEEERAR
Guangzhou Zixi Enterprise PRC HK$8,000,000 100% = 100% Trademark holding and
Management Co, Ltd. * ) e 8,000,007 retail of mengwear
BNTREARERERAR () BERARSRTE
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC RMB6,000,000 100% - 100% Online sales of menswear
Trading Co., Ltd.* i ARE6,000,0007C FHPRHE
BFERHESERAA
Guangzhou Huazhi PRC RMB65,000,000 60.6% - 60.6% Real estate development
Development Co,, Lid.* i AR65,000,0007C FHERE
BNEEERLRARAA
Junyuan Development Co., Ltd.* PRC RMB6,616,385 100% - 100% Properties holding
AR RERERAT el AR¥:6,616,88570 nxRR
Note: (i) The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned KiaE - () ZEMB R ATBRIINEEE D
enterprises in the PRC. £
* The English translation of the companies’ names is for * ZERNRMRIGEREMRSE - ZZAR]
reference only. The official names of these companies are P EEARHEE -
in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14

(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating
to Guangzhou Huazhi Development Co., Ltd.
(“Huazhi Development”), the subsidiary of the Group
which have material non—controlling interest (NCI).
The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter—

company elimination.

Huazhi Development:

(B B7T#585Z 5 - AN ERESR)
RIB A RMIRE (&)

TRESBRENEEZEXERBRA
AI(TEEER]) (AREHEEEAIFE
PetEm 2 B AR) 2B R o TFIH 7
BB Z IR A R RIE L A < &
B o

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —ZT—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
NCI percentage EIERERE L 39.4% 39.4%
Current assets mENEE 51,552 47,984
Non-current assets EMBEE 49,765 49,810
Current liabilities MEEE (34,261) (32,003)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - -
Net assets BEFE 67,056 65,791
Carrying amount of NCI FEFERR R EIE 26,420 25,922
Revenue Wz - -
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmF (E8) 1,265 (209)
Total comprehensive
income/(loss) 2HEME(EER) 85 1,265 (209)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DELEFEIERER
wmAlL (B1E) 498 (82)
Dividend paid to NCI IS T IR 2 2 IR - =
Cash flows from operating KERESRSNE
activities 12 (16)
Cash flows from investing KEZHRERE
activities - (97,840)
Cash flows from financing BEERERE
activities - 98,000
—E-NFFR FEREBFRAAE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the
consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

15

e MBI R A RER

(a)

A AR 2R M B9 BN AL

HiE -

2019 2018

—g-hE T N\&

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREBFIT

PRC Corporate Income Tax FEILE AT {5E 41,140 34,084

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMFH 5,533 811

46,673 34,895

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) ERANEEHEEERSE

recognised: f& :

() Movement of each component of (i) EZEHEEERAEHN

deferred tax assets and liabilities BHoEE

The components of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during
the year are as follows:

&R & B ISR &k R
EERBEE,/ (BR)
BIAE R B o I 5 A B an
T

PRC dividend
withholding tax
relating to the
undistributed
profits of the
Inventory ~ Allowances for Accrued Unrealised ~ Company’s PRC
Deferred tax arising from: provision  doubtful debts expenses profits ~ subsidiaries*
BRAL
MENELE
AAEN
WP RBMELEERE FERR RERE Eitfix AEREN  DERSRAE
’ RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB000
AREFT NRETT NRETTL
At January 2018 A=F-)\E-A-H 13022 - 4715 7371 (10720 14,388
Created o o AR
orloss (note ) (I3k5fa) 287 165 2143 2164 6752 14701
At 31 December 2018 A \Et=A=1-R
and 1 January 2019 k=%-1%-A-H 15,899 165 7458 9,53 (3968) 29089
Cediedoeed)opoft A/ (1) Bt
orloss (ot ) (FiFofa) 1276 Ll 4873 (7.269) 59 [510)
A3iDecenber 2019 SR AEZAZTA AL 25 131 261 (349 28519
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE 15 RENBMRRKAKAEHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (#8)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EEIANELEHEEERS
recognised: (Continued) &:#)
() Movement of each component of () EZHREEERARBH
deferred tax assets and liabilities B EE (&)
(Continued)
* The amount included the provision * ZEeBRBERBEE-T

—hWE+=-_A=+—H81
FE 2K E A R
TEE R TEMB B E AR
1,971,000t ( = — N\
F: A R #1,748,000
L) RREBEEZZT—N
F+ZA=t—HILFE
PR EERTEMBEL &
BRI B ERE AR
2,500,0007c( =& — N\
F: A K 8,500,000
JT) °

of withholding tax on profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB1,971,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB1,748,000),
and the reversal of deferred tax liabilities
on withholding tax upon distribution of
dividends amounting to RMB2,500,000
during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB8,500,000).

R MR R R

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated (ii)
statement of financial position

2019 2018
—E-hF - N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Net deferred tax asset RERE BB R
recognised in the R 2 IR
consolidated statement WIEEEFE
of financial position 32,455 33,257
Net deferred tax liability RERE I BARR TR
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement MIEBEFE
of financial position (3,876) (4,168)
28,579 29,089
—E-NEFFR FERB R A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

15

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not
recognised

The Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
certain PRC subsidiaries of RMB15,329,000
(2018: RMB14,761,000), which will expire in
five years under the current tax legislation.
The tax effect on such tax losses has not
been recognised as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not
recognised

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC
dividend withholding tax relating to certain
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at the end of each
reporting period, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of RMB1,007,387,000
(2018: RMB900,710,000) of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries would not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.
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BRI R A Y A 1S 8L

RERBNIELEBEEE

REEI EERE A T+ B
BARIMBHBEEBEEARK
15,329,000t ( ZFE— \F : A
R #14,761,000 7 ) ) I {E 5 18
BE AEBROTRZETNEREA
Fielam e AERNEBAERBRRER T
AR BE R AB BT TS5 #E [ B B AR DA
HHEENERT RN - iy &
BREBAZENEBENT B

AEZNELEREAER

I FERE AR B P BB A R
8 T AR 9 K& ) A B 89 B AR
EBRIRNELEHIEEE  RAE
BARNAIZEGIZENB R AR
BEBE - KREEENSREH
HEREELOFMS  BEARATEARR
7] B BB A R A R 9 R & B A
R #1,007,387,000 . (—Z— )\
F : AR¥ 900,710,000 7T) #&1~
SRR RERDIK ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

16 INVENTORIES 16 &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated () HEMBERRARRNEEER
statement of financial position ¥

comprise:

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR®ET T

Raw materials [RAR 27,016 22,373

Work in progress EE 3,861 -

Finished goods IR 352,839 361,205

383,716 383,578

(b) The analysis of the amount of (b) BERABEZIAFTABRNE
inventories recognised as an ESBEIHWT :

expense and included in profit or
loss is as follows:

2019 2018
—2-hE T N\%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Carrying amount of EHEFEMNREE
inventories sold 714,875 694,730
Inventory write-down FEMOR, 37,384 42,010

752,259 736,740

SE-AEFR FRBSERAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EBZ NEMEWFIE

2019 2018
—E-hE —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
Trade receivables B 5 W KIE 609,597 363,867
Bills receivable JEW IR 25,000 -
Less: Loss allowance B EE R (980) (661)
Trade and bills receivables B S WA R ERERE 633,617 363,206
Prepayments to suppliers M FE R TR N 5RIE 233 124
Other deposits, prepayments Hipize - EAREK
and receivables (Note) FEWRIE (B3E) 105,013 143,063
738,863 506,393
Note: Included in other deposits, prepayment and receivable, iz : R=ZE—NWF+ZA=+—HOEMIEZ

as at 31 December 2019:

Short-term loans with total face value of RMB57,840,000
(2018: RMB47,840,000) were lent to Huazhi Investments,
an associated company of the Group, among which
RMB25,840,000 (2018: RMB 15,840,000) bears an
interest at 30% above The People’s Bank of China
(“PBOC”) base interest rate and RMB32,000,000
(2018: RMB32,000,000) bears an interest at 7% (2018:
30% above PBOC base interest rate). The loans were
recorded at amortized cost as at 31 December 2019.

£ - RNFEREYFIARLRE

MELKRE (REBEMEE QR 18 H R
M 488 5 AR # 57,840,000 T & i &
HK(ZZ—/)\F  AR47,840,0007T)
Hh a3k AR 25,840,0007T (ZZ— N\
£ AR#15,840,00070) IR B A RR
T(THRBARRIT]) EEFE £F30%
sHE - T AR 32,000,0007t (= — N\
£ 132,000,0007T) AI#R7 %5t B (=T
—N\F RPEARBITEERE LZ
30%) c ZEBERIIN=_Z—NF+=A
=+ — BRI ARARR o

All of the current trade and other receivables are Fr BVERE 5 I L b WS SR IE TR B A Y
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense —FARE SN ER SRR - METEE
within one year, except for the Group’s deposits of RBBE-—FRrEBNAEEIZRE AR
RMB2,520,000 (2018: RMB1,966,000), which are #2,620,000L(ZF—N\F: AR
expected to be recovered after more than one year. 1,966,000 7T ) R4 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group accepts bank acceptance bills from
major banks in the PRC for settlement of trade
debts. The management considered that the risk
of these bills relates substantially to credit risk.
Accordingly, when these bills were transferred
by either discounting or endorsement, they were
derecognised as a financial asset.

At 31 December 2019, the Group transferred bank
acceptance bills totalling RMB158,468,000 (2018:
RMB257,030,000), and derecognised as financial
assets. These bank acceptance bills will mature six
months from the date of issue.

(@) Ageing analysis
Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
based on invoice date and net of loss
allowance as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 are as follows:

17

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

B REMEWTEIE @)

AEEREFESRARATEERR
TORITALRER - EEERR/ZFTR
BErRRETREEERRAR - Bt -
EREEREEMANEEERR K

R-ZE—NE+-_BA=+—8 &
B EEERE R ARK 158,468,000 7T

—FT—)N\F: AR¥257,030,0007T)
RIRITREEE  WRIFERASME
E o RFIRITAREE S B ETA R
FT7NE A R ER o

(a) BRERDHIT
RZZB-NER_ZT-NF+=
A=+—B®E S EWFIEKE
WEBNREBEERERBEER
HEIRBRER D ATZO T -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR®ET T

Within 3 months =EAAR 295,176 292,839
More than 3 months but ~ =1& A LA_E7XE A AR

within 6 months 307,278 69,794

More than 6 months but 7~ E A A E—F AR

within 1 year 31,163 573

More than 1 year —FLAE - -

633,617 363,206

Trade and bills receivables are due within
180-270 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 27(a).

B RUFERERERENAZR
HEf#ET180 =270 B W EIH] -
EBEASEEEERNE —TF
BEEHIEE27(a) ©

SE-AEFR FRBSERAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EZRHEMEWFEIE @)
(Continued)
(b) Impairment of trade and bills (b) ESEUREREREEN
receivables wiE
The movement in the loss allowance for FRZE SHRNFIAEBEREE
trade receivables during the year, including B(REERNGEREAERE
components measured individually and using EEEREBEREKE D) I
the expected credit loss provision matrix, is 15 5
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®ET T
At 1 January R—H—H 661 -
Impairment loss HRIBEEE
recognised 319 661
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 980 661
18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 Hftem&EE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE-1%F RZT—)\F
+=A=+-B +=ZA=1+—~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Wealth management products B Em - 60,000
- 60,000

These were principal-guaranteed wealth
management products issued by a bank in the
PRC with maturity period within one year as at 31
December 2018, which were settled during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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20

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 19 BEFRITER

Bank deposits have been pledged as security for RITEREERERENER (HizE22)
bills payable (note 22) and banking facilities. The NMIRITEREMER - EEPRITERS
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the RBERBEENEZERIIRITRE D HE
settlement of relevant bills payable and expiration of FERR o

banking facilities.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBEEEY

(@) Cash and cash equivalents (a) BERBRESEEYWEFRE -
comprise:

2019 2018
—®-nE T \F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand #HRITFHR K& FEERE 256,493 211,198
Other deposit Hb 7R 10,499 9,286

Cash and cash equivalents F4RE BIESR R A

in the consolidated RekREEFED

financial position 266,992 220,484
At 31 December 2019, cash and cash RZE—hFE+=ZA=+—8"
equivalents placed with banks in mainland FERFEAMRITHRE KT
China amounted to RMB251,300,000 (2018: +EEYW A AR 251,300,0007T
RMB210,877,000). Remittance of funds out (ZZ—N\%F : AR%210,877,000
of mainland China is subject to the relevant 7L) c BERFEAENNESHE
rules and regulations of foreign exchange ST AR R T A 40 9 SN B 1) 89 4
control promulgated by the PRC government. BRI SRR -

“E-NEER FEBRAH R A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEZEEY &)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) PBRBIADEFIERLE TE TS
taxation to cash generated from REWHER :

operations:

2019
—E-hE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Profit before taxation BREEAT A A 221,786 290,951
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 4(c) 24,036 8,126
Amortisation of B EEEH
intangible assets 4(c) 6,355 6,162
Amortisation of lease MEEMNFIE
prepayments i 4(0) - 501
Share of loss of DME—FEEE QR
an associate BB 46 190
Finance costs AR A 4(a) 21,608 19,891
Net foreign exchange HNEE 1R
loss FER 2,110 7,838
Interest income FEHA 3 (17,968) (14,775)
Net gain HENE - HFE
on disposal of BLea
property, plant HER
and equipment 3 (81) (1,362)
Net fair value gain on BAFEFABR
financial assets at fair K EEN
value through profit or loss N EF R 3 (621) (846)
Equity settled share-based ~ #Em&EE UG A
payment expenses EMONHAZ 40 1,630 1,167
Changes in working capital: ~ ZiE& ¢ &%) :
Increase in inventories FELEM (138) (46,526)
Increase in trade and B REMEK
other receivables FRIEIE AN (247,022) (14,295)
(Decrease)/increase in trade & 5 R EAbESR
and other payables FEORD) /1N (5,722) 7,847
Cash generated from KEEBERE
operations 6,019 264,869
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BHERBFAESEEN @
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) BRBIADRFIELE EHE

RENHk : (@)

taxation to cash generated from
operations: (Continued)

(c)

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach and
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17. Previously, cash payments under
operating leases made by the Group as a
lessee of RMB10,738,000 were classified as
operating activities in the consolidated cash flow
statement. Under IFRS 16, except for short-term
lease payments, payments for leases of low

Miz: AEBEER=FT—NE—H—AH
ERRIERTEWEE R ERABR
AR EERIFE 1658 - W FHE
R-Z—NF—A—BZH%
ERIATERR LT AT AR IR B R &
AF 17RO B AREHEZHE
HEZzEREEEREERARE -
SERl - ARE(ERABAN)RE
REBEFH 2R NRARKE
10,738,000 TEELFA RSN E
RADERRLEE - REFEEIR
G| EEBNFE165% - B H

value assets and variable lease payments not HENK EEEEEHENK
included in the measurement of lease liabilities, RRFEHEBBERITETAZ
all other rentals paid on leases are now split into AIERENTIN  BERBEERN

capital element and interest element (see note
20(c)) and classified as financing cash outflows.
Under the modified retrospective approach, the
comparative information is not restated. Further
details on the impact of the transition to IFRS 16
are set out in note 1(c)(i).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising

from financing activities
The table below details changes in the

Group’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.

(c)

Z A AEMESRRFEE D RA
&P BB BB (B 20(c))
WESRASMERDRL - RIE
RIERTBME - WESFILBRE
o BB E BRI % WS %
AFE16T LT EZE—TFHEH
RMEE1(C)() ©

METHMELAEZHIR

TREIIMEARDELEAKHE
BEZEHFE  BRASNE
R8s RELIHELZAR
ERERECDHRKBRRER
RAEBEAESRERTE
RREEHELZHERENE

E o

“E-NEER FEREFRA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEZEEY &)

(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (c) METHFIELAEBEZHER
from financing activities (Continued) (#&)

Bank Loans
and other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total

BITERK HEAR act

L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT R ARBT T

At 1 January 2018 RZF-NF-fA-H 288,097 = 288,097

Changes from financing MERSREZED

cash flows:
Repayment of BEBTER
bank loans (17,372) - (17,372
Total changes from HEREREL
_fnandngcash fows Rgew 0 ey - (17.372)
Exchange adjustments  EX#EE 00000 1 - 15194
Other change: Hitt2s
Amortization on HitER S A
other borrowings cost 1,683 - 1,533
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=+-H 287452 - 287,452
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEZEEY &)

(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (c) METHFELAEBEZHER
from financing activities (Continued) (#&)
Bank Loans
and other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITEFR HERE st
Ef&fa A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR
Impact on initial BINE %ll‘”ﬁﬁ%#&i
application of ERE16%H 2T E
IFRS 16 (Note) (i) - 497 497
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-h&-H-A 287,452 497 287,949
Changes from financing BERSREZED
cash flows:
Proceeds from MRTEREHE
new bank loans \ \ 194,000 - 194,000
Repayment of BERITER
bank loans \ (132,916) - (132,916)
Capital element of EffEEAES
lease rentals paid - (1.916) (1.916)
Interest element of ENREZFERS
lease rentals paid i - (162) (162)
Total changes from HERERMELEDER
___financing cashflows . . 61084 . (078) . 59,006
_Exchangeadjustments __ EX@® 4451 ... e 4451
Other change: Hit 25 :
Amortization on Hit AR A
other borrowings cost 1,750 - 1,750
Interest expenses FIEMX - 162 162
Increase in lease liabilites ~ HARET LHHE
from entering into new ZHEEEEM
leases during the period = 9,736 9,736
At 31 December 2019 R=B-1%F
+=HA=+—H 354,737 8,317 363,054
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using Mizk - AKRBEEFEALEBITEREER
the modified retrospective method and adjusted & P BB Bt 745 i 25 2E R 28 16 5%
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to WERABR-_ZT—NLF—A—H
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which 2 BRI 45 R DATERR B 4 AT AR 45 X
were previously classified as operating leases Bt ERIE 7R AL A
under IAS 17. See notes 1(c)(i) and 20(b). EvHENBCHERE - F2

BRI 1(c)(i) K2 20(b) ©

“E-NEER FEBRAH R A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEZEEY &)

(Continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d)

Amounts included in the cash flow statement
for leases comprise the following:

FEAHEERS RN

REEFARESRERZIFIER
TET’J"J%IE :

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

(Note)

(BF&E)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T AR®ET T

Within operating cash flows P& &R R = (7,765) (10,738)
Within investing cash flows RIREIREREN (21,315) -
Within financing cash flows REIER &SR E (2,078) —
(31,158) (10,738)

Note:

As explained in note 20(b), the adoption of IFRS 16
introduces a change in classification of cash flows of
certain rentals paid on leases. The comparative amounts
have not been restated.

These amounts relate to the following:

fias -

A0 A0 B E 20(b) Pt - BR AN BB BA s 3R
HEHF6REHE THESNEEZIR
ERENHED - HWRSEILET ©

ZEERENRREH

2019 2018

—E-hE —T—-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Lease rentals paid ENHEERES (9,843) (10,738)
Purchase of leasehold BEHEY

properties (21,315) -

(31,158) (10,738)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

RITEK
SRATHERTYIRIA AR -

2019 2018
—E-hE —=E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETIT

_Withinoneyear L i 4 R N 354737| 62,566
After 1 year but within 2 years M1FEBEBER2FER - 234,886
354,737 287,452

Bank borrowings as of 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019 were carried at amortized cost.

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of RMB
114,000,000 (2018: Nil) were pledged with the Group’s
respective trade receivables with the same amount.

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of
RMB 240,737,000 (2018: RMB287,452,000) were
unsecured, and drawn down under a loan facility of
HK$350,000,000.

At 31 December 2019, the banking facilities of the
Group were amounted to RMB712,235,000 (2018:
RMB789,113,000). The facilities were utilised to the
extent of RMB240,737,000 (2018: RMB287,452,000).
All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
financial ratios, and at the same time, one of them
further requires the controlling shareholder to maintain
his equity interest and voting rights in the Company
at certain level. A breach of these undertakings would
result that the drawn down facilities and interest would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, none of
the covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had
been breached.

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—BK_-ZF
—NE+-A=1+—B2Z2RITEE
SHRRANETE o

RZZE—NFT+_A=+—8 - R
FAR®114,000,0007T(ZZE— £ :
B)EUAEBERcSRESE
WERIEH R -

R-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—H " R
RARBE 240,737,000 L ( —ZF— \4F :
AR #287,452,00070 ) AR - I
BRI E H @& 1R E850,000,0004 7T ©

RZZB-NF+ZA=+—H &~5£HE
ZIRTTRE E AR 712,235,000 7T(=
T—N\F : AR¥789,113,0007T) ° %
ZREEEA AR 240,737,000 T(=
T—N\F: AR¥287,452,0007C ) °
FIBASE 7 RITRE I RBTHAE
EETHBLERE@R 2 RE - R H
h—IEE— S ERIERREERFENA
NAIZBEREBEEETKT - ER
ZEAEBERERNZBE KR EK
RIBZEREER  AEBESTHERZS
RFEZEBTER - R_ZE—N\FE+_A
=+—BEk=ZZE—hF+-_A=+—
H EARNEE s RHEUREER -

“E-NEER FEBRAH R A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 EBESRHEHMESRIE

At At

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=-B—-N%F RZT—\F

t=A=t-8 +-A=t+-H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT
Trade payables B2 ENFIR 298,743 123,153
Bills payable (note (a)) FEN & (FI3E (a) 137,040 345,784

Trade and bills payables (note (b)) B HEMNFIER

FERTZRE (3T (b)) 435,783 468,937

Contract liabilities aHaE 61,168 52,381
Other payables and accruals HAthEFIE R ERT & A 94,559 76,077
591,510 597,395
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 EBZRHMENKIEE
(Continued)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to FIBE 5 KEMENFRIBTEIR N —F
be settled or recognized as income within one year WNEENIERRBRASIZERER -

or are repayable on demand.

(@) Bills payable as at 31 December 2019 @ ZE-NAFTZA=1+—H1E
were secured by pledged bank deposits of NEBRABEKIFRITFERARE
RMB89,824,000 (2018: RMB140,485,000) 89,824,000 t( =Z&E— N\ : A
(note 19). FR# 140,485,000 7T ) {E K 38 (B

F£19) °

()  An ageing analysis of the trade and bills ) EBIHENRIERENREBBEE
payables based on the invoice date is as ZAEMERRTAT ¢
follows:

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Within 3 months =@EANUA 324,309 320,370
More than 3 months but ~ =1& A LA_E7XE A AR

within 6 months 105,598 140,323

More than 6 months but ~ 7~1E A LA E—5F AR

within 1 year 4,667 5,147

More than 1 year —FE 1,209 3,097

435,783 468,937

“E-NEER FEBRAH R A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual AEBHEEGENARRE AR ZBER
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end HHBRUA R EE E B R EE
of the current and previous reporting periods and at AIEE 165 B RIS N EIEIBR T -

the date of transition to IFRS 16:

At 31 December 2019 At1 January 2019 At 31 December 2018
R=B-NE+-A=t-B RZT-N5-A-B RZZ-\Fr-A=1-A
Present Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments payments payments
BEHE RERE SEEE SERE  REEE  REEE
fIZRE fR8E (FRE (F8E AFRE  ARERE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000
AEH N ARE ARE ARE ARE

Within 1 year —FR 1,380 1,747 497 508 - -
Adter 1 year but within 2 years —ERBRER 1,500 1,806 - - - -
After 2 years but within S years ~ RERETFR 5,428 5,868 - - - -
8,317 9,421 497 508 - -
Less: total future interest expenses  Jil : ARAIEFX A5 (1,104) (1) -
Present value of lease liabilties HEakERE 8,317 497 -
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified Mizk - AKBEERLEENEERERBR
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening BTSSR EER|E 165 WEHABKR-Z
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities —NF—RA— B Z B4R A RER EL 5L Bl
relating to leases which were previously classified as RIBBRE ST ERE 17RO B ALEHR
operating leases under IAS 17. These liabilities have EvHERBCHESE ZFAGBEH
been aggregated with the brought forward balances BRI BEARENE 2 HERRAER
relating to leases previously classified as finance leases. AHtE - RNZZTE—N\F+_A=1+—H©H
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has R FIWMES| BERLR D E AR
not been restated and relates solely to leases previously EHECHEEH - AEBEZRBI
classified as finance leases. Further details on the impact MELERF16FE 2 EZE—PFHEH
of the transition to IFRS 16 are set out in note 1(c)(i). NOERIONE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
the rate of 14% to 16% of the eligible employees’
salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for
the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension
obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.

24

I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B STHBEIN - HAREIIT)
EERIKEF

REMFRAKEE
AEENTEHBAR2ERFETR
Ko AR U HERE AT B S B SR (R FGR AR
@AM EI(T&x5H 81 1) it B
BRARIANGEREEHFEMNI14%E
16% HY b R AT EEH K - RNEHE
EREZABHE - RERBIRSENS T
F3t0 77 BT o 375 IR A A st (R0 2%
AEREN RN EE XN RAKREAER
£

AEBTRBERARH AR SRS
7] - BRBRERBIEOIE T BLEERE
ArEERMATIERTESETE (M58
EEETEl]) - BIESF S AHBILRE
ANEEHFE HFORIRETE] - RIBBRIE
T8 BEREEBEBARSIH
R HREREEERKRARSY. - H
TS iB & A HEREY A 30,0008 TR £
BR o [AIFTEIVEH R HREIR SR8

B EXFT RSN - REBREKREE
MR HTEEMEASE -

“E-NEER FEREFRA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has two share option schemes
namely, the Pre-IPO Employee Share Option
Scheme (the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) and
the Share Option Scheme, which were adopted on
8 October 2013.

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 8 October 2013, the Company granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 8,520,000 shares of the Company to
its directors, employees and one of its
distributors, under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.024,
being 80% of the initial public offering price.
No further option could be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 8
October 2013. Options granted had vesting
periods of 1 to 3 years commencing from 28
October 2013, being the date of the listing of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Each option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

Pursuant to the rules of the share option
scheme, options will lapse when the grantee
ceases to be an employee of the Group
for reasons other than death, permanent
disability, retirement and transfer of
employment to related parties, or terminates
the business with the Group.
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

The number of pre-IPO share options
outstanding and exercisable as at year end

dates are as follows:
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MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

EEEEUROD/BERNKS
(#8)

() BXRLRABERERESS

(&

RELEB RMARITE LA TITEZ
BRAAREEABRESRE W
T

Outstanding as R—A—BERTE

at 1 January 3,150,000 6,199,000
Exercised during the year FRE1T{E - (1,329,000)
Lapsed during the year FRE KRR (200,000) (1,720,000)
Outstanding as R+ A=+—HREKRTE

at 31 December 2,950,000 3,150,000
Exercisable as R+ZA=+—BaF{7E

at 31 December 2,950,000 3,150,000

The weighted average closing price
immediately before the date on which share
options were exercised during the year ended

31 December 2018 was HK$2.55.

The share options outstanding at 31
December 2019 had a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 3.8 years (2018:

4.8 years).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme

(i)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to
invite eligible participants, including
employees and directors of any
company in the Group, to take up
options at a nominal consideration
of HK$1 to subscribe for shares
of the Company to a maximum of
70,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to the rules of the share
option scheme, options will lapse when
the grantee ceases to be an employee
of the Group for reasons other than
death, permanent disability, retirement
and transfer of employment to related
parties, or terminates the business
with the Group.

On 3 August 2017 and 13 June 2018
(the “Date of Offer”), the Company
offered 6,000,000 and 7,400,000
options respectively to two of its
directors and certain employees. The
options have vesting periods of 5 years
commencing from the Date of Offer
and have a contractual life of 10 years.
Each option gives the holders the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

The Company did not grant any
options under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB1TIERZES) » UARKEST)

25 EHREHEURDAERNRS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) EERESTE(2)
() (Continued) M @&
Details of movements in the share EIRBEEBRE SR LA
options which have been granted BEREZESFFEHI DM
under the Share Option Scheme are T
as follows:
Options granted  Options granted
on 3 August 2017  on 13 June 2018
with exercise with exercise
price of HK$2.19 price of HK$3.54
R-B-—+F R-B-N\fF
NAZBREN ~BT=AEEMN
TEER2198T THEERIS4ET
8 R 8 R
Outstanding at RZT—N\F
1 January 2018 —H—H
RARITIE 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Granted B - 7,400,000 7,400,000
Lapsed BAH (400,000) - (400,000)
QOutstanding at RZE-N\F
31 December 2018  +=A=+—H
and 1 January 2019  R=ZE—NF
—A—BRHATE 5,600,000 7,400,000 13,000,000
Lapsed BAM (800,000 (800,000) (1,600,000)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+-A=+—"H 4,800,000 6,600,000 11,400,000

There were 11,400,000 (2018:
13,000,000) share options outstanding
and none of which was exercisable
as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019.

The share options outstanding at
31 December 2019 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of
8.1 years. (2018: 9.1 years)

R-ZE—N\F+_-_A=+—8BxK
—E-hE+-A=+—80%
A 11,400,0000 ( =T — N\ F -
13,000,00013 ) & & 17 # B IR
W HARIWER] FITEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

(b)

25 EHREHEURNAERNRS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#&)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) HBRESTEE)
(i)  Fair value of share options and (i) BREAFEREBR
assumptions
The fair value of services received YERE BB AR AE 2 B ) ifn
in return for share options granted Wz BR% 2 A FEHZ
is measured by reference to the fair BAELERECATE
value of share options granted. The MarE - FIREERES
estimate of the fair value of the share B A FEHRA B
options granted is measured based EBENGE - BRE
on a binomial option pricing model. ZERNFRERZENXZ
The contractual life of the share option —IHEg ABUE - IRETIE
is used as an input into this model. TAEEMA BT
Expectations of early exercise are BEX -
incorporated into the a binomial option
pricing model.
2018
—E-N\F
Fair value at measurement date ~ REtEHEIZ AF(E HK$ 7 T 0.99-1.01

Share price

Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed
as weighted average volatility
used in the modelling under
binomial lattice model)

Option life (expressed
as weighted average life used
in the modelling under binomial
lattice model)

WefE

1IfE(E

TRETRIE (3% — IR B
BAE TREFTRAZ
IFEF R IR IR )

Expected dividends TEHARR B
Risk-free interest rate (based on & FI| =K (1B 4%
Hong Kong Government Bond) &BBIFESSH)

HKS$ & Jt 3.54
HK$ %t 3.54

37.30%

FEREF R (IR — A
BAIR TR PR 2
I FERSIR)

10 years
4.80%

2.35%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on
the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a
service condition. This condition has
not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of
the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 EBEX - HERKRE

DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of (a) HERBLEH
equity
The reconciliation between the opening and REEGFEERZTDNFI R
closing balances of each component of the FREBNERF NG ERE
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the £ VNN TVLM/”J'JE‘B%BAﬁ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. MEFEROEEFIBEHS AT

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

Capital
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  Retained
Company capital premium feserves reserves reserve profits Total

503 kil ; EFRR  EARG  RERA it
* RUBI000 * RMBOD  RMBOOD  RVBOOD  RBOXO
i ARMTT ARBTr  ARETn  ARMTR  ARMTn  ARETR  ARMR

Balance at1 January 2018 W=Z-/\F-F-H

if 5208 6,060 384 4,954 (4813) 46,133 57,921
Changes in equity for 2018:  =Z-N\EH
Engn.
Tota comprehensive income.~~ ERZANGAE
for the year - - - - 30m 16349 166,966
Shares issued under share REERETS
option scheme i) 260 11 313 - 072 - - 2174
Transfer befiween reserves s - - - (1,454) - 1,454 =
Fouty settled share-based ~~ EREENR(AA
fransactions ERNR5 - - - 1,167 - - 1,167
Dividends declared ESRRE 260) - - - - - (122,328) (122,328
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=F—/\F+=P
and 1 January 2019 =t-AR
ZE-1E
-f-Rfike 31 5214 9,19 384 3,69 (1,742) 88,754 105,500
Changesin equity for 2019:  =Z-AEH
ERgE:
Total comprehensive income.~~ ERZENELE
forthe year - - - - 1,813 30,182 36,995
Shares issued under share REEREE
option scheme i) 2600 = = = - = = =
Transfer befuween reserves FlEEAR - - - (441) - 4 =
Equiy settied share-based EntEhkha
fransactions AR5 - - - 1630 - - 1,630
Dividends declared EENRE 260) - - - - - (73,200 (73,200

Balance at 31 December 2019 A=Z-f%+=7
=t-BHLE 31 5214 919% 384 4,884 71 51177 70,925
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 BEX - RERKRE @
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(@) Movements in components of (@) HE=FBoEE)(E)
equity (Continued)
Note: BfaE -
The Group, including the company, has initially AEB(BEARRA)ERZT—NLF—
applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified A—BERKEEBWE T IR IE AR
retrospective approach. Under this approach, R EAERIE 165 - BIEBEZ A E @+ LR
comparative information is not restated and there is BRWESY]  BHARRRZZT—NE
no net effect on the opening balance of the company’s —A—BzERVERITERE - 55
equity as at 1 January 2019. See notes 1(c)(i) and 31. B2RMIEE1(0)i) X381 °
(b) Dividends (b) BE
(i) Dividends payable to equity () FEERAFEEREMNARAT
shareholders of the Company ez AR SR AR B,

attributable to the year

2019 2018
—E-hF - N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
Interim dividend declared BEEIR&E X
and paid of HK$0.075 7Y AR B
per ordinary share BRE @R
(2018: HK$0.132 per 0.075%8 7T
ordinary share) —E-N\F:
0.132787T) 45,672 76,658
Final dividend proposed MRS BREE R &
after the end of the R AR EARR B
reporting period of BRRERR
HK$0.03 per 0.03%87T
ordinary share (ZE—N\F:
(2018: HK$0.048 per BRRERR
ordinary share) 0.048/87T) 20,058 27,524
65,730 104,182
The final dividend proposed after the R & B R 1R R B R
end of the reporting period has not Hi B B30 f8 1E ¥R 5 HA R A
been recognised as a liability at the RRAE -

end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 BEX  #EERKRE @)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) KRE#)

(i) Dividends payable to equity i) HBEBRLE—FEHRFEER
shareholders of the Company N S L RO A FE AR
attributable to the previous financial AR AR A AR B
year, approved and paid during the
year

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Final dividend proposed MRS BERZ
after the end of the R AR EARR B
reporting period of BARE @A
HK$0.048 per 0.048 7T
ordinary share - )N\F:
(2018: HK$0.085 per BRE B
ordinary share) 0.085%87T) 27,528 45,670
(c) Share capital (c) B’=

() Authorised and issued share (i) ZEEREBITERAX

capital

2019
ZE-AE

No.ofshares ~ HK$000  RMB'000  No.of shares RMBI000
RH#E  FEr ARETR RO&E AT ARETR

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREE0 AT
HK$0.01 each LaR 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208 | 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208

Ordinary shares, issued ~ BRTHREZER :

and fully paid:
At1 January i) 2= 668,593,000 6,686 5214 667,264,000 6,672 5203
Shares issued under share  RIZERTRIERTBIETIR N

option scheme (Btz+26(c))

iote 26 - - - 1,329,000 14 i
At 31 December R+=A=1-A 668,593,000 6,686 5214 668,593,000 6,686 5214
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)
(i)

(ii)

Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share
capital (Continued)

The equity shareholders are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued under share
option scheme

During the 31 December 2018,
options were exercised to subscribe
for a total of 1,329,000 ordinary shares
in the Company at a consideration of
RMB2,174,000, of which RMB11,000
and RMB2,163,000 were credited to
share capital and the share premium
account respectively. The amount of
RMB972,000 was transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with policy set
out in the note 1 (ulii).

There was no share options granted
or exercised during the year ended
31 December 2019.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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fif o

BEBRESTSE 1T
Bz 13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
Company’s share premium account
are distributable to the shareholders
provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the course of business.

Capital reserve
Capital reserves comprise the
followings:

26

BR - #ERRE @

(d) BEANMEERAR
(i) KRHO=RE
BRERSEEQARE &
RAIRMBERLNES
AIDETRE: BIRA
BEREERKREREERZ
% KRB BRENEE
SBREPEEDEKRE -

BEXRf#tE
BENfFRBEATER :

(ii)

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F R ARKETT
The Group rEE
Equity settled share-based #EmAs & ARG &
transactions (Note 25) EMoR 5 (HsE25) 4,745 3,556
Arising from reorganisation BEE/HEL
(notes (i) and (ii)) (BHEE () B (i) 37,493 37,493
42,238 41,049
The Company ARAF]
Equity settled share-based #mAs & ARG &
transactions (Note 25) EMoR 5 (HE25) 4,745 3,556
Arising from reorganisation P E#HZE 4 (15 (i)
(note (i) 139 139
4,884 3,695

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 EX - FERKRE @)

DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) REAEERAZRE)
(Continued)
(i) Capital reserve (Continued) (i) EARHEE)
Notes: Kzt -

)

On 18 May 2009, the controlling
shareholder sold his entire equity
interest in Cabbeen China to Cabbeen
China Investments Limited (“Cabbeen
Investments”), so that Cabbeen
Investments became the holding
company of Cabbeen China. The
consideration for the transaction was
RMB11,200,000. The difference of
RMB37,354,000 between the initial
cash consideration and the capital of
Cabbeen China was recorded as a
capital reserve.

On 31 July 2012, the Company issued
and allotted 100 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each as a consideration to
purchase the entire issued share capital
of Grandfull International Holdings
Limited (“Grandfull International”) and
Cabbeen International Holdings Limited
from the controlling shareholder. The
difference of RMB139,000 between
the purchase consideration and the
share capital of Grandfull International
and Cabbeen International Holdings
Limited was recorded as an increase
of shareholder’s contribution in capital
reserve.

) R=ZFBEZAERA+N
B ERBEEBEERE
B R IARE LS
FTREFBEEERRAD
A(RERE]D  #HK
BEREKBFETEA
ERAR - ZX BN
& & A R % 11,200,000
T mRSRERFE
EREEAHEMNEEA
R # 37,354,000 7T 5T A
B ERS -

(i) R_E—=—Ft /=1
— B AARBEITRE
#1100k & ix ™ {E0.01
BITHIRG - (ERmIE
BRAX R B B B B BT
BERRETE SR
B R REBEBRERS
BRARZPEHTHRA
WRE - BERERE
BB kR E R
BRARRRA 2 EH
=58 AR #139,000 T
BEARFEBERERREL
BRIEINAL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE1THEREI)  UAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)
(iii) Capital redemption reserve

(iv)

(v)

Capital redemption reserve represents
the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the
PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in the
mainland China are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-
profit (after offsetting prior year losses)
as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distribution of profits to parent
companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25%
of its registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside
mainland China which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(y).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 EX - FERKRE @

DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d)

RENEERBRR @)

(e)

(Continued)

(v) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB65,327,000
(2018: RMB99,902,000). After the end
of the reporting period the directors
propose a final dividend of HK$0.03
(2018: HK$0.048) per ordinary share
(note 26()).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for its equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

(e)

(v) fFEENDIKED
RZZE—-—NFE+=A
=+—0: JESKTAE
DA R R e
5 A R ¥65,327,000
T(ZE—N\F: ARK
99,902,0007T) ° I¥REHA
HERIE  BEFRFRMNRK
HifR B g AR & @A 0.03 %
TL(ZZE—/\F : 0.0487%
70) (M 5E 26(0)) °

EXREHE

AEEEREANEERBAR
EAEEBFEEENES  BA
AL B PR\ 7K T % 2 6 E (B A B2 A
SERARBAE - BERER
R SR A5 B 3 e 5 L A M 25 AR R

A3 o

AREBETHEEREELE
AW AREFDEE BT
W ER T TR BTN E SRR
B IBREARR TR R
%22 MERHTE - 1A RmE
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure with
reference to its debt position. The Group’s
strategy is to maintain the equity and debt
in a balanced position and ensure there are
adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s debt to asset ratio,
being the Group’s total liabilities over its total
assets, at 31 December 2019 was 45%
(2018: 44%).

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the Group recognizes right-of-
use assets and corresponding lease liabilities
for some leases previously accounted for as
operating leases as from 1 January 2019.
This caused a slight increase in the Group’s
total debt, but no significant impact on 1
January 2019 when compared to its position
as at 31 December 2018.
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 BEX  #EERKRE @)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued) (e) EXREE(#)
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-assets REBERARE R R LB R
ratio at the end of the current and previous HHABR R A KR 1B = B B 7%
reporting periods and at the date of transition AR E 169 H HANKARE
to IFRS 16 was as follows: TREEEFLLENT

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-hEF —E-N\F
+=HA=+—H —A—B t=A=+—H

(Note) (Note)

(BftsE) (PftsE)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

Current liabilities RBBE 994,300 685,353 684,856
Non-current liabilities ~ FEREIAE 10,813 239,054 239,054
Current assets mEBEE 1,812,649 1,854,747 1,854,884
Non-current assets FEMBEE 428,286 243,416 242,782
Debt to asset ratio BB EELLE 45% 44% 44%
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the Mizk : AKEEFERLESTBIEE X
modified retrospective approach and adjusted & R B R B 5 e 25 B Y 28 16 55%
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to WHABEBR-_ZT—NE—A—HBH
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases B )45 4 DA T 3R B 5 BT AR 4R B R
which were previously classified as operating SIERIFE17T RO EAKEHNE
leases under IAS 17. Under this approach, the MNERBNEERRE - RIEK
comparative information is not restated. See Tk LEREARNTES o R
note 1(c)i). 1(0)() °
Neither the Company nor any of its RARKEFAMBRRIITZ
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed HNFBEINEY B N5 7€ FBR I ©

capital requirements.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a
counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables,
deposits with banks and other financial
assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and other receivables
Credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit terms. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
history of making payments and current
abilities to pay and take into account
information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer and
therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. As at 31
December 2019, 19% (2018: 23%)
of the total trade and bills receivables
were concentrated in one customer,
and 60% (2018: 58%) of the total
trade and bills receivables were
concentrated in five customers of the
Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group
does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

FE (&)
(@ =8
(i)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances
for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information
about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for trade and bills
receivables as at 31 December 2019:

27 €@IT A
FE®)

(@ EE
(i)

HermEREER A

JE\B (42)

B 5 R HEWRIE
(%)
AEBRERNEEA R
HNAREESENS R
AAEESRBIAZER
B HIVERRESIERE
ETAHE - AR AKEE
EOEEBRL R TR
BEEDBMBRERTRE
BEA - EREERER
BEEBTEE—DPNA
SETREFPER 2HEHE

—ZFEmy e

TERHINR=_F—-NF
tT-A=t—BAKEHA
f (= B R B H 8 &R K
B 5 RWHA R ERE R
REKNEENTAHERE

=

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHERE RERE - HERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT
Current (not past due) BNER (R ER) 0.05% 633,865 317)
1-90 days past due #HI1Z90H 1.00% 732 (7)
91-180 days past due #H91 =180 H 50.00% - -
More than 180 days past due BEREBA180H  100.00% - -
634,597 (324)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 sRMIENESHEREERA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL FE (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERKE)
() Trade and other receivables (i) EBESZkHEHMEKRRKE
(Continued) (%&)

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BHERE KEAKE BERE
% RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTT

Current (not past due) BIER (R HR) 0.05% 362,814 (181)
1-90 days past due #HI1E90H 1.00% 125 )
91-180 days past due #H91 =180 H 50.00% 898 (449)
More than 180 days past due BEEB180R  100.00% 30 (30)

363,867 (661)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on
actual loss experience over the past
2 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had transferred bank acceptance bills
totalling RMB158,468,000 (2018:
RMB257,030,000), which were
derecognised as financial asset. The
transferees have recourse right to the
Group in case of default by the issuing
banks. In such cases, the Group
would have to repurchase these bank
acceptance bill at face value. These
bank acceptance bills mature six
months from respective dates of issue
and the Group’s maximum loss in case
of default are RMB158,468,000 (2018:
RMB257,030,000) as at 31 December
2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

The Group considers that the credit
risk associated with bank acceptance
bills issued by major banks in the PRC
to be insignificant.

At 31 December 2019, the Group
lent three loans with total face
value of RMB57,840,000 to Huazhi
Investments, an associated company
of the Group, which are repayable
by January 2020 and March 2020.
Based on the financial position and the
economic environment the associate
operates, the Group considers that the
credit risk associated with above loans
to be insignificant.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established
credit rating. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.

Other financial assets

The Group entered into a wealth
management products with bank
during the years ended 31 December
2018. The management considers that
the counterparties are the banks with
high credit rating and, therefore, the
default risk is remote.

As at 31 December 2019, the
Group did not enter into any wealth
management product with bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities
and discounted bills of the Group are carried
at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within
one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The contractual undiscounted cash flow and
carrying amount of financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period are set out as
follows:

27

cRTENEREAREERD
FE®)

(b) REEELEEZ)
RIWEBRR  2RAENELHR
AEReRELRERABEHEY N
T

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
RNAMRRSRE

More than  More than
Within  1yearbut 2 year but

Carrying iyearoron lessthan  lessthan More than
31 December 2019 amount demand 2 year 5years 5years
-Eps  -FNE WENE

“B-NE+ZA=t-H REE EEX WENR RENR RENE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

ARETT AR%Tn ARETr AR%ETR AR%TR ARETn

Bank borrowings FITEH 354,737 356,822 356,822 - - -
Trade and bills BIRNTER

payables ANES S 435783 435783 435783 - - -
Other payables EthENTIER

and accruals EitER 94550 94550 94,559 - - -

Lease liabilties HERRE 8,317 9,421 1,747 1,806 5,868 -

893,396 896,585 888,911 1,806 5,868 -

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases
under |AS 17. Other lease liabilities include
amounts recognised at the date of transition to
IFRS 16 in respect of leases previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17 and amounts
relating to new leases entered into during the
year. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 sRMIENESHEREERA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL F{E (%)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REESREEZ)

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
aRAERReRE
Morethan ~ More than
Within -~ 1yearbut 2 year but
Carrying 1 year or on less than lessthan  More than

31 December 2018 amount Total demand 2 year 5 years 5 years
—Fm%  —ENE MENE

“Z-\f+tZA=t-H REE @t EEk MENA  BFENA BENE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARETT AR%TT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

Bank borrowings FITIER 287452 310,043 54,267 255,776 - -
Trade and bills BIRAFER

payables ERZE 468937 468937 468,937 - - -
Other payables HiEFER

and accruals EHER 76,077 76,077 76,077 - - -

832,466 855067 599281 255,766 = =

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=mEps

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or MEREkEe TAENAFER
future cash flows of a financial instrument RERERERKZEMSHEL
will fluctuate because of changes in market KB Rk o REEAY A
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk KRB EZ KRBT EFTERNIR
arises primarily from bank borrowings carried TER  SASEARRESRE
at variable rates, which exposes the Group MERRE R_FTE-—NFTH
to cash flow interest rate risk. The effective =+—H8 ' AEBEMRITERE
interest rate of the bank borrowings of the BRHEGE8T%(ZF—\F:
Group as at 31 December 2019 was 6.87% 6.70%) °

(2018: 6.70%).
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and retained profits
by approximately RMB2,935,000 (2018:
RMB2,400,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
impact on the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits that would arise assuming
that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on
the same basis for 2018.

Currency risk

Individual companies within the Group have
limited foreign currency risk as most of the
transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the
operation in which they relate. The Group’s
functional currency is RMB as all the turnover
are within the PRC. With the natural hedging
of the revenue and costs being denominated
in RMB, the Group’s transactional foreign
exchange exposure was insignificant.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 e@MTENESREREERA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL FAE (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair value (e) 2A¥E
() Financial assets measured at () BELAFEFENEHE
fair value E
Fair value hierarchy NEER

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

T RIZ BB B 15 RS R
FI3HFAFEFEFRE
M=ERFEEH  5IR
NEES R T ERREH
RIFEEELERFTEND
FE - RFEFEMREA
MER2REERMATA
BWASEBENA R RE
EHETEOT :

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value . F—REE: EFEA
measured using only Level 1 E— e A& - B
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted HRIEES B ERET
prices in active markets for AN GRS
identical assets or liabilities at B(REAR)E
the measurement date. HAFE ©

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not

. FE_MEE: E£H
£ KW ABE
BN E % — QIR
EH A BR B A K
B HTEREER
THBERHASE
AENRAFE. T

available. B R AR E
I 4% 7] 15 70 3% BUE

BB A B -
. Level 3 valuations: Fair value . FE=HEHE: FH
measured using significant EEZFAEERH A
unobservable inputs. BT ENATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 sRMIENESHEREERA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL FE®)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair value (Continued) (e) 2FEE)
() Financial assets measured at () BLAFEFENEHE
fair value (Continued) E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEFR(E)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group RZZE—NE+ZA
has no financial asset measured at fair =+—8 A&EEWEE
value (2018: RMB60,000,000). AEATFEFAENSEE
E(ZE—NF: AR¥
60,000,0007T)

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2018 categorised into
2018 RZE-\E+-A=1+—BH
RZE-N\§ RHEHENER

+-A=t-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MATE E—& Fmt E=%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTE  ARETT ARETR

Recurring fair value REMNTETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Financial asset at fair value ~ RAFE AB&
through profit or loss NeREE
(note 18) (i3 18)
- Wealth management - EHER
products 60,000 - 60,000 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2019, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of wealth management
products in Level 2 is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive
at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the current
creditworthiness of the wealth
management products counterparties.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

27 SRMIENSREREERA
FE (&)

NSSERED

(i

BAVEFENEHE
E(#E)
RFEER(E)

BHE_FT—NEEK=_F
—hFE+-A=+—81t
FE F—REE_H2
SRIZ::IEXCEEY A ¢
AFEHE=F - X&EH
BRBRIEBRRERTF
EEHEHBEEZERER
LY A

FE_RRFEAERAZ
R E T M A SR

F_RANBMERZIRAYF
BEARNEEHRHREHR
WEZ fhET 28 - EHE
FETEMR ST ZEH
5 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of conversion option
embedded in convertible loan
was determined using binomial
lattice model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair
value measurement was expected
volatility. The fair value measurement
was positively correlated to the
expected volatility. The convertible loan
was repaid at August 2018.

The movements during the period in
the balance of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

27 TRITEAENSREREERA

FE®
(e) AFEE)
() BOATEIEWLSRE

E(#E)
BRE=MAFEFEZ

AEBERANS @R
Z R ETIRA ZHAR
EREAEE  maFER
EffAZEENABRE
ABBRTEERIE - R
Bt EHEBHKIEZ ER
FARAR - AT EIMmERER
—E-NFNAEE -

HANZEE =R A FERT
ERBIEHWT

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Conversion option AEBERAE
embedded in L EERE
convertible loan:
Reclassification R ibay - 47,245
At 1January/Onissue day ~ W—A—H,/%17H - 52,404
Changes in fair value HIA N B TERR
recognised in Z R THERE)
profit or loss
during the period - (2,865)
Repayment of the loan BB - (49,539)
At 31 December KR+=—A=+—H - -
Total loss for the period RERRREE
included in profit or T ABE A
loss for assets held at BEEE
the end of the
reporting period - (2,865)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 sRMIENESHEREERA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL FE (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair value (Continued) (e) DFESE)

(i) Fair value of financial assets (i) XLFEAFEIERZE
and liabilities carried at other MEEREBNATE
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RZZE-NEERZ=ZT—N
financial instruments carried at cost F+=ZHA=+—H &%
or amortised cost were not materially =] 22 A 2 o SH AN AR B BR
different from their fair values as at 31 T EMREERA
December 2018 and 2019. AVETBERER o

28 COMMITMENTS 28 AEiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAXREE

Capital commitments outstanding at R=-FB-hhE+=-A=+—8"

31 December 2019 not provided for in RAMBHRRTIRBENRET

the financial statements were as follows: BAREEWNT :

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T

Contracted for =EIES) 29,525 7,790
Authorised but not EIREMEARETA

contracted for 51,975 22,272

81,500 30,062

In addition, the Group was committed at o - REBEERBER T —NF

31 December 2019 to enter into a lease of +=-—A=1+—HilxZ—MExH

five years that is not yet commenced, the MR AFHEE  REZHES

lease payments under which amounted to FHEN KA ARM1,806,000

RMB1,806,000 per annum. JC °©

“B-NEFR FERBHERAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

28 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating leases commitments

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as

28 RIE (&)

(b)

REHERIE
R—Z2—N\F+=-_A=+—8"
RIBTAEEEEEHEERFNAR
REEMENREBAT -

follows:

2018
—=E—)\F
RMB’000
ARET T
Within 1 year —FR 5,864

After 1 year but within —F R AFER
5 years 210
6,074

The Group is the lessee in respect of a
number of properties held under leases which
were previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17. The Group has initially applied
IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
these leases (see note 1(c)(i)). From 1 January
2019 onwards, future lease payments are
recognised as lease liabilities in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the
policies set out in note 1(m).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions.

(a)

Transactions with related parties

The operating lease charges in respect of
properties paid and payable to Shishi City
Junyuan Development Co., Ltd. (“Junyuan
Development”) (AfmEBRERARA
7)) amounted to RMB787,000 (2018:
RMB2,111,000) for the year ended 31
December 2019, which constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However those
transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are below the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

On 17 May 2019, Cabbeen Fashion China
Limited (“Cabbeen China”) entered into
the equity transfer agreement with Precise
Investment Limited (“Precise Investment”),
Junyuan Development and Mr. Yang Ziming,
pursuant to which Cabbeen China agreed to
acquire from Precise Investment the entire
registered capital of Junyuan Development
for a consideration of RMB107,607,000.
The equity transfer agreement was approved
by the independent shareholders by way
of poll at the adjourned extraordinary
general meeting held on 3 July 2019. The
transaction was completed in July 2019,
which constitutes a connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in section
headed “Connected Transactions” of the
Reports of the Directors.

I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

29 ERBEHLERS

% BT 3 EL A 25 SR BB e B O AR
5N - AEBET A FEARB S X5 -

() EHEBAIRZ

REBEEZZT—-NFT+_A=1—
HIEFERMESS REMN AR
mERERBR A A(]BEIRE
RNDZELEHEEBRAARK
787,000(ZE—NF: AR
#2,111,0007 ) - EEK £
RABUVAZEFARTEZHERE
R ME ZEXFHEERE
BT EMRANE14AZ ZHER
E RAEZERZER EMRA
FE14AT6(1) IR 2 IR FRRIKTF ©

R_ZE—AERA++LH > £F
fRe (R E) BRAB ([ REF
B ) BB EIREBRAT (L
K& BRERENMGEBLE
RN REEREGE B FE
FRREBRBERERERRE
BREPAMER REAARK
107,607,000 7T © B #E &5 3% 177 =%
EEBYREN-_ZT—HLEFLA
“HROTZRREEIAZES

AIREFABLE - WESHEELK
RZE—NFEAZK  HE#EK
EHRAFEAAEFR R ENEE
R LMANE14AERTEZ
BEHENESTSmE [BERS]
_/F,:’ﬁ °

“E-NEER FEREFRA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

P UABREZT)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group lent RMB 32,000,000 to Huazhi
Investment, an associated company of the
Group, which was with an interest rate at
30% above PBOC base interest rate per
annum and repayable by September 2019.
By the time the loan receivable from Huazhi
Investment become due, the Group extended
the repayment period of the loan to March
2020. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group lent another loan of
RMB10,000,000 to Huazhi Investment, which
was with an interest rate at 7% per annum
and repayable by March 2020. This loan was
subsequently settled in January 2020. None
of the above related party transactions falls
under the definition of connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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(a)

EEBLRS (#)

2T - NF+_A=+—
BEFE AEERAEHE

ENFIESKRERBEARK
32,000,0007T W E 3K © B B &

BEA-_E—NFHLAEE I
R ARBITEEFFE F
w%ﬂ§°%X§$D&ﬁm@
WERE B - AEBKERN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ1T1#8892 51 - UAE#EZT)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29 ERBABLERZ (®)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel (b) ETEEEASHMH
compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel TEEFTZEBAEME (RIE
of the Group, including amounts paid to the T FHECAHEENARAE
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 6 ERMFTHARBENE TR
and certain of the highest paid employees as EEMFIB)IAT :

disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Short-term employee SEEIISEEY]
benefits 8,035 6,596
Contributions to retirement RRAEFEHEI R
benefit scheme 364 582
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL - -
Equity settled share-based #EmAs & ARG &
payment expenses St N e 1,630 1,167
10,029 8,345
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” FiMeREE N [BIA] (FsE
(note 4(b)). 4(p)) °

“B-NEFR FERBHERAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

30

P UABREZT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The
Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products with similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of change in
customer preference and competitor actions
in response to the industry situation. Any
change in the assumptions would increase
or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down
made in prior years and affect the Group’s
net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZ1THEHES)  UAAREST)

30 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 30 EAEFHEFTRHE &)

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and other (b) ESZRHEHMEBEWRIERIE
receivables
The Group estimates the loss allowances AEEF BT HEREEBEMG
for trade receivables by assessing the ECLs. B ZEBGIBNEERE - &
This requires the use of estimates and EEERAM RHE - BHEE
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s EBERIEEREENBTEES
historical credit loss experience, adjusted Bk BHABEBSANER
for factors that are specific to the debtors, YE 2 AR KRG HARE E AT
and an assessment of both the current and K T8 EA B B8 48 B AR VR HE Y AT
forecast general economic conditions at the S o WA YR EETHIRE
end of reporting period. Where the estimation B FREZEBTEB IR
is different from the original estimate, such THRREE - Bt - BEEETH
difference will affect the carrying amounts of FHREBEELRES A%
trade receivables and thus the impairment EerEBARATETHE S
loss in the period in which such estimate is JEW IR TEHAE E B4 -
changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables
during their expected lives.

(c) Bank acceptance bills (c) MITERILEE

As set out in note 27(a)(i), the Group
considers that the credit risk associated with
bank acceptance bills issued by major banks
in the PRC to be insignificant. The Group
monitors the credit risk of issuing banks. The
judgement to derecognise bank acceptance
bills upon discounting or endorsement is
reviewed when the credit risk of issuing
banks deteriorates significantly.

BAME 27(@)0) Pt - AEER A
PEREZRITHETHRITALE
EHRENEERRYTEK - K
SEERFITRITNEERR -
BRTRONEERRBEZEE(L
B BRI B ERZLFERIRTT
7 SRR RO HI T AN AR B

SE-AEFR FRBSERAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31 QAFHMBARRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARINKRE 14 8,490 7,205
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b FE I R IE 256,928 213,464
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBFEEEY 585 557
257,513 214,021
Current liability nREEE
Other payables and accruals H At S 5RIE &
JEETE 195,078 115,726
195,078 115,726
Net current assets REBEEFE 62,435 98,295
NET ASSETS EEEE 70,925 105,500
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#EE 26(a)
Capitals B 5,214 5,214
Reserves G 65,711 100,286
NET ASSETS EEFE 70,925 105,500
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEFeN_T-_TF=-RA+—HH#LE
directors on 11 March 2020. MR HET)EE o
Mr. Siu Keung Ng Mr. Ronggin Ke
RAO@BRE MR EE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TTEAES FHNTTEE HITEE
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32

33

34

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has
brought about additional uncertainties in the
Group’s operating environment and has impacted
the Group’s operations and financial position and
performance.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact
of the developments on the Group’s businesses
and has put in place contingency measures.
These contingency measures include: cutting
back purchase orders for 2020 summer collection;
putting on hold the opening of new shops and other
material investments; providing extended credit
terms for its distributors. The Group will keep its
contingency measures under review as the situation
evolves.

As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned,
the outbreak has materially and adversely impacted
the sales, some debtors' repayment abilities and
turnover of inventory. As the extent to which the
coronavirus outbreak will continue is uncertain,
it is not practicable to estimate the full financial
effect that the coronavirus outbreak may have on
the Group’s businesses as at the date when the
financial statements are authorized to issue.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach at 1 January 2019.
Under the Transition method chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note
1(c).

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2019, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr.
Ziming Yang.

32

33

34

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B STHBEIN - HAREIIT)
BREHRFEFARER

BT _TFVEEHMBERREMA
ZIE - AREBRZKERBERFEINT
BFEZ - TEFERSE 2 X5 K
BkR &R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B B7THEHZE S - YA EBESTR)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 35 BE-—FE-hIF+=A
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS =t+—HLEFECEMmE
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED e RAEMIERT - FETZERIR
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE RENTRERE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEAPBHRERTIZAE - HEE%E
the IASB has issued a number of amendments RSS2 BMELIREE] - ZSBETR
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 BHE_ZT-NF+ZH=T—BLFE
December 2019 and which have not been adopted MAREN - BRATIFHRIIARFKA ©
in these financial statements. These include the AT Al geti R BB m B R LER -

following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RIS B z%
BB ETTEEEX
Amendment to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of a material 1 January 2020
BIPR 25t 2RI 1 5 REIFR @ ERIE 85k 2 185] - EAAESE —ET-FTF—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an REBEFHEHZEEE] - e E8 KRR
assessment of what the impact of these EREXERREMEECTE - BiE
developments is expected to be in the period of R AREE I AR IR E ] pe 47 & B S 3R
initial application. So far it has concluded that the REBENEATE -

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY
HFEHE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —F-N\E I e “E-NE “F-h%

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETRT  ARRTT  ARETR  ARETR

Revenue W 1,274,966 1273473 1,089,106 1,160,799 1,356,486
Cost of sales HERA (714,875) (694,730) (551,499) (604,829) (730,032)
Gross profi 7 560,091 578,743 537,613 555,970 626,454
Other income EELON 66,777 58,100 42,786 51,709 56,805
Seling and distrioution HERDHAR

expenses (218,915) (179,423) (153,392) (160,425) (121,607)
Administrative and other ~ {TRURHE M EERT

operating expenses (164,513) (146,388) (125,671) (194,198) (166,811)
Profit from operations Syl 243,440 311,032 301,336 253,056 394,841
Finance cost RERR (21,608) (19,891) (16,555) (5,848) (3,137)
Share of loss of an VoX hat AN

associate MEE (46) (190) - - -
Profit before taxation R A A 221,786 290,951 284,781 247,208 391,704
Income tax FiEH (63,644) (80,708) (81,568) (65,519) (104,146)
Profit for the year FREN 158,142 210,243 203,213 181,689 287,558
Farnings per share GREF

Basic (RMB) ER(ARH) 0.24 0.32 0.29 0.26 0.40

Diluted (RVB) % 1UN=3:9) 0.24 0.32 0.29 0.25 0.40

SE-AEFR FRBSERAR



FIVE YEARS SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

LFHRE ()

2019
=

RMB'000
ARBTR

2018
“E-N\F

RMB'000
ARBTT

2017
“T—tF
RMB'000
ARETT

2016
=y
RMB000
ARETTL

2015
“T-HE
RMB'000
AREFTL

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment propertes G UE S 128,753 39,607 - - -
Property, plant and equipment 1% » BiE K&t 176,016 50,326 73,076 57 501 29,817
Interests in leasehold mEBETHIEERYL
land held for own use ME iR
under operating lease i - 22,811 23,312 23,319 =
Intangible assets BYEE 33,299 37,393 40,218 34,848 35,297
Prepayments for acquisition YRRz RikfE < BR IR
of plant and equipment , 8,460 1,039 9,744 - -
Other loans receivables EERER = - 64,118 = S
Interest in an associate ﬁéff‘a\jﬂﬁ%%@ﬂ MR 49,303 49,349 - - -
Deferred tax assets BEERBEE 32,455 33,257 26,158 37,786 24,368
428,286 242,782 236,626 153,474 89,482
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 383,716 383,578 337,052 328,813 266,765
Trade and other receivables =% RE MM 738,863 506,393 445,829 465,086 485917
Other financial assets A eRaE - 60,000 263,159 21,400 10,000
Deposits with banks REMRB={EAN
with original maturity RITE
date over three months . 303,254 443 944 452,860 275,400 288,622
Pledged bank deposits BERRTEN 119,824 240,485 105,015 239,068 428,375
Cash and cash equivalents & RREEEN 266,992 220,484 134,593 222,885 294 543
1,812,649 1,854,884 1,728,508 1,552,652 1,774,222
Current liabilities REERE
Bank borrowings RITIER 354,737 52,566 16,636 127,095 220,479
Trade and other payables E%&EW@H?@ 591,510 597,395 500,042 555,696 704,182
Current tax payable FERBNERIR 46,673 34,895 19,929 30,041 26,758
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,380 - - - -
994,300 684,856 626,607 712,832 951,419
Non-current liabilities FrBaE
Bank borrowings RITER - 234,886 271,461 - -
Lease liabilties HEAE 6,037 - - - -
Deferred tax liabilties EXHEEE 3,876 4,168 11,770 11577 15,384
10,813 239,054 083,231 11,577 15,384
Net assets BEFE 1,235,822 1,173,756 1,055,296 981,717 896,901
Capital and reserves BeRfkiE
Share capital B 5214 5214 5,203 5,583 5,580
Reserves i 1,199,527 1,112,743 1,018,653 976,134 891,321
1,204,741 1,117,957 1,023,856 981,717 896,901
Non-controlling interests  FERER 31,081 55,799 31,440 = =
Total equity BiEs 1,235,822 1,173,756 1,055,296 981,717 896,901
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